Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

Thursday, June 20, 2019 at 6:30PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon



Account Code

Account Title

Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
From 5/31/2019 Through 5/31/2019

Debit Balance

Credit Balance

1001
1008
1009
1011
1020
1030
1040

Report Total

Report Difference

Date: 6/17/19 01:25:48 PM

General Checking Account
Payroll Checking

NW RIDES ACCOUNT
Prop. Mgmt. Checking
LGIP - General Account
LGIP - Capital Reserve
Petty Cash

414,549.09
20,582.94
39,822.62
65,050.56

699,744.53

657,727.73

200.00

1,897,677.47

0.00

1,897,677.47

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH

Page: 1



[ :98ed ooueLRA %9 193png (LLA/M Hoday qOd Ao N £S:9Z:10 61/L1/9 21

2000 (00°5£8°02) 00°5£8°0C 000 00'0 00°0 134 'SOY YoIng “YIA WO IofsueL]
%00°0 00°000°SL 000 00°000°GL 000 000 14137 21989y [eyde)) woly Jajsuel]
%60°6S (00°000°6) 0070007 00°000°¢1 00°0 00°0 [16¥ pun [BISUSD) WOL] JJSUBLL
%0Z°TIT 81°€6L 000059 8I°€67°L L9 1¥S £0°69¢ ol6¥ swoouy dxg jeuonerad( osea|
%88 €11 00°00$°C 00°000°81 00°00$°0T 00°005°1 00°006°1 006¥ OUIOOU] 95BYT]
%000 (00°000°1) 0070001 00°0 £€°€8 000 174%7 awoou] BuISIIAAPY
%P 81l 08 20F'y 00°0004¢ 08°20%°8C 00°000°C vT8EI'E 0IS¥ awoou] 1saU]
%0001 (00°000°6) 00°000°01 00°000°1 £E€E8 00°0 11847 auroou[ - S1AssY Jo 9[es
%LT S69 £L°7S6°C 00°000°1 £L77S6%9 £€°€8 86°61 00tY Elalty RIVElETERNTA
%69°59 (zo°¢ve) 000001 86959 £€€8 AN 00¢Y suoneradQ sng [eroadg
%¥0°6L (007£$6°02) 00000001 00°L¥0°6L €LEEE’s 0070 Syey 01€S - SIuBID
%65 LL {00°s67°61) 00000022 00°S0L°0LL £ EEC8I 000 vy () 11€8 - swrin
%00°001 000 00°000°L9 00°000°L9 €E7€85°C 000 0gTy LS - siuern
2%00°001 00°0 00°000°8% 00°000°8H 00°000° 0070 sTTY YTRIA 0D IS V. LOMN
%L8°96 (00'6vZ°1D) 00°000°09¢ 00 1SL'8tE 00°000°0€ 00°0 0T [1€S V.1 - swuein
%0070 (00°T1t"90L) 00°CI¥90L 0070 L9°298°8¢ 000 012 syetn eide)
2%08°9Z1 00°TH8've 00°000°0€1 00°ZF8 491 000 00 TP 91 SEly e[nuLo,f LS
%0T°SL (£0'L0°1T) 00°000°¢8 L6°LT6°E9 €E°€80°L 00°0 0Tt Xe [, [[01Ke 9)eIS HSurL] SSB]A
%2596 (sT6LY'L) 00000612 $L70T5°L0T L9916'L1 ST TOY9E 0zlYy ANUIADY IoqUILT, 2)BIS
%01 LY (69°651°12) 00°000°0% 1£0v8°81 £eeee’e 6L7699°1 11887 xe], Aadord sieoq 1sed
%99°101 vI'LS6 Y] 00°000°006 PILS6VI6 000 LY PT8E 001% xe] Kuadoid
%90°8L (€SvLSP61) 00°000°L88 LY STHT69 LY9I6EL 00+9T°S 0Z0Y SNUIATY 19810
2%80°€01 S9TLI'S 00°000°69¢ SOTLIELT 00°€80°C¢ 9€9°€T 000% sare,
%0070 (00°5€8°TEHP° T} 00°SESTEY 00°0 00°0 00'0 00S€ [ende) Bunpiom
SADINOSAY
%26 DUBLIBA 123png [e10] Jenoy 123png poun [BMOY POLId ]
wa:m ﬁmﬁo,h Iea EQEDU EOEJU EOE:U

6102/1€/S USNOIYT, 610T/1/S WoL]
JUOWIAIR]S [BIOUBUL]

pLysiq uonejrodsue.a ], AHuno)) yoouwe|[i],



7 93eq uBLBA % 198png qLA/M Hoday qOT A[Yyon
%L6'9L $L7069 00°000°€ ST60ET 00°0ST T6TT
%SH'99 00°920° 00°000°Z1 00'¥L6°L 00°000°T 00°0
%SL 9P 00705901 00°000°02 00°0S€‘6 L9°999°1 000
%00'06 007008 00°000°S 00°00S‘y L9°91¥ 00°0
%Eh €S STOVY'I1 00°000°52 SL6SEET £€°€80'C 00°0
%€ €6 ZTIP09 00°0$L°06 8L'80L¥8 05°,89°9 §S'8YFS
%00°0 (s1°09Z°1) 000 SI°097°1 00°0 00°0
%S6'€8 £F'9TTTE 00°055°020°C LS €TE969°1 91'6LE°891 8L ¥01°9€1
%L6'SL 18°0ELY 000052 61°69L°L1 00°SL8°1 000
2%00°0 (¢v'0Tre) 000 woTr's 00°0 000
2%00°0 (L81L0°S0) 00°0 L81LOST 00°0 9L TF0°S
%000 (89'989°€01) 000 89'989°¢01 000 61°SL1°TT
%69 1€v€9°€Te 00°000°019 69°$9€°98C £€7€€8°0S 605156
%00°0 0070 000 00°0 0070 (11°8¢v0)
%96 €S 79°726°6T 00°000°59 8€°LLOSE L99IFS PH'T9LT
%SL'001 (z5°895%9) 00005998 75°890°€L8 £€'807°7L 9y 0L TL
%TE 0L 0S'SPTLE 00°00S°SZ1 0S'$ST°88 €€ 85H01 $L°S96'9
%I8°LL 89°0P €L 000S0°1€€ TE€609°LST 0S'L8S°LT 0775961
%L6LS ~ (20°L8S°8SET)  00°0€FLI9S 86 TY8TSTE SOSLSTST  0S LhSIve
%00°001 00°0 00°000°€ 00°000°¢ 000 00°0
%00°001 000 00'8¥8°L¥ 00'8¥8°LY 000 000
%7C6 JouUBLIBA 193png [e10], Jenoy 193png pouiag Jemoy poLa
Huw_uzm —SOF Jea X EQ.E:U ED‘CBU Ew.EBU

6102/1€/S Y3noIyy, 610z/1/S woig

jusuILlR)S [BIOURUL]

PLysI(q uoneliodsue. I, AJuno)) yoowe[ji],

ovis
0zIs
€018
coI1¢
101¢S
001¢
090¢

geos
£50¢
[45US
150¢
0s0¢
[v0¢
0¥0¢8
0£0¢
0cos
010¢

LI6Y
916y

Nd LS°9TT0 61/L1/9 -1

W@y wewdmby 20130
suonduosqng 29 san(g
Juiuue|

QOUBUDIUIBIA 2SI AN
woddng sAanensiuiwpy
SIOIAIDG [BUOISSAJOL]
asuadxy snoaue[[a0sIN

SIDIAIIS PUE S[BLISIEIA
S9OIAIDS [2UUOSI] [BIOL

‘suj uoresuadwor) SIONI0 A

B A ][0IARg
UDWINY [[01A]
aIedy)BIH [[01Ae]

asuadxy [[01hed
12211pU] :[[0IAR]
dUBUUIBIY :[[0IAR]
SIDALI(] :[j0IAR]
yoyedsi(g :[01keg
UOHBNSIUIWPY ([JOIKB]
S9OIAIDS [QUUOSID ]
sasuadxyg

S20IN0S9Y [B10 ],

VIOMN WO Igjsuel],
puny J IS WOlJ IJSUBL,



¢ :93eq duUBLIEA 29 103png (LA/M Hoday qOd AINUoN
%00°001 00°0 00'ZCT'61 00°TS1°61 00°00¢ 00°0
%S¢£98 68'889°8€1 00°LII910°1 I1°8THLLS 9081778 1€6L9°88
%6E°ST1 (16'78€) 0000 amwnm ££°80¢T 00°SL
%98°661 (927985°¢) 00700001 9L798G°C1 €L Ees 97 SSS°l
%00°C¢E 00°089 00°000°1 00°0T¢ £ees 000
%L 89 66°CI8L 00°000°ST [0°981°LI £€°€80°C LO1T6'1
%00°0 00°000°S¢ 00°000°c€ 00°0 L9916°C 000
%0¢°T8 SL'ETIT 00°000°S1 STILETI 00°05T°1 66'TET’1
%99°16 00°00L 00°001°8 00°00L°L 00°00L 00°00L
%LTES ¥0'901°1 00°L9€°C 96°09T°1 STL61 000
%S 198 0L°LS9 00°005°1 0€TH8 00°scTI 000
%000 00°00S°1 00°005°1 000 00°sTl 000
%8<°96 86°L98°8 00°000°09¢ T0°TElTIsT 99'999°I¢ [10°L98°¢T
%Il (19'868°12) 00°00S°LLY Y9'86€°661 99°16L°p1 8T°901°v€
%9878 €TI16%S 00°00S‘v€ LL'885°8T 00°5L8'C L9°89%1
%S89L 07666 00°009°1¢C 0800991 €€°8SL7I 0L°66C°1
%18°CS 0€6¥9°CT 00°000°8¥ 0L°0S€°ST 00°000F 0975668
%EE 911 (00°s¥2) 00°008°1 00°SHL'l 00°5Z1 00°0S
%LLLOT (66°0L£°T) 00°005°0¢ 66°0L8°CE L91¥ST 98°0L8°¢
%E3 VL £6'915°C 00°000°01 LOESYL £EEEY S6'90L
%10°68 Py 8v6°l 00°000°¢I 9GS IS0°T T €€°€80°1 96°6S¢
%8L9L 0$'800°1C 00'005°06 0S°16V°69 LY T¥SL 00°0
%ITIL ¥8°Th9°6 00°00s°¢€ 91'LS8°€T £E 85Kl 66°661
%0¢°SL TC19T°6 00°005°L€ 8L'8€T°8T L9916 00'00£°C
%76 J0UBLIBA 193png [e1o], [enjoy 193png pouiag [en1oy poLed

193png w101,

6102/1€/S USNOML, 610T/1/S WOIL]

Jed X juarny

L)y

USR] [BIOURUI]

LIy

PLYsI( uoneyiodsued ], Juno)) yooweyL,

00c¢

1439
0res
0ges
00¢€s
06¢¢
$:749
08¢¢
0LTS
092¢
0¢ce
cves
oves
0ces
0rzs
061¢
€81¢
08I1¢
SLIS
0LIS
091¢
0S1¢
9419

Nd LS-9T10 61/L1/9 91

swuardioay 01 sjusuwifed 1S

sjuawde  [eroadg
SOOIAISS PUE S[BLIDIEIA [BI0]

Jurejy Anpoe, suoreiado
Jreday] 2 ey Kadolg
S99, 98BI X[

sasuadxyg Sunerad Atadorg
‘o) 3unerad( [erousDn
JUIBJA] IOJURD) I0}ISIA 79 JISUBI]
9SBIT I2JUS)) JOUSIA 29 NISUBL],
puny uonearday 1o0qe WSy
J8eisoq

SI2QIUNJO A

sasuadxq [ony

asuadxqg 9pd1ys A

Bururel] 7 joArI]

asuadx suoydoja

Junayiey

uoneNSIIWPY [OY0d[Yy 29 Fni(]
sasuadxq [euoneiadp
sasuadxy pieog

sasuadxg 20150

J0ueINSu|

SOSUADIT 29 S99,

WY mduro)



 :a8eg J0uBLIBA 79 193png (LA/M Hoday qOd Alyiuon
%9611 S $8T 06 00'160°LT0°1 9¥°508°CTI £€°€80°C8 857209
%bl'¢ - £6'L£8°006 00°000°0£6 LOT91°6T £EE80°LL 00°0
2%00°0 (00°5L¥°¢) 000 %E&m 000 000 .
%L1°6C S8TLYIE 00°000°st srieiet £eeee’e 00°0
%000 00°000°9 0070009 000 00°00% 000
%99 %01 (S0°¢€7) 00°000°¢ SOEET’S L991¥ 000
%00°0 00°000°5€8 00°000°5€8 000 £€°¢85°69 00°0
%8L°81 €1EL9°IE 00°000°6€ L8'9TEL 00°05T°¢ 000
%5196 19°Lyy e 00°'160°L6 6EEVIE6 00°000°S 867709
%66°66 90 %mlm,mm vS065°6C 00°0 - 000
%LE88 SITL8 00°005°L $8°L799 000 8¢C09
%05 6% 00°GLSL 00°000°S1 00°STHL 000ST°1 00°0
SILILL (00000°¢) 00°000°SY 00'000°0S 00°0sL°¢ 00°0
%80°6 00'CLY68€°] 00'02$°8ZS°1 00°8+8°8€1 000 000
%00°0 00°L80°018 _ 00'L80°018 000 000 000
%000 00°0SL°¥T9 00'0SL¥2T9 000 000 000
%00°001 00°0 00°000°C1 00°000°CI 00°0 000
%00°01 00°000°6 00°000°01 00°000°1 000 000
%E6°0L 00°5£8°0¢ 00°€89°[L 00°818°0¢ 00°0 000
%000 (00000°5) 000 00°000°SL 00°0 000
%0000 000 OUCST61 00°CST 61 00°00¢ 000

%C6 QUBLIEA 128png [e10L [enoy 123png pouad [en10y poLRd

198png [e10],

6102/1€/S USnoIL, 6107/1/S woif

189 & 1USLINY)

WLy

JuSWIRIe)S [BIOURBUL]

21Ny

PLsIq uoneyiodsued J, £Juno)) yoowe|[i,

0<09
0109
1209
0209
0009
0ses

8E€S
A%
0zces
01es

0816
SLI6
0916
0516
0€I6
0016

N LS9 10 61/L1/9 =21Q

Aepno jende) reioL
saseyoing ende) je10]
swoloig ende) 12y10

sI19][ayS/23eusts doig sng
JuI0d uorne[n3ueLI] [[370) [a0,]
apeiddn 1enduwo))
uonIppyAuawdeday] sng
uoneaousy 7y aeday Surpjing

saseyaing [eunde)

D01AIRS 192(] [RIO,
9DIAIRS 192 d1LO
asuadxq ueoT qNd
1S2I0)U] 19SBIT X3,

[ediouriq :9sea X9,

IAIRS 192(]
KenQ (ende)
SI9JSURI], [€10],

leq puny Surpuy parenrdosddeup
amipuadxy anin, 10J aAIeSY
pung VIOMN 01 .1ajsuer]
JAIDSAY J[OIYI A 0] IJSuel],
pun, [BI3UAL) 01 JQJSUBI],

[€6S dIDT 01 Iagsuel],

SI9Jsuel ],

sJuawAe ] [eadg [gro],



G :98e aoueLIBA 29 108png (I LA/M Hoday dOE AlpIuon
5L 0S— I TLTYSET OOOEY 19§ FTLSSVS8T S5086Cee ~ L9YSEST —
%76 Q0UBLIB A 128png [e10], ey 123png polag [en1oy poLRJ
193png [e10L Ied & juaLny) 1ua1Iny) U1

6102/1€/S USnoay, 6107/1/S WoL]
JUoWo)R)S [BIOUBUL]

pLsiq uoneprodsuea ], Apuno)) Yoowe|[i],

N LS9TT0 61/L1/9 2

sasuadxy [e10],



| :28ed soueiieA 79 198png QLA/M Hodoy qOg A[YIuon
%Sy 06 1$°606°] 00°000°02 67°060°81 00°0 SL10TT
%99°G1 ¥7'801°C 00°005°C 95 16€ 000 000
%I1$°TL 9TTTIY 00°000°S1 YL LLY 0L 000 6¥'TLI
%000 00°00¥°C 007004 000 000 00°0
%00°0 00°0Z€°01 00°0Z£°01 00°0 000 000
2%$8°Th 00°00¥°8 00°00LF1 00°00€°9 000 00°00L
2%S0'88 $L°982 00°00t°C STEILT 0070 7TsTT
20070 00°001°C 00°001°C 000 000 000
%LE'LS 0S°951°¢ 00°000°5¢ 0S'€¥8°1T 000 00°000°1
%L8°0L y1sce Tl 00°000°0Z¥ 98VL9°L6T 00°0 000§9°'LT
26000 (L8'820F) 00°0 L3'8T0°F 0070 0070
2600°0 (95 ¢LLT) 000 9GS €LL'T 000 000
%0070 (PL'067°6€) 0070 $L06T°6€ 000 6L1E9°L
2SS 671 (90'598'%1) 00°000°0€ 90'S98°v¥ 000 00°0
%S$0°€T 63°9¢€1°8 00°$LS°01 [1'8EFT 000 [18€Y°T
%01'¥S 8 OVLPLI 00°STh'6LE TS8LTSOT 000 01°08S°LI
%9901 TERTP ESI 000001LC€  Ce8Zrecre 000 6S7SC08E
%00°0 (00°000°9) 00°000°S 00°0 00°0 000
%P 1501 TE8TYLSIT 00°000°090°¢ TE8TYLITE 0070 65 ¥$5°98¢
200001 000 00°000°902 00°000°90¢ 00°0 000

%26 QoueLIE A 123png [e10], [enioy 1393png poLag [en1dy poLa |

193png [e10],

JBa { 1uaImy)

LIy a1y

6107/1€/S USNOIYL, 6107/1/S WoL]
JUOWIRIEBLS [BISUBUL ]

LS uonelrodsued , Ajuno)) yoowejL

ores
081¢
0LIS
091¢
0sI1¢
SvIs
ovIc
0ZI¢
001¢

£50S
4408
108
050¢
1¥0¢
010¢

00ty
920V
STov

N

MN

Wd 9T9T 10 61/L1/9 ¥1rA

asuadxs] auoydaja,
sasuadxq [euoneradQ
sasuadxyg 20130
souBINSU]

SISUAINIT 7 S99

¥ Iamdwo)

W9 wuswdinbyg 20130
suondosqgng 2 son(
S20]AI9G [BUOISSSJOI]

SOOIAIDS PUE S[BLISIBIA]
SIOIAIIS [SUUOSIA [B10]

BOIA [[0IAR]
JUAWIDIIYY [[0IABd
2IeOY)[BIY [[01AB]

asuadxsg [[01hed
10211pUy] :[]0IAR]
UOTBLSIUIWPY :[[0JAR]

SOOIAIOG [QUUOSIOY

S30IN0SY [B10],

2W0dUy SNOJUB[[IISITA]
ANUIAIY UMN
dneig Y MN

SA2INOSAY



7 98eqd JoueleA % 198png qLA/M Woday qOg Ajupuop
%L0901  (€L71897861) 00°000°1L2°€  €L7L89°69%'€ 000 10°8LL7GEE
%OLL6  pESTh'S 00°000°9€T 99 LS 0£T 000 000
%0L'L6 vESTY'S 00°000°9€T 99'PLS*0ET 000 000 -
%CE 06 59196 00°000°01 SETE06 000 000
%00°001 000 00°000°907 00°000°90C 000 000
%ILLL 69°LSHY 00°000°0T 1€THS ST 000 000
%8 Tl (17°8€+°97¢€) 00°000°S19°C 127 8EH 16T 00°0 10°871°80¢€
%I11°L8 00911 00006 00'¥8L 000 YELL
%ECES 00008 000087 00°000°% 000 00°00%
%01 9 (05°288°9L7) 00°000°08 05°L88°9S€ 000 €1°L68°0S
%I16'ELT (§T79T°8L) 00°000°SH $T'T9T'€Tl 000 0007201
%SL 001 (LOSS6°LT) 00°088°SLET LOSES'E6ET 00°0 89°SE1°THT
%6LT1 0T 09€y 00°000°S 08'6£9 000 $6°6
%1897 $6985°9 00°000°6 SOEIbT 000 &L

%26 JOUBLIBA 198png re101. lenoy 123png porag [enoy poliag

128png |10

JB3 X JUOLIND) 21N JUILINY)

6107/1€/S UBNOIYL 6107/1/S WoL]

Juswralels [eroueul g

1LYsI uoneyiodsuea ] £juno)) yoowe|[i L,

0€09
209
0209

00¢€s
8¢S
L9TS
99¢¢
€9Ts
09ce
0ces

Wd 92:9T°10 61/L1/9 21

sasuadxq 10
AepnQ rende) [e1o],
saseyoIngd [ende) [groL
surysiuIn,{ 9910
JUIUIISIAU] SUBJOOH]
apeiddpy sandwo))
saseyaing [ende)
AepnQ rende)
SIOIAIDG PUR S[BLIDIBIA [BIO [
sasuadxg Junerod( Auadoig
U YO
asInquiIay 23891 I9IUNR[O A
JUWASINQUILDY TN JaqUIS]A]
uonepodsuel], paseyoIn g
J8e1s0d
Jurures] % [oAvI]



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 5/1/2019 Through 5/31/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

14389 5/9/2019 160.00 24/7 TRUCK AND AUTO SERVICE PM SERVICE 27

14389 5/9/2019 80.00 24/7 TRUCK AND AUTO SERVICE REPLACE TIRES 300

14390 5/9/2019 368.35 ADP, LLC ADP PAYROLL

14391 5/9/2019 245.76 ALSCO - Portiand Linen MATT SERVICE

14392 5/9/2019 1,296.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL AND BUS CLEANING

14393 5/9/2019 49.45 Coast Printing & Stationery OFFICE SUPPLIES

14394 5/9/2019 372.40 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING

14394 5/9/2019 63.55 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING

14395 5/9/2019 124.99 CENTURYLINK PHONE

14396 5/9/2019 163.49 Fred Meyer Customer Charges fred meyer

14397 5/9/2019 1,860.43 GCR TIRES AND SERVICE TIRES

14398 5/9/2019 300.00 KNOWLEDGE IN MOBILITY REVIEW BUSSES

14399 5/9/2019 20.00 MAC TOOLS DISTRIBUTING MAGNETIC SOLDERING CLAMP

14400 5/9/2019 1,128.58 Marie Mills Center, Inc JANITORIAL

14401 5/9/2019 31.72 Office Depot Credit Plan office supplies / folders

14402 5/9/2019 48.00 OR DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES record check

14403 5/9/2019 1,186.69 PETROCARD INC. fuel

14404 5/9/2019 39.91 PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC - SALEM OFFICE

14405 5/9/2019 221.07 Rosenberg Builders Supply SHOP SUPPLIES

14406 5/9/2019 22,074.94 Sheldon Qil Distributors FUEL

14407 5/9/2019 1,223.80 Tillamook Motor Co. vehicle maintenance

14408 5/9/2019 96.00 TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC MEETING NOTICE

14408 5/9/2019 96.00 TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC JANITORIAL ADD AND LANDSCAPI
ADD

14408 5/9/2019 48.00 TILLAMOOK COUNTY SHOPPER, LLC MEETING NOTICE

14409 5/9/2019 735.00 TRANSPORT WISDOM, LTD cdl testing

14410 5/9/2019 2,909.02 CARDMEMBER SERVICE card charges

14411 5/9/2019 49.95 VANIR BROADBAND, INC. INTERNET

14412 5/9/2019 274.56 VERIZON TABLET DATA

14413 5/9/2019 144.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 303 OIL CHANGE

14413 5/9/2019 216.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST BUS 30 OIL CHANGE

14414 5/21/2019 361.40 ADP, LLC 05/10/2019 payroll

14415 5/21/2019 50.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC. PRE EMPLOYMENT DRUG SCREEN

14416 5/21/2019 70.76 BRENT OLSON MILEAGE TO PDX AND NBG BUS 3
AND 32

14416 5/21/2019 83.52 BRENT OLSON MILEAGE TO NEWBERG BUS 18

14417 5/21/2019 63.60 CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC. deg

14418 5/21/2019 839.67 Carquest Auto Parts vehicle expense

14419 5/21/2019 1,296.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL AND BUS CLEANING

14420 5/21/2019 850.00 CoastCom, Inc. TELEPHONE

14421 5/21/2019 349.27 O'REILLY AUTOMOQTIVE STORES shop inventory

14421 5/21/2019 (107.00)  O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES core return

14422 5/21/2019 52.54 Dish DISH

14423 5/21/2019 206.84 DSU PETERBILT & GMC INC shop inventory

14424 5/21/2019 523.87 FleetPride, Inc. vehicle expense

14425 5/21/2019 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat BOARD MEETING 051619

14426 5/21/2019 2,300.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

14426 5/21/2019 293.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC PAYABLES

14427 5/21/2019 50.00 JACKIE EDWARDS BOARD MEETING 051619

14428 5/21/2019 50.00 JIM HUFFMAN BOARD MEETING 051619

14429 5/21/2019 1,458.77 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER TIRES

14430 5/21/2019 50.00 MARTY HOLM BOARD MEETING 05/16/2019

14431 5/21/2019 187.95 McCOY FREIGHTLINER shop inventory

14431 5/21/2019 2,563.00 McCOY FREIGHTLINER vehicle expense

14432 5/21/2019 5,900.00 MEDIAMERICA, INC. MARKETING NWOTA

14433 5/21/2019 50.00 MELISSA CARLSON-SWANSON BOARD MEETING 051619 L/))

14434 5/21/2019 302.40 NORTHSIDE FORD bus 32

Date: 6/17/19 01:25:01 PM

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 5/1/2019 Through 5/31/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
14435 5/21/2019 17.10 Office Depot Credit Plan office supplies

14435 5/21/2019 6.69 Office Depot Credit Plan office supplies

14436 5/21/2019 1,153.96 PETROCARD INC. fuel

14437 5/21/2019 225.22 Pacific Office Automation copier lease

14438 5/21/2019 76.30 TABATHA WELCH mileage to sdao training
14439 5/21/2019 220.00 TRANSPORT WISDOM, LTD re issue lost check
14440 5/21/2019 43.20 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 27

14440 5/21/2019 180.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 34

14440 5/21/2019 36.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 304

14440 5/21/2019 72.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 104

14440 5/21/2019 115.20 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 301

14440 5/21/2019 252.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 200

14440 5/21/2019 72.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 34

14440 5/21/2019 180.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 304

14440 5/21/2019 216.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 304

14440 5/21/2019 72.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 103

14440 5/21/2019 79.20 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 109

14440 5/21/2019 108.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST bus 303

14441 5/21/2019 276.86 Western Bus Sales shop inventory

14441 5/21/2019 59.47 Western Bus Sales shop inventory

14442 5/21/2019 50.00 JUDY RIGGS 05/16/2019 BOARD MEETING
14443 5/23/2019 252.50 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE bus 30

14443 5/23/2019 12,009.00 ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE bus 32

14443 5/23/2019 1,476.00  ADVANCED DIESEL SERVICE bus 18

Report Total 70,771.95

Date: 6/17/19 01:25:01 PM

Page: 2

—

=



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 5/1/2019 Through 5/31/2019

Document Document

Number Date Payee

5513 5/20/2019  PACIFIC SOURCE

5514 5/20/2019  SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

5515 5/20/2019  HRA VEBA TRUST

Date: 6/17/19 01:25:08 PM

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 5/1/2019 Through 5/31/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
1970 5/6/2019 1,174.32 ALFREDO EVANGELISTA NWR VOLUNTEER MILEAGE
1971 5/6/2019 2,083.38 ALICE CONLEY NWR VOLUNTEER MILEAGE
1972 5/6/2019 2,211.94 JANNA SMITH NWR VOLUNTEER MILEAGE
1973 5/6/2019 3,009.82 JOHN REKART JR NWR VOLUNTEER MILEAGE
1974 5/6/2019 1,672.92 JOY WINKELHAKE NWR VOLUNTEER MILEAGE
1975 5/6/2019 439.32 LEANN CHUINARD NWR VOLUNTEER MILEAGE
1976 5/6/2019 3,833.13 SEAN REKART NWR VOLUNTEER MILEAGE
1977 5/6/2019 3,851.71 VAL HOLYOAK NWR VOLUNTEER MILEAGE
1978 5/6/2019 2,821.96 WILLIAM NERENBERG NWR VOLUNTEER MILEAGE
1979 5/9/2019 165.41 Fred Meyer Customer Charges fred meyer

1980 5/9/2019 11,879.32 K & M MEDIVAN NWR

1981 5/9/2019 10,648.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR

1982 5/9/2019 10,571.53 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. apr 19 regence nwr

1982 5/9/2019 46,488.25 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS, DIST. TRANSPORTATION APRIL 2019
1983 5/9/2019 133.95 CARDMEMBER SERVICE card charges

1984 5/9/2019 17,858.50 WAPATO SHORES NWR

1984 5/9/2019 1,389.75 WAPATO SHORES NWR

1985 5/21/2019 329.80 ALFREDO EVANGELISTA nwr mileage

1985 5/21/2019 459.58 ALFREDO EVANGELISTA nwr mileage

1986 5/21/2019 218.26 ALICE CONLEY nwr mileage

1986 5/21/2019 723.08 ALICE CONLEY nwr mileage

1987 5/21/2019 72.50 BRENT OLSON NWR MILEAGE TRAIN PROVIDERS
1988 5/21/2019 370.50 CHRISTA HALL nwr mileage

1989 5/21/2019 1,664.30 CoastCom, Inc. TELEPHONE

1990 5/21/2019 700.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

1991 5/21/2019 574.86 JANNA SMITH nwr mileage

1992 5/21/2019 1,744.00 JOHN REKART JR nwr mileage

1993 5/21/2019 917.10 JOY WINKELHAKE nwr mileage

1994 5/21/2019 (50.00) JUDY RIGGS BOARD MEETING 051619
1994 5/21/2019 50.00 JUDY RIGGS BOARD MEETING 051619
1995 5/21/2019 33.09 Office Depot Credit Plan nwr office supplies

1995 5/21/2019 45.09 Office Depot Credit Plan nwr office supplies

1995 5/21/2019 9.31 Office Depot Credit Plan nwr office supplies

1996 5/21/2019 225.22 Pacific Office Automation nwr copier lease

1997 5/21/2019 1,028.10 SEAN REKART nwr mileage

1998 5/21/2019 477.34 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. aprit rent

1998 5/21/2019 8,765.42 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. 05 10 2019 payroll

1998 5/21/2019 477.34 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr april rent and utilities
1999 5/21/2019 316.78 WILLIAM NERENBERG nwr mileage

2000 5/23/2019 1,983.81 JUSTIN SHOWALTER nwr mileage

2001 5/23/2019 46,649.45 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE nwr mileage

2001 5/23/2019 29,398.61 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE nwr mileage

2002 5/23/2019 16,733.75 WAPATO SHORES nwr mileage

2003 5/30/2019 10,205.92 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2003 5/30/2019 8,870.20 AAA RIDE ASSIST NWR

2004 5/30/2019 1,500.40 COLUMBIA MEDICAL NWR

2005 5/30/2019 9,024.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR

2005 5/30/2019 8,552.50 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR

2006 5/30/2019 8,814.68 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR MAY 24TH PAYROLL
2006 5/30/2019 2,438.11 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. nwr.indirect.trueup

2006 5/30/2019 7,631.72 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR MAY REGENCE

2007 5/30/2019 19,946.50 WAPATO SHORES NWR

2007 5/30/2019 _ 18,854.00 WAPATO SHORES NWR

Report Total 329,989.03

Date: 6/17/19 01:25:14 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking
From 5/1/2019 Through 5/31/2019

Document Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

4202 5/9/2019 180.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL AND BUS CLEANING

4203 5/9/2019 382.36 Marie Mills Center, Inc janitorial

4204 5/9/2019 3,025.00 US BANK NA INTEREST ON FLEX LEASE ACT
97249190

4205 5/9/2019 158.75 CITY SANITARY SERVICE GARBAGE

4206 5/21/2019 450.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE JANITORIAL AND BUS CLEANING

4207 5/21/2019 401.59 TILLAMOOK CITY UTILITIES water

Report Total 4,597.70

Date: 6/17/19 01:25:20 PM

\

Page: 1



'FRED MEYER CARD CHARGES

Date i_l_)escription of Transaction ' ~ Amount

DOUG PILANT CARD #1

B | TABATHA WELCH #5 | )
5/8/2019 |[KITCHEN SUPPLIES ) $ 54.22
1 BRENT OLSON CARD #3 | )
05/14/19 |BUS STICKERS/TAGS '3 2.88
) $ 2.88
| ~ CATHY BOND CARD #4 ; )
05/09/19 NWOTA MEETING MEALS '$ 49.18
05/10/19 INWOTA MEETING MEALS $ 127.33
 05/16/19 | STAFF/BOARD MTG MEALS B 50.31
o S 226.82
R
| CLAYTON NORRBOM CARD # 6 ! _
 04/29/19 BUS CLEANING - $ 25.42
S—— S — _|
| ~ Grand Total| § 309.34

. —

APPROVAL|DATE A -2 -19




UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 5/25/2019

Date  |Vendor o Description of Transaction Amount
|
DOUG PILANT _
4/30/2019 |[FRED MEYER RETURN - $ (19.98)
5/7/2019 |[FRED MEYER ~ RETURN - $ (5.79)
4/25/2019 [HIDDEN ACRES 'MEALS/MEETING DOUG & JUDY B $ 38.40
4/26/2019 |ALASKA B CTAA TRAVEL $ 98.00
4/26/2019 | ALASKA CTAA TRAVEL $ 263.30
4/30/2019 |FRED MEYER OFFICE SUPPLIES $ 26.35
5/2/2019 ' TORA SUSHI MEALS/MEETING DOUG & MARTY $ 30.90
5/6/2019 ' KIMMELS TRUE VALUE OFFICE SUPPLIES $ 5.49
5/7/2019 [FRED MEYER OFFICE SUPPLIES $ 25.75
5/9/2019 TORA SUSHI 'MEALS/MEETING DOUG & JUDY L 56.33
5/16/2019 |PARKSIDE DINER 'MEALS/MEETING DOUG & KEN $ 18.75
5/17/2019 |THE FERN 'MEALS/MEETING DOUG & GARY $ 30.70
5/20/2019 |ALASKA ~ |CTAATRAVEL $ 4.50
5/21/2019 |CAFE YUMM 'MEAL CTAA $ 15.90
5/22/2019 |ALASKA CTAA TRAVEL '$ 30.00
5/22/2019 |THAI SMILE ~ MEAL CTAA B s 43,60
5/22/2019 |SHERMANS DELI MEAL CTAA $ 22.00
' $ 684.20
| ~ CATHY BOND
04/29/19 |FIELDPRINT HIRING $ 12.50
05/02/19 |FIELDPRINT HIRING $ 12.50
05/06/19 |ADOBE SOFTWARE $ 24.99
05/09/19 |PACIFIC WEST AMBULANCE |[NWR PROVIDER PAYMENT $ 47.00
05/20/19 ENDICIA NWR POSTAGE $ 9.95
05/21/19 FIELDPRINT HIRING - $ 12.50
05/22/19 IRON MOUNTAIN SHREDDING - $ 63.91
05/21/19 |LANGAUGE LINE ~ INWR PHONE LINE $ 43,45
$ 226.80
| = BRENT OLSON |
05/03/19 PIG N PANCAKE MEAL/NWR PROVIDER TRAINING | $ 15.95
05/06/19 | TACO BELL MEAL/PICK UP BUS 34 | $ 5.00
05/17/19 |OREGON STATIONERS OPERATIONS/PRE TRIP FORM B $ 127.50
05/24/19 MTCPRO SOFTWARE '3 98.00
B $ 246.45
B TABATHA WELCH
04/30/19 |RECESS FOOD MEAL/ADP TRAINING $ 14.95
05/03/19 |SAFEWAY KITCHEN SUPPLIES/COFFEE $ 44.76
05/23/19 |GEORGIES MEAL/SDAO HR CLASS/TRAINING $ 33.90
05/24/19 |AGATE BEACH INN ROOM/SDAO HR TRAINING $ 180.94
' $ 274.55
CLAYTON NORRBOM
05/20/19 |NANI PAPAS MEALS/TRAINING CLAYTON & MARGARET $ 25.00
$ 25.00
Charges total $ 1,457.00
- Grand Total §  1,457.00 |
APPROVAL @ DATE - 13-]9




UMPQUA BANK

May 2019 Statement
wan Open Date: 04/25/2019 Closing Date: 05/24/2019

; 4'55 Visa® Company Card with Rewards

Page 1of 5

Account; 7790
Cardmember Service (; 1-866-552-8855

n ramr~] Mall payment coupon
Payment Options: wlth & check

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) BUS 30 ELN 68 19
NBalance . . . $145 Activity Summary
______ Previous Balance + $3,042.94
_________ Payments - $3,042.97cr
Other Credits - $25.77¢cr
Reward Points Purchases + $1,482.77
Earned This Statement 1,775 Balance Transfers $0.00
Reward Center Balance 32,038 Advances. $0.00
as of 05/23/2019 Other Dhe*”ts ] 20-00
For details, see r : Fees Charge 0.00
] jounJewaraselnimaty Interest Charged $0.00
New Balance = $1,456.97
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $15.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $8,543.03
Days in Billing Period 30

Pay online at

\Q—j myaccountaccess.com

g Paybyphone
(. 1-866-552-8855

Please detach and send coupon with check payable to: Cardmember Service CPN 001469460

UMPQUA BANK

24-Hour Cardmember Service: 1-866-552-8855

c . to pay by phone
. to change your address

000009792 01 SP 000638085636906 P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 3RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

Il|l|II"I‘IIIIIlllll‘llllllllll'lllllI|lllll"l|l|l|l|lll||lll||

T T a145R973
Account Number 7790
Payment Due Date 6/22/2019
New Balance $1,456.97
Minimum Payment Due $15.00
Amount Enclosed 3

Cardmember Service

P.C. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

T P L TR e AT R A B \\0



5
2y

i

-

UMPQUA BANK

May 2019 Statement 04/25/2019 - 05/24/2019 Page 20of 5
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service ‘: 1-866-552-8855

Rewards Center Activity as of 05/23/2019
Rewards Center Activity” 0
Rewards Center Balance 32,038

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.

This Year
Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 1,140 9,449
Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 635 2737
Total Earned 1775 12,186

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)
Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Paying Interest: You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. In order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in fuli by the
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers
except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

Make Life Easier and EARN REWARDS FASTER! Pay your bills with Automatic Bill Pay. Use your card to
automatically pay bills like phone, cable, utilities, insurance and more. It's easy way to make payments on
time and avoid late fees. Just call your service providers and tell them to bill your credit card. Enroil online at
myaccountaccess.com and find out more.

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

OtherCredits: 0

04/30 04/29 2093 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMOOK OR
MERCHANDISE/SERVICE RETURN

05/07. 05/06 5841 FRED-MEYER #0377  TILLAMOOK OR $5.79cr
MERCHANDISE/SERVICE RETURN

LeEE Purchases and Other Debits R
04/25 04/24 6408 SQ*TILLAMOOK GARDE TILLAMOOK OR $38.40

$19.98¢R

04/26 04/23 2214 ALASKA Al SEATTLE WA $98.00
04/26 04/23 2362 ALASKA Al0272126128653 SEATTLE WA $263.30

PILANT/DOUGLAS 05/19/19
PORTLAND ORE TO PALMSPRINGS
PALMSPRINGS TO PORTLAND ORE

04/30 04/28 1918 FRED-MEYER #0377  TILLAMOOK OR $26.35
05/02 05/01 2631 TORA SUSHI!LOUNGE TILL TILLAMOOK OR $30.20
05/06 05/03 5217 KIMMELS TRUE VALUE TILLAMOOK OCR $5.49

Continued on Next Page



UMPQUA BANK

May 2018 Statement 04/25/2019 - 05/24/2019 Page 3of 5
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service (: 1-866-552-8855
fmogctons. | Planfboueiass T o e

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

05/07 05/06 5929 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMOOK O©OR $25.75

05/09 05/08 6374 TORA SUSHILOUNGE TILL TILLAMOOK  OR $56.33

05/16 05/15 3979 PARKSIDE DINER GARIBALD! O©OR $18.75

05/17 05/16 0698 THE FERN CAFE TILLAMOOK ©OR $30.70

05/20 05/19 5904 ALASKAAIRINFLIGHT SEATAC WA $4.50

05/21 05/19 1513 CAFE YUMM! - #100019 PORTLAND OR $15.90

05/22 05/19 3818 ALASKA Al0272 128743014 PORTLAND OR $30.00

PILANT/DOUGLAS 05/19/19
PORTLAND ORE TO PALMSPRINGS

05/22 05/20 5454 THA| SMILE PALM SPRING PALM SPRINGS CA $43.60
05/22 0521 7239 SHERMANSDELIPALMSPRING 401ETAHQUSTR CA $22.00
Total for Accoun: )8 $684.20

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

Debits
FIELDPRINT INC ~ 888-291-1369 PA $12.50

05/02 05/02 4400 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1368 PA $12.50
05/06 05/05 4900 ADOBE *ACROPRO SUBS 800-833-6687 CA $24.99
05/02 05/07 8104 PACIFIC WEST AMBULANCE 503-6486658 OR $47.00
05/20 05/18 0594 ENDICIAFEES 650-321-2640 CA $9.95
05/21 05/21 0277 FIELDPRINT INC 888-291-1369 PA $12.50
05/22 05/21 8073 |RON MOUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA $63.91
05/24 05/23 4882 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $43.45

Total for Account 22 $226.80

Transactions WELCH, TABATHA

~ Creditlimit $2500

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount-  Notation
= = _ Purchases and Other Debits el :
04/30 04/22 5897 SQ*RECESS FOOD TRU TILLAMOOK OR $14.95
0S/03 05/01 0248 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK OR 34476
03/23 0522 2185 GEORGIES BEACHSIDE GRINEWPORT OR $33.90
05/24 0522 9172 BWAGATE BEACH INN NEWPORT O©OR $180.94
Total for Account 146 $274.55

Continued on Next Page



UMPQUA BANK

iMay 2019 Statement 04/25/2019 - 05/24/2018 Page 4 of 5
wegee 1 ILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Cardmember Service (: 1-866-552-8855

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transactlon Descnptlon Amount Notation

05/03 05/01 0736 PIG’NPANCAKE SEAS!DESEAS!DE OR $15.95

05/06 05/03 5106 TACO BELL #33926 PORTLAND ©OR $5.00
05/17 05/16 0035 OREGON STATIONERS  503-472-5181 OR $127.50
05/24 05/23 9968 FS *www.micpro.com 877-3278914 CA $98.00

Total for Account 48 $246.45

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

S Purchases and Other Deb
05/20 05/18 2724 SQ *NAN! PAPA'A ISLAND Tillamook OR $25.00
Total for Account =~ 7375 $25.00

Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

05/10 05/10 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $133.95¢cr
05/10 05/10 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $2,909.02cr
Total for Accoun? 40 $3,042.97cr

Total Fees Charged in 2019 $0.00
Total Interest Charged in 2019 $0.00

Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual interest rate on your account.

**APR for current and future transactions.

Balance Annual Expires
Balance Subject to Interest Percentage with
Balance Type By Type Interest Rate Variable Charge Rate Statement
**BALANCE TRANSFER $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 14.49%
*PURCHASES $1,456.97 $0.00 YES $0.00 14.49%
**ADVANCES $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 26.24%

Continued on Next Page



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT May 2019
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE MAY APR YTD YTD YTD %

2019 2018 FY18-19 FY 17-18 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 1,033 909 10,041 9,032 11.2%
NW Rides 813 540 7,949 6,484 22.6%
Volunteer 0 156 50 2,532 -98.0%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,846 1,605 18,040 18,048 0.0%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 3,522 3,667 40,369 40,700 -0.8%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 630 694 6,418 7,993 -19.7%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 2,897 3,259 31,704 33,635 5.7%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 1,419 1,030 13,645 10,661 28.0%
Local Fixed Rt Total 8,468 8,650 92,136 92,989 -0.9%
Inter City Service
Rt 5: Portland 824 857 9,462 9,384 0.8%
Rt 60X: Salem 956 876 9,716 6,387 52.1%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 449 646 5,472 3,220 69.9%
Inter City Total 2,229 2,379 24,650 18,991 29.8%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 168 197 1,780 2,277 -21.8%
Special Bus Operations 87 0 1,252 788 58.9%
Other Services Total 255 197 3,032 3,065 -1.1%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 12,798 12,831 137,858 133,093 3.6%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 18-19 | FY 17-18 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 6,394 295 74,013 71,149 4.0%
Senior/Disabled 3,654 1,477 53,992 51,609 4.6%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 904 74 9,853 10,335 -4.7%
Total 10,952 1,846 137,858| 133,093 3.6%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 18-19 | FY 17-18 | Change
Ride Connection 109} 810 697 16.2%
Tillamook Bay Community College 232 2,886 2,264 27.5%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 128 1,530 1,109 38.0%
NW Rides 3 =2 753 6,147 6,387 -3.8%
Helping Hands Shuttle - 86 661 885 -25.3%

6/19/2019

05-19 RIDERSHIP REPORT .xisx



Tillamook County Transportation District May 2019

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Operating
Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Ratio per Hour
Dial-A-Ride Services
May-18 1.3 54.8% 67.09
Feb-19 1.4 57.0% 67.88
Mar-19 1.4 58.5% 66.42
Apr-19 14 58.5% 66.42
May-19 1.4 59.9% 65.40
| STANDARD 1.3 65.3% 56.36 B
Deviated Fixed Routes
May-18 6.1 9.7% 69.00
Feb-19 58 8.8% 68.41
Mar-19 57 8.7% 68.35
Apr-19 57 8.9% 66.58
May-19 5.7 9.1% 65.35
STANDARD 7.0 12.4% 6460 |
Intercity Services
May-18 2.8 24.2% 76.40
Feb-19 3.1 20.0% 79.44
Mar-19 3.0 19.9% 79.45
Apr-19 3.0 20.2% 77.28
May-19 3.0 20.4% 75.96
| STANDARD 2.9 31.5% 72.86 B
Other Services
May-18 56 9.7% 57.81
Feb-19 6.1 6.1% 58.40
Mar-19 6.3 6.2% 58.45
Apr-19 6.4 6.7% 57.08
May-19 6.5 7.6% 55.84
STANDARD 6.9 10.7% 55.54

Dial-a-Ride includes Central, North and South Counties Dial-A-Ride Services

Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach, 4 Lincoln City
Intercity Routes: 5 Portland, 60X Coastal Connector, 70X Salem/Grand Ronde

Other Services: Trippers and Special Bus Operations




2 afieq

%9’ L 859°6E 229'2SSC ¥96°2LSC %St 029°L €6L'LE €l1'9¢ %9°¢ S9.'% 868°LEL £60°cCEL %< 0" 08L°L- L6t'2eL L29°€EL SadlAJag 41Ol 1830l
%9'ZL- |909°G- 002'9C 908'Le %L YL- |18 69 0SS %LL-  |ge- Ze0'e G90't %8'Ge-  [60L'L- 886'L /60'¢ S80IAISS JBULQ IE10L
%0 6¢ 9eC'vlL 16L'7L %¥L L (Ber vee %685 |9V T4l 88/ %L YE- |6LY- 164 [ rA uonesedQ sng |e1dads
%Lce-  [9¥9'G- Y961l 60921 %LLE- |86- gLe 9L€ %8°Le- | L6V- 08L'L 112°T %9'9g- (069~ L61°L /88°1L siaddu |
SITIAIBS 1BUIO
%6le  |€9E°LLL 085029 /81605 %9¢c [S0S'L 018 599'9 %8'6¢ [659'q 0S9'vZ 16681 %8¢ SEv'e 8£8'9¢! €or'egt AloIBIY| (1O
%ZSLL [8Le'LL OLy'v¥L  260°29 %L8LL [L¥0°L 6161 118 %669 [2sCC [ARAS 02e'c %82 |9/G°L 16v'8 1269 |puoy puelo X0/
%9'Le  |28SeY 0y8'6€C  8GC'/61 %0°¢C |S¥S Leo'e z8r'e %LCG |6CE'E 9L.L'6 /8€'9 %799 |0v6'6 6L6've 6.6'71 wsjes X09
%S'e-  |9e5'8- L0E'9ET  LE8'VIC %GC- |18 vez'e S0E'e %80 8. 29’6 ¥8¢'6 %0'8- 180'8- 2er'e6 €05'1L0L pueod G0
Ao
%l0 §9.°L /91’6501 20v'1LS0"L %19 0.6 /02791 /£2'SL %6°0-  |£G98- 9€1°26 686'26 %9'G-  |2eL'G- 999'06 86E£TOL N0y paxid [esco7 BjoL
%Z'e- 601'6- 6lL.'L.2  128'98¢2 %l1°¢C 08 or8'e 6G.'¢ %082 [¥86'C SY9'El 199'0L %58 28L°L L9r'ze 60202 K45 ujoourT $0
%L'9 ¥60'Ge Zre'00y  LvZ'GLE %Y EL |0LL G00'9 §62'G %L'G- |LEB - $0L'LE gea'ee %L'8-  |LSp'e- /21'6€ 8/5'Cv eliuezuely €0
%C'C 080'¢ PELOVL ¥80'ZE1 %86 G6L G61°2 666'L %L 6L~ |GLG'L- 8Ly'9 £66'L %S0C- |Lpl'L- 2€L'9 €lv'8 apisuedDO/SUBISN 20
%S - |00E'LL- €/6'0v2  €/2'25¢ %b0-  |9L- 69L'y 1% % %80~ |LEe- 69¢'0r 00L'0v %G, |262'C- 9vE'8e 8€9°0¢ dooq umo] LQ
SIN0Y PatEIRSg
%08~  |¥98'EL- S0.°9¥8  695°0¢6 %99 |¥il- 1v6'CL Lelel %00 8- 0¥0'8L 8%0'8l %10 1222 000°20S  €1L'%0S dvaleoL
%669 [2L0°GL- [ 43 S/¥'L0L %6°96- |/29'L- €S 089°L %086~ |28v'C- 0% 2es'e %866~ |69 'VE- 9 LECT Ve 133JUNIOA
%L'S 019°Le 122’685 ¢LL'eSS %Sl |evliL 8668 968°,L %9¢e |Sov'L 6v6'L 81’9 %202 |LlZe'08 Gel'8ly  86E'86E S8pd MIN
%9'LL-  |20v'0g- 186'0€C  286'092 %6'9-  |682- 968'¢ S8y %Z°LL  |600°L Lr0'0L 2€0'6 %609 |LE6'Er- €12'82 vrL'eL apiRi-v-ela
SOIAI8S BpId-VTeld
2ouslaylg | esualeyig sl asTs R 9oUalaylq | eoualaylg  SJnoH sinoH | soualayiq | eouaseyia . soussayl(] | sousieyl] enuansy  enuansy uny/ainoy
juadled | junouwy u8dlad | wnowy  8JM8g  90IAeg | Juedled unowy usdlad | wnowy aled ase4
61/81 gL/l 6L/8L 8L/LL 6L/8L 8L/l 61L/8L 8L/LL

uosedwon IpaA-I9AQ-IBSA

6102 ABIN Ny L

6102 Ao niyL

610z Aen niy L

610z Aew niy |

6L/8L Ad O3 8L/LLAL

101s1q uonepodsuel ] AJuno 9 joowelii |




%6'2- (zos'es) Z0Z'6EVT  V9BTLST S1S00) |20
BLBY $ %00 1044 snid = SIS00) peeyIanQ
SL oy $ aley Aunop Haeo %e'S 2585'92 9/6'€2S gev'iey 8100 1aIIq
%8'GC peSUIBAQ snid sng |lews %l'9- (1L08'89) 82E'B9E"L [STAWAI Y §1s00 paseg AunoH
Le'le $ ajey APnoH eI %l'e {€46'14) 168°9vS 0Lt'95S 51500 peseq obesin
%t v $IS00 10BIg snild oud pesysAg ienoy %L'8 699'92 9€E'096 299°€88 abeapy
ss0e $ 8)2y AlnoH [enjoy e @oualeyiq  edousiBgg 61/8L 8L/LL uondpaseq
:uoge|nojen ajey Apnoy #0F  SNid snid :uopenoes 8w Jad 3s07 Wwedled  JUnoWwy | 6L/8L AJOY BLILLAS
1500 uoyeNd[e) uonesadQ sng |eads 610¢ 4dy ybnoyl gl i uospedwion
¢ abeyd

%3 0z'0- X3+ 186 %L1 %G5G0 %L '8C %l 6C %6 0 Q0 9'c 1'e %8¢ [ ¥5'L9 L¥'69 S82IAI8G JBLIQ IEI0L
%1'Ge- SE'0- 99°0 o' %l ce %l'C %9'L %L8 %0 8L 60 S9 9¢ %te- 96°L- ¥8'GS 1845 mmuu_?_wm J8ulQ _E"o._r.
%5'8%" 06'0- €90 ve'l %8 Pe- %Q'e- %9'G %S'8 %6 LY 9’4 [08°) e %l'9 0P~ 99'96 0,09 uoneledp sng [e10ads
%681~ 91°0- 190 £8'0 %99~ %0 %0'0L %L0) %SEL o't c'8 'L %L L1270 06'+S 196§ ssadduy
$80IAIBS U0
%8702 S SL'S 059 %l Gl %BE- %y 0T %Ctve %6°G 20 [RS 8¢ %970~ Svo- 96°GL ov'9s STV EITTR
%8'le- 090 SS6°L =134 %0'Ev- A %B'S %E 0L %ETT 80 6T 1'e %91~ LeL- 9z'G6. 1¥'9/ apuay puei X0L
%t 6 2z e 962 se'e %8'9¢ %8'T %t'0L %9'L %lve 90 z't 9C %e 0 vZ'0- vZ'64 8b'64 wees X09
%48 60~ i8'6 Z8al %917 %61 %S'6E %S Ly %P'E 10 8¢ 8'c %L 82°0- (ST L0vL puejod 50
e
Sl S0°0- SOt oLl %E'9 %90~ %L'6 %L'6 %89~ A LS 1'a %E'S" R GE's9 0069 8jnoy pejeneq JejoL
%E G- 0E0 S9'L 6L %0°CL %60 %18 %Z 'L “%E'ST L0 9t 8¢ %C S 96°e- £ECL 0E'9L Ay uIodun ¥0
%SC- £0°0- s prA %6'El- %91 %86 %ELL %691~ L €8s v'g %6°G- ogv- £9°99 1804 EjuezZUBW €0
%0’L- L0 s0'L jelen %ece Y%vi- %8'Y %29 %692~ L 6C oy %6°9- oLy 98°'€9 S589 IPISUERVDO/SURISN 20
%l 9 SO0 0.0 S0 %l'e %t 0 %811 %Lzl %t 0" 00 FA ) L6 %l ¥ 6t°2- L8LS 6209 doo umoL 1o
N0y PRIERaq
%S0 L0 0Lez 1622 %Z6 |%0S %6 65 %8'vS %6'S 1o v €l %ST |69l 0v'S9 6029 gva 8101
%806~ 8T Cl- Vel [4=R ) %t 66" Yl LE" %0 %B'LE %0°LE- 90 60 Sl %L198  |SETLSS £€°GL9 86°€9 Jsauniop
%02 [4AN cC09 19 %l'€L %66 %0'C8 %CCL %0°L Lo 60 80 %l L~ L¥'G- 18'%9 8¢°0L S3pId MIN

%8 v~ gl'g [B:44 662 %l G5 %y G- %Z'ClL %9°LC %6l 0 =4 (24 %L'G- Lres 81’65 9€c9

B0IASS 9PIY-V-[el
WG Jusdied | 4ia Junowy aled aley HIQ Wsdied | Yig Junowy olley oney 0 1US2Jad | I Junowy INOH/ InoH/ W3 1Usdlad | g unowy  a1ey AinoH &gy AunoH uny/eInoy
abesany abelany xoqate x0qale4 JBussed 1Bussed
61/8L gL/l 6L/8L 8LiL1L 6L/81 8LILL 6L/8L 8L/ILL
610¢ Aepy L 610z Aepy iy L 6102 Aepy gL 610C AB Ny L

uosuedwon ssuewIOpad 3)e(] 0} B3 A

6L/8L Ad OI8L/ILLAL

1013s1g uopeodsuel Alunog yoouwe|jil




NWCONNECTOR

Coordinating Committee Meeting
June 14, 2019
Tillamook County Transportation Distriet
3600 3 St
Tillamook, OR
10:00 am—2:00 pm

Teleconference Information
866/755-7677
Pin # 005939
Agenda
10100 Introductions. Welcome to Guest Doug Pilant
10:05a | 1+ Introductions. Welcome to Guests g
2. Consent Calendar (Action Items)
10:05— 4 May 10, 2019 Meeting Minutes (Attached) )
101 5a 4+ May 2019 Financial Report Doug Pilant
15 4 Ridership Tracking (April 2019)
% Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress
3. NWOTA Standing Items
10:15— 4+ IGA Approvals Update Benton County
10:30a 4 Management Plan Approvals Update ) All
4+ Visitor Pass and Signage Update Doug Pilant
) Thomas Craig/
1;).'?:’3(?_ 3. NWConnector Marketing Holly Kvalheim/
i Selena
11:30— | 4. NW Connector Updates "
12:00p %+ Discussion: Adding Transit Options Page Jeft Hazen
12:00—= | - [ inch
12:30p
12:30— .
2:00p 6. Other Business and Member Updates All
Attachments:
May 10, 2019 Meeting Minutes May NWOTA Action Items

NWOTA meetlngs are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with

disabilities. If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.228.5565 at least 48 hours
prior to the meeting.

www.nwconnector,org

l" " ' DA SUNSET EMPIRE
BEﬂtDI‘I OUI’I if{y’él‘m TRANSPORTATION
mmsponmnon

B ISTRICT




Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes
May 10, 2019
Tillamook County Transportation District
Tillamook, OR

1. Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Meeting
attendees/teleconference participants included:

— Cynda Bruce—Lincoln County Transportation

— Jeff Hazen—Sunset Empire Transit District

- Doug Pilant—Tillamook County Transportation

~ Lisa Scherf—Benton County Transportation

- Todd Wood—Columbia County Rider

— Mark Bernard, Marsha Hoskins, Arla Miller—ODOT
— Thomas Craig, Holly Kvalheim—Trillium

Excused:

2. Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. (JH/TW)
% April 19, 2019 Meeting Minutes—Lisa abstained from voting on the minutes.

% April Financial Report—Only changes were the last dues payment was received which
makes that budget line item complete, and payment for the new signs.

% April Ridership Performance Report—Partners agreed that ridership within the counties
that are on the NWConnector routes should'be what’s tracked monthly. Decrease in
Tillamook to Cannon Beach ridership comes fromriders taking the Point bus to Cannon
Beach. Tillamook may evaluate the route-s¢heduling for the two routes to Grand Ronde.
In Columbia County, the routes that have been historically tracked are no longer routes
in the CCR system: And new routes have been added, such as service into Banks. Todd
will look at how to reset the route tracking for the NW Connector.

+ Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress—TCTD has sent theirs in. Lincoln
County’s is done. Theothers are still working on the data collection needed before the
passenger miles can be recalculated.

3. NWOTA Standing Iitems:

4 IGA Approval Updates—No changes from last month: Waiting for Benton County. Mary
will send Lisa the copy being approved the other partners.

+ Management Plan—No updates from last month. Jeff still plans to meet with Todd to go

over the Plan process and status. Mary will send out plan plus the updated Action to all
partners.

+ Signs—Doug handed out the completed signs. Cynda will put Benton County signs on
the Coast to Valley Express.

4 Visitor Passes—Redo using SETD graphic designer. Partners will get their extra passes
to Doug. TCTD sells the most of them in Portland. The number of passes sold is up 11%.
Visitor pass trip usage is up 40% from last year. 7 day pass sales have 28% to 37% of
total sales over the pass year. 82% of passes were sold on Portland buses.

Discussion: Family Pass? (yes) Kids ride for free (with a limit of 2 kids per adult), price
would be the cost of 2 adults. Market as a Visitor Pass. Continue to have one 3-day and
one 7-day passes.

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (4-19-19) 1|Page



4. NWOTA 2019—2020 Marketing Budget—Holly called in. In terms of who to target with
NWConnector messaging, it was agreed that it was a good idea to market to people who
already ride the bus. Need to be getting information to potential riders when they are
planning their trip, where digital marketing would be helpful. Particularly, riders in the
Willamette Valley. Ten to fifteen percent of riders are out-of-state visitors. The North Coast
Travel Studio is looking at how to manage visitor travel within the region. The
transportation sub-committee has come up with a pilot project that Cannon Beach will be
implementing this Summer. Lodging opportunities will be provided with information on
transportation options to cars available for their guests. They will be encouraged to send the
information out in reservation emails and as a handout to their guests when they check in.

Partners would like to gather more information before deciding on next year’s marketing
budget. Need some guidance first, learn what the possibilities are, and then figure out how
to move forward. Also, need some direction on strategic direction for'the marketing. For
example, whether digital advertising is more effective in this day and age.

Holly will talk to Selina and have her participate in the June:meeting.

5. 2019—2020 NWConnector Budget—Budget was amended to include the match requirement
for NWOTA’s $149,000 STIF Statewide Transit/Network granit application. Will want to be
sure to include updated website rollout, including trip integration with demand-response
application out of Cascades-West COG, as part of the contract if the grant is approved. Half
of the $5,000 signage was moved into Marketing and half into Website Maintenance.
Partners (re) agreed to the revised $314,000 budget (attached), (CB/TW).

— Col-Pac EDD Administrative Contract Renewal—Partners agreed to an up-to-three year
contract, with annual renewal confirmations. Mary indicated she will be retiring at the
end of September 2020.

6. NW Connector Website

+ Adding Alerts—Capacity to use alerts off website. Transit.app also has that capacity,
using their dashboard. Allows posting of alerts. Agencies with real-time data, adding
alerts to Transit app is encouraged. Some training from them is available, but written
instructions are available for memorializing how to do it. One integrated app that would
populate all the different applications: NWConnector website, Transit.app, Google, etc.
Trilliumhas a platform, with a new easier-to-use interface that will do all that
populating. Partner preference—Have a link on the website that will take users to this
new application, $2,000/year for the entire NWConnector system. Partners are
interested in getting started right away, and adding the additional cost to the NWOTA
website maintenance contract going forward. Text alerts are also important, but will be
integrated in the future. NWOTA has resources within current budget to add the alert
feature. Partners agreed to add alerts to NWOTA'’s existing website maintenance plan.
(JH/CB)

7. Member Updates

+ Lincoln County—Working on employee training, scheduling, shifts as get ready for new
STIF monies. First budget hearing went well. STIF Plan is in. Brought on a new field
supervisor and a new driver.

4 Benton County—Lee has worked part time to finish up STIF. Did a lot of work. Feel
really good about the Plan. Negotiating a new 5-year contract with their dial-a-ride
contractor. Hiring a new public works director and looking to align the contractor and
the county on the same vision. Would like to have own brand on vehicles, rather than
the contractor. Looking to refill Lee’s position and will work with all the partners as that
rolls out.

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (4-19-19) 2|Page



+ Sunset Empire Transit District—Had a situation where a driver’s license was suspended
and didn’t notify administration. Cymda will send out information on how to get DMV
flags on infractions. Don't get notified on suspensions. Got STIF Plan in. Continuing to
work on employee push back on recent union negotiations. Had a budget training with
their budget committee. Hope to get through the draft budget in one meeting.

4 Columbia County—Finished meeting with all the cities on putting a transit district on the
November ballot. Jeff accompanied Todd to Clatskanie. Approved allowing voters to
decide. All six cities are in. Next, the County puts on the ballot. Finished MTR contract.
STIF Plan went in. Jeff will send Todd a copy of SETD’s Facilities Plan. Todd also needs
update their Asset Management Plan, adding some assets to the State’s inventory.

4+ Tillamook County—Still need to meet with the union. Got last quarterly STIF payment.
At over 130% reimbursement. Going to implement north and south county dial-a-ride
improvements in June. Will start Memorial Day, Independence and Labor Day shuttle
service and shuttle service for the Creamery on Memorial Day. Went out for bid on all
TCTD contracted services. Going to CTAA conferencé. Going out for bid for STIF
planning, looking at some new routes that will include the Port of Tillamook Bay.

4+ ODOT-—Pleased to have all STIF Plans in.

Recorded: Mary McArthur, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Coordinator

NWOTA Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (4-19-19) 3|Page



1 :98eg aouelIRA 79 3198png . LA/M Hoday aOd AJYuopw
%S98 0v'688%01 00°000°L¥1 09011 LI'PS8C 00°068°L
%90°001 (98°7) 00°000°S 98°700°S 000 000
%90°001 (980 © 00000 98°200°S 000 000
%S0°001 (98°7) 00°000°S 98°200° 000 000
%81 00°0SL°89 00°0SL°1L 00'000'€ 000 000
%000 00°0SL°89 00°0SL°89 000 000 000
%00°001 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000 000
%SS'8b 97T 9E 00'0S2°0L PLLOLPE ARZLNS 00°068°L
%000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 L991% 000

%S TIPS 10°TSLET 00°000°0€ 66°LYT91 00°005°T 00068°L
%0006 00°00S 00°000°S 00°00S*% L9'91¥ 000
%EY€S STOV9'11 00°000°ST SL6SEET £€°€80°C 000
%000 00°0S2°S 00°0ST‘S 000 0S'LEY 000

%20 1 (00°00298)  00000LFI 0000509 000007 000
%00°001 000 000001 000001 000 000
%00°0 00°00€ 000 00°00€ 000 000
%0000 000 00°000°8t 00°000°8¥ 00°000°'F 000
%00°0 (00°000°L8) 00°000°L8 00°0 000 000

%26 OUBLIBA 193png ev10], [enoy 198png pound B0y poLiad
198png [B10], IBa A JU2LIND) JuaLIn) Ju2.1InY)

6102/1¢/S YdnoIyL, 610¢/1/S woig

JUOWIDIR]S [BIOUBUL]

PLYSI( uoneyiodsuel ], A uno)) yooure[ji,

009

SLI6
0cto

0zes
061¢
c01¢
[o1¢
001¢

[16¥
00vv
STy
00¢¢E

AV ST:eb:80 61/¥1/9 91
sasuadxq [e10]
AepnQ ende) w10,
soseyoang [ende) je10L,
s19)j9yg/23eudig doig sng
saseyaing jende)
AepnQ rende)
sI9Jsuel], [B10],
amypuadxyg 21mn,] J0] ALY
pun,j [e1ausn) 0} IJSuBIf
slajsuei],
SIOIATIS PUR S[RLIDIBIA] [BIO,
Furuiel], % [ABI]
FunodeN
OUBUIUIBIA 91ISqI M
110ddng aAnenSIUILPY
SOOIAIOS [BUOISSIJOIJ
S9O1AIDG PUR S[BHLIBIA
sosuadxyg

S20IN0SY [BIO],
pun,{ [Blauar) Wol I9Jsuely,
QWOU[ SNOJUB|[IISIA]
OIRIAl TU0D) 1aulRd VIOMN
renden) Sunpom

$90IN0SIY



NWOTA Action Items
May 2019

Action Items:

Assignments

A Mary to get copies of | Lincoln Co (v) (V)

Get approved by each partner signed IGA’s from Tillamook (V)

commission/board. each partner for the Columbia Co (V)
file SETD (V)

Management Plan Mary—Send out Plan

Get approved by each partner and most current W)

commission/board

Action Plan

Benton

Columbia

Lincoln

Sunset Empire
Mary—Get approval
documentation from
each partner

Tillamook (V)

Management Plan Updates
Mobile app for NW Connector

Transit language for Comp Plans and TSPs

Website Events/Trip Planner/Newsletter

Develop plan for connecting NW Connector to
events advertising/Travel Oregon application?

Open Trip Planner/funding

Jeff/Mary Mc

Doug—Submited STIF
application

In progress
Submitted

Bike and Ride Info on Website Jeff to provide the

Add instructions/video on how to use the bike | video and language In Progress

rack Mary to add to website

2018-—-2019 NWConnector Advertising Mary—Prepare 1
NWOTA Annual Completed
Report

2019—2020 NWConnector Advertising Mary—Get costs for

Develop a FY 19-20 Marketing Plan following PDX, Amtrak and

meeting with the Coastal visitor agencies Greyhound .
advertising June Meeting

Trillium to have Selina
consult

NW Connector Ridership
Update performance methodology assumptions

Compare monthly ridership year-to-year

Partners do
calculations

SETD, Lincoln,
Columbia ridership

Tillamook (V)

Benton (V)
Tillamook (V)

NW Connector Holidays Policy (Lincoln drop 1,
TCTD add 3 days)

Doug/Cynda

Adding Connector Partners—Meet with
Washington County initially

NWOTA Action Plan Items Progress (April 2019)

1|Page




Action Ttems - Assignments
[ | Transportation Options Mary/Matt Weintraub | NW Connector follow
on to Oregon’s July
Drive less Connect
promotion
NW Connector
highway signs
displaying website
info
Consider adding a TO
page to NWConnector
Website
[] | Transit App Alerts Trilium train partners | May Meeting
[J | Updated Visitor Passes I'TTD Graphics May Meeting
NWOTA Action Plan Items Progress (April 2019) 2|Page



aged|r

poau 3urA[osal

6102 Alenuer :91ep 0} $Sa18014 U] YIOM 10198UU0) MN

102 *10399UU0)) 97 01 91j10ads
oq o3 sxeadde a31sqam pazepd 8 A.LAS welsAs uoneurtoyur suoyd
| pejewoine ue jusww[dw] | HT
| soto1[0d S3[NPaYS ABPIOH _ UuLIp
pue “mmv:m gunuodsuely, uo — ing pue ‘pooy o8e33n] ‘s[euIrue
Bupprom ‘sfewrtuy unodsuery, ‘s9]0401q 10] SPIEPUE)S LIOJUIOD
_ uo £o1jod pajsduro) Joguessed Jualsisuoo dofeaa( | (T
. . > "Gg0g Aq uo1ed0[
7 Se0i AisMoy[e . do3s 10309uu0)) J0{RUW YDED 1B
b Shpurl e ALOL | snuowre I97j0 pue .deEwED
SH SRAPG T ‘SI9][oYs papuelq 9plaoig | DT |
i ‘3urpunj eoueyu
ssa1douad ug GG Apmig $s900y ysued], 939[duio) uosrery [ papeIsur om owmmmDEMEmﬁ
7 paprduro) JUEYNSTOD 8TH LOdo . pue mmo“m. 1ofewr uo .wm,rojw qrt
- “dIySIopII UBqIN Y3M SUNPDOUUOD | . =
WISAS JISUeT) [BUOISaT [RINI _
B 10] WOTIN[OS 159 511 ST ]BULIO] _
Suruueld din uado ue jeyy
peaide aaey siauired 10309uU0)
MN (‘mopum SUInpaos Yauowr
XIS §,9[3005) PU0ASQq) dUIBIJ DU} L1o0e alrgs

91 10 SUIPUSIXS POPUIUTIOIIT

[o03 Sutuueld a1} Jo SUOTIEN]BAS

sIaulred ANSnpul [oART}

pUR 19PN "PIBME 93ISqaMm 159q

dV.I 8TOT B PIAIIAI 91ISARM
“para[duroo (001 Sutuuelg duig, .

"9]1SJaMm 101991UOY) I}
| 1071007 Suruuerd dun e dopasg [ VI

HONHINTHANOD ANV SSHOOV dddard HAOYdNI ¥ TVOD

ale( 0] sSdIB01g

uonajdure)

BEXALA

610% Arenuep :9je( 0} ssar1doag

SUI3]] UOTIY

Ueld oM
J0IUUO) MN

Peo]

NVId NOLLDV YOLDANNOD



2o8eJ]|® 610¢T Arenuer :31ep 0} Ss218014 UB[J YIOM I0193UU0Y) MN

7| R - _ = _ "410¢ Ul Sutuurdaq satousse aAly
4oz g Epiiony
d 3 3 :
7 it L = KMEE = ALIL JI0ISIA JO 9ES oY} 10§ wrerdoad
[[enury e
_ SuruIRI] 90IAIIS JOUIOISTID
pue 3urures) IALIP € USI[qeIsy | )T
‘uoisal I
OIpMS [PABL], 4102 Aunoo-sAly 93 oySnoIy;
7 1SB0D YLION yum SUD{IOM ur Suruuidaq A[snosue)nuuis suop
ssaa8oad ur SuneyIe|H ‘GutoSuQ eis St e} uSredured UOTRULIOJUL
Jo01puuo) | orqnd pue Sunaytew Surolup) | gs
7 urupy "I009UU0)) 91} J0] uonisod
PO uo 4rog 10199UU0) J0JRUIPIOO]) JUITIIA[OAU]
_ | orqnd [euoiSar e puny | Ve
_ SSANHAVMY JOLDINNOD HL.ONOAd 3 'TVOD
suonels Jredaa 7
aiq ‘wesdoad yuourodwiy e 7
7 A EETTS
10309UU0) MN U3
U0 WOTIRULIOJUL 9PLI U, 9YIq Jyeas
popdwio) 1o opuoad ‘suondo Jsuesy uo VILOMN
Joured 01 syuass Suroholq "$910401q
pue s1s12451q Yimm J19y1 wodsuery 0] SUDjooy SI9pLL
109UUO0D ‘SIST[OADIQ JOUBISTP JIOJ SOTIUSWIE PUE SIDIAISS
-3uo[ pue -110ys £q [Paex Surpnour weadoxd
L Popa9u senIuawIe AJNUap] e 7 | OPRy/u oI © ysiqeisy | Or
*8U9Yon JTUOIIID ‘S IO Je1s
"SIOLIISIP 11} 03 AQJIMS ‘A30[0Ul99] S9ULIS-aYI-PUIYIq VIOMN
Poppe 2aey s1oulied saay], 6103 ‘UOTIRULIOTUIL STI( 9WIT} [BaY] 7 SJuaWROUEYUS AZ0[0Uyd9], | T

uonajduio)

Saey SWwal uoyoy peol NVTd NOLLOV HOLOANNOD

aje( 01 ssyI80aq



28eg| 8

6102 AIEnuer :91ep 0] SSa1801 Ue[J YIOM I0109UU0) MN

. |
99 [UIUI0D Suro%uo 7 | sdoy somreq “90IATOS [820]
-qns e gursn Jnoyym uruaddey 7 ' JOIPNIUUWO])  pre 90AIIS J0JIOUUO)) UIIMID]
7 _ ; SouIr) I0jsueI} ajeuIpioo) g€
“ures3oad joqid 10309UU0)) Y} L |
99]TUIIOD EmSMHHMWMS WMN 10J paxedaad s[qejauln) [ruoidal 7 _
-gqns e 3uisn noyim pajerdurio) : L w.H eUISLIO o1} 9jepdn pue MalAdI *901AIIS 10300UUO)) I0] |
q ; M Pal9] M L1038 [eUlSLIO 9Y) a1epdil p : I
,_, : | 01 99|IUWOINS I} FUSAUO)D) AOD  seqerpwun pajeurplood dopasqg | VE |
i = = O —— =
| ATIAT'TAA AOIAYES TYNOIOTA FAOAJIAI € TVOD
38RUSIS J0100UUODY MN sIouwmIRg SSOUIIBME
sspagord up 6105—8108 9seaIoul pue ayepd) nv uI9)SAS pue puelIq 258aIdU] de
|
~ “epuoge - " _
"asm aInnj uolsstuuio)) uoneyiodsuely,
J0J 9ATUDJE Ue SUTUTRJUIBTA / uo8a1Q) a3 uo 198 ue[d JUSUWOSRURTA
_ ‘pasn pue paiedaiad usa toc 0] UosIer O YIM JIOM @LOL 211 Jo uonarduros uodn
_ pesnpue p q rery . LOdo qim ¥ i 0o
aAey suoneiuasaxd sidnmp ‘uonejuasald jutodiamod sdnoi3 opimaje)s pue [euoISal
) SHOT Tany I ; P! pue [euol
oInuiwi-01 € aredsig a1epdn 03 suonejussaid apuaold | 9T
911SqoM UOB3IO[RARI], UO . ‘urexsoid Sureyiewn
: uerd SuneyIew [enuue Beis :
| suond( uoneuodsuely, ur pajsr] L10% oY U] W0S10) [9ARIL, SPIOU] 10109UU0) 108210 JO SIOPUOAA UIAIG,,
apIny) [ARI], Ul SUISOISAPY : I8} UL 10J09UU0)) 913 9pn[oul
_ P T [ SUISTLIOAD Pyl Ul 3 spnjour
0] UOZBIQ) [PARIL 1AM JIOM | AT
_ = Il =
"osn
,, ajprduro) 8toe jugjnsuo) 0} SI9WOISTO J0J SAQINIUT PUB
AS®o ST1BY) 91ISqOM B 9PIAOI] | HT
[ — RIS S
"SJUNOJSIP UOSEIS | _
911s(om 0} uepd Suneyrew eis : M
610g -JJO I2JJO UED Je([] SUOIIRI}E
S1UaA® [B00] pUe seapI dLI} pappy [enuue ul s913918NS 9PNOU] | JI0}IIUUOD ZOJSIA [290] U3IM 109UU0D)
ISt [ | az

9)e( 0] ssaa80a ]

uonaduie)
jo8ae],

NVId NOLIOV MOIDANNOD

SUID]] UOLDY




a3egl|?b 610T A1enue( :9)ep 0] $sa1301J UB[J JIOM 1010UU0) MN
‘Juowrafeuew vlEep |
I9)JeaIoY} | pue douruSIUrEW Juswdmba
pouelsJoN | Suro3uo :610g surpnpout ‘uoisal atf 10j DD
_ Aquowarduwy |  se13o[ouroa) UOIIIS[[00 Blep
_ onewone urppe e YooT e
|
$91N0JI J0JOIUUCD MN Ao Bmwmﬁﬁ Sunaodaur ejep a3 peis s IoquIOw
[ojewr 0} sjuaunisnipe SuoSuo /10% 3ursn ‘requIaul YoBd UIOI] BIRP VIOMN 1030010 JO soRId
awos Fupfew 1ng ‘paje[duio) : [euonesado Apyiuowr urelqO T L om%gmwcﬁw g€
_ *SOUIT} JOJSUB.I] 9]BUIPI00D 0}
sABM SSTIOSTP PUR ‘U0 BULIOJUL
JI0M SPaaU [[aS 10T 104 ssed 10]IS1A PUE 2DIAIDS
axeys o1 (LNIOJ sapeose)
W ol M Sunuress) INJOJ pue
! YRIJUIY SE [ONS SIDIAISS JISUBIY
| 19130 Yim angorerp e wadp | JE
, 1s11] perdope aq 01 spaau . i
ssax3oad uj 610¢ : aIdL Auno) [Iquex ojut
Ue]d JUSUWRSeURy PUue VDI wA)SAS J01puuo) o) puedxy | € |
d
sajnol o
o€ pue g AMH uo gutuaddey gadg ILOT (0€ ‘0T ‘g AMY]) SI0PLLIOD
15809 0] AS[[BA UO S[2AI] IIAISS
pue seuanbaay aseaoul | DE

J1e( 01 ssauSodg

uonajduro)
P8ae],

SUId]] UONPY

NV'Id NOLLDV HOIOANNOD

e

N



a8ed|s 610z A1enuep :2)ep 0} SSa1301J UE[J YIOM I0J02UUOD) MN
_ (vOI VoI oY1 01
_ JEIp JUL.LIMD SI9TLIR(Q JA[OSII PUE SIIFoIeIS
"oerd uI ST VO 4102 opuord | jyowegeuew [enuaod ssnosIp
03IDT) 03 preoq s Louege ourted yoes
ALIL woy seanejusssrdad ausauo) | ¥
_ (3apesi ‘SuIpun] UoNeUIPIOO) [RUOIZAI
fpunj uoneutp [eUo]

V.LO YHm 3utuoster] 10T ~09 (L1LDL) 103 3urfqqo] Ul 20UB]SISSE
LI1 103 (V.LO) Uonenossy

ysuel], uodaI) 9y o11no yoesy | HY
satorjod sayig Sunodsuer | _ | B i 2
.cm o vme \WWH o z,w _ 911 UI papuawItIodal seade o1doy
Dol B SR IPL 1208 109 103 sowr[od [eTUL YSIqEISd
Supfiom ‘s[ewrtuy Sunaodsuely, | pue ‘[enuew sonpeooid

uo £o110d pazorduody _ pue sew1od [euordai e doesaq | b

o 1TBReEo 6102 s103[oYs uo sdrysiosuods - %ﬁ“m $103RI9UAS SNUAL b

POHEIS 10N T 10 SUISTLIDAPE JSPISUO)) | 3 0 7 I0109UUOD M N 93e813saAU] J
| . 7 “osoz |

uostery | Aq sswuspIfs 1500 [euonerado
POITEIS 10N oeoe L0do [BUOISDT [BUOLIPPE 10§ 300]

01 Apmis pofielap eaedwo) | gb

sure1sAs stomaed 1seo) € [[e
uo JUDIRI] SN SWI} [BIY o 1102 R

up[q JUSUWIOZRURIN e ut Suraursaq 10)99UU ow *seseyoand Joleur J81]0 pue
ApnNiG SS900Y JISUBL], e ‘gurosup ‘$901A19S SUNINSU0D ‘SITUSULE
91ISqoM JUIOL e dozs ‘quemrdinbe aanooad

:ssa1801g uy/parerduio) _ Anurof o3 sanrunizoddo 101 oo | V¥

Po9] | [urot o ¥ 3

A0

ALTTIGVLS TVIONVNIA ANV TVNOLLVZINVOYO ASVAIONI ¥ TvOoD

uonsduro))

15808 NVId NOLLDV HOLDANNOD

e 01 ssaasoag

SUI9}] ULV peal




de( 01 ssaa8S0ag

uonoyduro)y
18ae];

e uo Junedpaed
Ul 1S919]Ul ST 9191}
J199S 03 S8qL1Y, 91 1M JIOM

SWID]] UOTIDY

288 4|9 610z Alenuel :2}ep 0} $S21301J UE[J YIOM 10132UU0) MN
T ‘Juowrdo]oasp Jo N
UOTIIPUOD B Sjusuraaoxdurl
ysuern) ojerrdoidde
9)BW 0} SI0309IIP
Sutuueld [eoo] yim
P——— | ereUIpIOOD pue s[esodoad pre—
uswIdo[eARP MAU MITAD . .
otiop Stad Afented Suroguo ‘108 ! P .@vmomo,ﬁw nv
axe syuowrdo[easp
MAU UM PagLiou aq "sassa001d [eaoadde
01 Y[SE PUE B3Ik 901AISS 913 1uswdopeasp pue Sutuueld [800]
uryim £LousSe [eoo] [oea 1e 01UT 10309UU0)) 31} 91ei8ajul 0}
s10300a1p Sutuued PLIUO) e suonoIpsun( [eoo] yim meuned | DS
SLamIE] *10399UT0)D
10199U0) 91} 9PLI 01 MOV 9]BIISUOWUBP
PaiIe1s 10N Arenuuy | J0JRUIPI0s) " 0] ‘S10]Ua0 JOTUIS SE
HIdURAJOAU} ous ‘saoua3e bE:EEo.u [e20]
MAM | 5400 yoeaI ‘siseq [enuue ue uQ) | gS
*931IS(aM 10302UU0D
oy} uo 11 103 a3ed e pling
parerduio) 8102 syuaay pue seapy duiy, Es—ww%%m | pue MMMWM%mMﬁw%MWMMM%M
1daouoo Suneyreur e 1oy uejd
uonejuswe[dwr ue doppasg VS
ALTTIIVAIT ALINQIWINOD HDONVHNA S TVOD
T o sSunoour - ] N
V.LOMN pue JLLS Suruiquiod
103 renusiod .oﬁ 18 OO'] _ UIDISAS 10309UUODMN
91ep 01 9881S UOISSNOSI(] 6103 SOTIILIOD Stoumped o1 10y dnoa3 L1ostape | ob
: : AIOSIAPY J10309UUOD MN nv :

e SUIYSI[qerISe IopIsSuo)

NVId NOLLOV YOILJANNOOD




28eg|L 610c Atenuep :a1ep 0} §S2I301J U] YIOM 10109UUO]) MN .\..w\mﬂ

9pTg-e-[elJ Op 031
DATID9]J0 1500 210U ] AR
, ‘sdir o[tuu 1se[ 91B31SIAU]
“JuemAojdure

BYesIT II91[} 03 3S0[0 S[qEPIOJe

auop Sureq Af[enaeq Su103uo ‘groT Sursnoy puyy 0] pasud|eyo
: soafojduis 10j sessed drysispLI swoour
ﬂ snq ‘d1ysIapLI swroour -MO[ 3™ S9IN0I SUIAJOUSpl
| -MOT [[}IM S9ITOI JO 23BI9A0D ‘s9IB] PRONPaY :SISPLI SUI0OUL
3UISEBaIOUT ‘SIB] PRonPay MO[ AQ UI9]SAS 10103 UUODMN
ISOATIUQOUL [BNIUDI0] o , 913 Jo uonezZIun asearou] | QS |

uonajduwo)

1981 DI T SION NVId NOLLOV HO.LDHNNOD

aje( 01 ssaaBoag




PROPOSAL PREPARED FOR NORTHWEST OREGON TRANSIT ALLIANCE

TRANSIT ALERTS SOFTWARE

JUNE 11, 2019

-_ll TrilliumsoLuTions




Trillium

Trillium Solutions, Inc.
www trilliumtransit.com
(503) 567-8422

Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance agencies
6106 NE Mallory Ave.

June 11,2019
NWOTA decision-makers:

Trillium Solutions, Inc. is pleased to provide NWOTA with a proposal to provide our Transit
Alerts software to your agency.

Transit Alerts addresses a known and poorly served need in the public transit technology
marketplace: providing real-time service alerts to riders in a way easy for the agency to
process, and easy for riders to understand. It leverages the GTFS-realtime specification to
provide up-to-date service alerts along with your agency’s GTFS data in Google Maps and
other online trip planning applications.

Additionally, through custom integrations Transit Alerts can distribute alerts to websites,
SMS, email, and social media accounts to notify users of service alerts through these
platforms. Along with full logging of past alerts, this vision will make Transit Alerts the central
platform from which your agency can create, classify, and promulgate service alerts to your
riders.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions about this proposal or Trillium’s
services. On behalf of the team at Trillium, we would look forward to serving NWOTA.

Sincerely,

./ g o

Thomas Craig

General Manager
thomas@trilliumtransit.com
503-567-8422 ext 3

Trilllum Solutions, Inc. e Page 2

40

-



Proposal contents

Firm profile and team ..o 4
GTFS-realtime specification and Google Maps ........cocoveevveiecrneennnn. 5
Work plan and timeling ... 5
Transit Alerts features, roadmap, and sUPPOrt....c.coiiiiicciciiiininna, 7
Experience and refer@nCes ... isiiieniinmmismeissmsssearmssssmressrasssss 9
OOt ittt e bttt et eaeaennas 10

Trilium Solutions, Inc. ® Page 3

24



Firm profile and team

Firm profile

Trillium Solutions, Inc., based in Portland, Oregon, has put nearly 150 transit services in the
United States on Google Maps since 2007. No other firm can match Trillium’s experience in
creating and maintaining GTFS data for public transit agencies. Trillium also provides website
and interactive maps design, website hosting, and strategic consulting for technology and
marketing all geared towards public transportation. Trillium’s breadth of services and depth
of devotion to public transit give it a unique ability to connect with the needs of public transit
agencies.

Trillium was the first company to develop and offer web-based software for maintaining
General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data, which is used by not only Google Maps, but
every major online mapping application. We continue to help our clients stay current with the
latest technologies and data standards.

Experience and references are described on page 9.

Team

Trillium’s team is small and fluid, with one project lead supported by three other members of
our firm, but with each staff member able to take the lead on questions when the lead is
unavailable due to our distributed project management systems. Trillium’s size offers an
ideal value to our clients. Low overhead means our clients receive better service and more
attention. While small, efficient, and nimble, Trillium’s team is also sufficiently extensive that
there are always staff readily available to assist our customers.

« Aaron Antrim, President & Lead Developer
12 years’ web-development experience, 8 years’ experience in public
transportation. Experience with fixed-route public transportation, paratransit, and
active transportation modes. Skills include developing data standards, web-application
design, digital communications, and marketing strategy development.

» Edward Groth, Software Developer
Primary developer of Transit Alerts, with 15 years of experience in network
administration and high-availability database management.

« Thomas Craig, General Manager
Expertise in creating and executing clear, efficient processes.

. Seth Churnside, Support Manager
Expertise in providing friendly, clear support for web-based systems, with experience in
data science and informatics.

Trillium Sclutions, Inc. ® Page 4



GTFS-realtime specification and Google Maps

Google Maps is used by NWOTA and riders throughout the United States for mobile and web-
based desktop trip planning. Google Maps is familiar and easy-to-use format for public
transportation passengers. It ingests GTFS data to display the static route timetables, similar
to those published in agency route guides, but in an interactive, and easier to use format.

One shortcoming of the GTFS data specification is that it is static in nature. It is not made to
be updated frequently, and the platforms that ingest it, including Google Maps, update the
data they use on an approximately weekly basis. Riders increasingly expect their information
to be up-to-date to the hour or minute.

GTFS-realtime works in conjunction with static GTFS data to fulfill riders’ needs and
expectations. It includes three components (vehicle locations, trip updates, and service
alerts), that directly interface with the data in an agency’s GTFS feed to provide information
through trip planners that reflects real, on-the-ground conditions rather than planned
schedules. Google Maps currently allows two of these components of GTFS-realtime to be
published in their interface—trip updates (arrival estimates) and service alerts.

To the left, see the alterations made to the Google Maps trip planning interface when a
service alert affects a rider’s planned trip. The trip update provides a more accurate estimate
of the arrival time the rider should expect, and the  s28pm O Dublin/Pleasanton BART

service alert provides greater context about the

- CCTRETED] towards Daly Cit
reasons for delays and changes to service. E ik - ke

A 58 min (16 stops)

. ¢
Learn more about GTFS-realtime at Attention Passengers: This weekend there will be
. no BART traing cunning between Fruitvale and
https://developers.google.com/transit/gtfs- Coliseurn stations alf day Saturday and Sunday
. while mantenznce crews upgrade the trackway
realtime { 10 improve relisbility and sefety BART wili

provice a free bus bridge Visit bart.gov for more

i . i . info BART to QAK airport service will be in full
Transit Alerts provides agencies with a simple way operation.

to create a GTFS-realtime service alerts feed (not arrival estimates). Service alerts can provide
a high degree of context for riders, letting them know about stops that aren’t served,
expected delays due to events or inclement weather, and help riders understand why the
arrival time information provided in a trip planner might not be right. They can provide this
information even when real-time systems like Automatic Vehicle Location and arrival
estimate systems aren’t reliable (as often happens during serious inclement weather or heavy
traffic) or do not provide full context for riders to successfully adjust travel plans (such as
when a detour is active). Transit Alerts can be deployed singly at far less cost than AVL, orin
conjunction with AVL, to provide passengers with a more reliable and complete real-time
view of transit operations.

Work plan and timeline

Trillium Solutions, Inc.  Page 5 C\



Task & description Time from

project start

PHASE 1 Deployment and Testing

Request Google Transit Preview for testing Service Alerts with 1 weeks
NWOTA feed

The implementation process for Google real-time data is similar to

the initial Google Transit implementation. Trillium will initiate this

process on behalf of NWOTA and inform Google of the ongoing

relationship whereby Trillium will provide support both forit’s

software and the display of the resulting data in Google Maps.

Perform initial internal testing 2 weeks

Trillium will initially perform testing of the data feed using
hypothetical service alerts for NWOTA.

Documentation and training 2 weeks

Trillium consultants will provide an online webinar (1-2 hours) to
instruct NWOTA staff how to use Transit Alerts, and what to expect
from the resulting data feed in Google Maps.

Provide testing account access to NWOTA 2 weeks
Trillium will provide access to the Transit Alerts application, and the

Google account that can view the test services alerts produced by the

application.

PHASE 2 Launch and Support

Direct Google to make GTFS-realtime feeds live 3 weeks
Upon the agreement by both Trillium and NWOTA that GTFS-realtime

feed meets the needed requirements and the agency is ready to

deploy the real-time data, Trillium will inform Google that the feed is

ready to launch in Google Maps.

Support and application hosting Ongoing

Trillium provides ongoing support for Transit Alerts, as an online
software-as-a-service. Phone and email based support is included as
part of a fixed-cost maintenance and support contract.

Trillium Solutions, Inc. ® Page 6

4O



Transit Alerts features, roadmap, and support

Transit Alerts features

Service alert creation

Transit Alerts provides a simple, web-based interface, that allows a transit agency to create a
service alert, and publish it in the GTFS-realtime format. GTFS-realtime is made to work with
GTFS, and leverages both intuitive metadata regarding service alerts and the base GTFS feed
to categorize alerts and tie them directly to particular routes, trips, and stops in the static

schedule data.
< Canceland return 10 3l alerts

New Alert

< Cancel and return to all alerts

New Alert

Thin

Start Time

Safect doto [ 1200 AM2

End Time

Selec( date 12:00 AM

Bescription

Cause Unknown Cause &

Effect Unknawn Effect $

< Cancel and return to all alerts

New Alert

Daes this alert apply to specific routes?

© Ves

No, applies system-wide or to certain staps

Select Routes
+ Selectall X Deselect alt
@8 17 san Rafael - Sausalito (10897)
8 22 san Rafael - Marin Glty (10898)
& 23: canol -Faicfax (10899)
@ 23x. canal - Fairtax/Manor Express (10900)
@ 29:canai - Marin General (10901)
@ 351 Canal - San Rafael Transht Center {10902)

B8 3k Canal . Msda Clte 2100070

You can refine stop selection by route

or audastditional stons

- 8 23 canal - Fairfax (10899) All stops Close x

East

+ Selectall X Deselect alt
m Hame Code
a2 SIr Francia Draka Bivd & Claws Df wapy
pLEws Sir Franeis Drake Blvd & Kent Ave Rl
FLERERE] Sir Francta Orake Bivd & San Angelmo Ave ATz
A2 Sir Francia Orake HS-Sir Francis Orake & Ash Ave AgdTA
2451869 Sir Francis Orake Bivd & Tamal Ave doars
2451871 Sir Francis Orake Blvd & Sais Ave AnaTy
2451875 Sir Francis Drake Bivd & Madrona Ave waEl

Trillium Solutions, Inc.

* Page 7



Designed for the real, mobile world

Transit Alerts provides ease-of-use for transit operations staff, in an interface designed to
work on both desktop and mobile devices. Users are guided through the simple interface one
small step at a time, so that alerts can be published easily and quickly.

Effective time

Transit Alerts allows you to define a time frame for your service alert. That time can always
start immediately, and be pushed to create a notice for your customers in less than a minute.

Alerts can also be set up for the future, so if you know of a disruption beginning next week,
you can set it up and forget it. Your riders will be informed at just the right time.

Service alert logging

Transit Alerts logs every service alert you create, as well as all the information assigned to
that alert. Whenever you need a log of your past alerts, or want to analyze how frequently and
on which routes and stops alerts happened, the full history of your service alerts is there to
lookup and review what happened, and when.

Transit Alerts roadmap

The current capabilities of Transit Alerts to be released in the near future cover the basic need
of warning readers when GTFS data cannot be relied upon as normal. Trillium’s vision for this
projectis much larger. Service alerts are an important problem for public transit agencies,
not only with respect to rider reliance on GTFS-based trip planners, but more broadly. How
do we inform every rider individually and directly when the service will not meet their
expectations?

Having a single, simple form in which to enter service change information is a stepping stone
to sync that platform into the numerous systems that agencies use and riders rely on to send
and receive updates on service:

¢ Agency websites

Email notifications

SMS notifications

Social media direct messages and feeds

Future advancements to Transit Alerts will automate this integrations, providing alerts
through more media without custom configuration.

Transit Alerts support

Transit Alerts is provided as a web-based software-as-a-service, which means that as the
application develops, you receive those benefits without needing to upgrade or download.
Additionally, it comes fully supported by email or phone with terms of service that fit the real-
time nature of the data it produces.

Trillium Solutions, Inc. « Page 8

\

0



Experience and references

Experience highlights
« Trillium is the most experienced specialist in the field of GTFS data creation and
maintenance, and in supporting third party applications such as Google Maps.

« Trillium supports over 300 transit agencies that are live in Google Maps. A complete list
appears at www.trilliumtransit.com/projects/

Selected references

Asheville Redefines Transit - GTFS Manager and Transit Alerts software

Reference: Scott Barnwell, Business & Public Technology Manager
City of Asheville

70 Court Plaza | Asheville, NC 28801

(828) 259-5501 | SBarnwell@ashevillenc.gov

Charleston Area Regional Transit Authority - GTFS Manager and Transit Alerts

Reference: Jeff Burns, Senior Planner
Berkeley-Charleston-Dorchester Council of Governments
1362 McMillan Ave., Suite 100 | North Charleston, SC 29405
(843) 529-2128 | jburns@ridecarta.com

Trilium Solutions, Inc. ® Page 9 /}')



Costs

Software subscription and support

Transit Alerts is provided as Software-as-a-service on a yearly subscription basis. There is no
implementation fee. All initial communication with Google and support during the testing period
is provided free of charge. Payment for the first year of service is due upon the “live” date of the
GTFS-realtime service alerts feed, agreed upon by Trillium and NWOTA.

$2,000 per year

Custom development for integrations into website, social media, etc. will be billed hourly at $125 per
hour and can be estimated in advance.

Assurances

+ All created GTFS-realtime data is property of NWOTA.

» Trillium maintains E&O professional liability, general liability, and workers
compensation insurance policies.

Trillium Solutions, Inc. e Page 10

i



O I. e g 0 n Department of Transportation
Audit Services

‘ 355 Capitol St. NE — MS31

Salem, OR 97301-2528

(503)986-3213

Kate Brown, Governor

June 11, 2019

Board of Directors

Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 3™ St Suite A

Tillamook, OR 97141-2730

RE: ODOT Review of subrecipient single audit (2 CFR §200.331)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) has been assigned responsibility for ensuring that the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) and Single Audit for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018
were prepared and performed in compliance with §200.3310f the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, found at 2 CFR Part 200, as applicable, and Oregon
Accounting Manual Policy No. 30.40.00.

Specifically, ODOT reviewed Tillamook County Transportation District’s independent auditor report and
related financial reports and schedules for assurance of compliance with grant agreement terms and that the
internal controls exercised by Tillamook County Transportation District in administering those grant funds were
appropriate. ODOT’s review was performed on behalf of all State agencies passing federal funds through to
Tillamook County Transportation District for the fiscal year. ODOT’s acceptance of the audit constitutes
acceptance by all agencies of the State of Oregon, although other State agencies may also contact you regarding
specific grant monies.

We have completed our review of Tillamook County Transportation District’s SEFA and related Single Audit
reports by its independent auditors for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and conclude that Tillamook County
Transportation District has materially complied with the major program requirements; however, a significant
deficiency in internal controls was identified related to sufficient segregation of duties. It should be cautioned
that internal controls play an important role in detecting and preventing fraud and protecting assets.

The review was performed by Inna Smyth, Senior External Auditor. If you have any questions or comments,
please contact Inna at (503) 986-3174, or contact me at (503) 986-3213.

Sincerely,

Margaret Cole, CPA
External Audit Manager
Oregon Department of Transportation

CC: Hal Gard, ODOT Rail and Transit Administrator ’/\ 6



Regular Meeting 5/16/2019
Tillamook County Transportation District P
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting '
Thursday, May 16, 2019 — 6:30PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Judy Riggs called the meeting to order at 6:29pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors
Judy Riggs, Board Chair
Marty Holm, Vice Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer
Jim Huffman, Secretary
Jackie Edwards, Director
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager

Brent Olson, Superintendent

Tabatha Welch, Accounting Specialist

Cathy Bond, NW Rides Supervisor/Board Clerk

Absent
None

Guest
Chris Kell, public
Linda Adler, public

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: None.
5. Public & Guest Comments: None.

6. PUBLIC HEARING to receive public comments regarding the proposed Dial-A-Ride
fare rate increase. Hearing opened at 6:30pm. No public comments. Hearing closed
at 6:30pm.

GENERAL MANAGER REPORT
7. Financial Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the April 2019 financial reports. The

District is 83% through the Fiscal Year while personnel is 74%, vehicle expenses is at
93% and fuel at 87%.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

1 U,



Regular Meeting 5/16/2019

8. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed performance

measures with the Board. YTD Ridership overall has increased 4.0% change over

the previous year. The YTD passengers per hour are +0.3%, the YTD cost per trip is
-5.0%, the YTD cost per hour is -5.3% and the YTD fare box return is -1.7%.

9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the NWOTA meeting
agenda, minutes, finance report with the Board. He shared the final new NWOTA
signage with the Board.

10.Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF): The District received its first
STIF payment in the amount of $164,875, which is above the TCTD STIF Plan’s 130%
budget of $134,800.

11.Planning & Development. None

12.Grant Funding - ODOT grants later in meeting to Amend inter-city grant agreement.
Director Huffman asked if there are 2 inter-city services. GM Doug Pilant confirmed
that there are 2. Director Holm asked if we are receiving funds from the payroll tax.
GM Doug Pilant stated approximately 90% of the transit funds are returned to
Tillamook County. He stated he would verify and let the Board know if his estimate
is incorrect. ODOT receives their portions before disbursement. Director Huffman
asked if other Directors can attend the next OTA conference to understand grant
better. GM Doug Pilant stated all Directors can  come and he encouraged them to
attend.

13.Facility/Property Management:

a. Transit Visitors Center — GM Doug Pilant will have a lease extension later in
meeting. Current contract expires November 2019. District is required to give
180 days’ notice of intent to renew. Director Hanenkrat asked about
maintenance costs. GM Doug Pilant stated the District is required to cover all
maintenance.

b. Post office bus stop — Working on stop at the post office.

c. Janitorial and Landscaping Contracts — are on agenda to be adopting later in
meeting.

14.Miscellaneous:
a. NW Rides Brokerage

i. Ecolane — Sunset is up and running. Director Huffman asked if Brent
Olson helped them. He said yes.

ii. Volunteer Driver Program — Staff is beginning a process to take over the
DHS volunteer program. Successfully completed the next quarter true
up mid-April and expecting funds within a week. Plans to add the DHS
volunteers to NW Rides by the next fiscal year.

b. Dial-A-Ride Fare Policy. Fare will increase from $1.50 to $2.00 for discounted
fares and from $3 to $4 for regular fares. Going into effect July 18t Will bring
fare policy to June board meeting.

c. Collective Bargaining Meeting — Next meeting scheduled at the District on July
30t and 31st.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2 Ll/l



Regular Meeting 5/16/2019

CONSENT CALENDAR

15. Motion: Approval of Minutes of April 18, 2019 Regular Board Meetings

16. Motion: Acceptance of Financial Report: April 2019

17.Motion to Amend TCTD Public Records Policy No. 20

18. Motion Authorizing GM to Execute Letter of Intent to Exercise the Option to Renew
Transit Visitor Center Lease for an additional 10-years

Motion by Director Holm to adopt the Consent Calendar, with noted corrections to the

minutes. Motion Seconded by Director Edwards. Board Chair Judy Riggs called for
further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,

Carlson-Swanson and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Position 5 vacant.

ACTION ITEMS

19. Resolution 19-05 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Enter into a Janitorial Services
Agreement with Chrissy’s Cleaning Services for the TCTD Administrative Building

GM Doug Pilant discussed the Resolution with the Board. Director Holm asked about the
differences between Resolutions 19-05 & 19-06. GM Doug Pilant shared that there are
two separate duties of cleaning now that there are more people in the building.

Motion by Director Huffman to approve Resolution 19-05 In the Matter of Authorizing the

GM to Enter into a Janitorial Services Agreement with Chrissy’s Cleaning Services for the

TCTD Administrative Building. Motion Seconded by Director Edwards. Board Chair Judy
Riggs called for further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,

Carlson-Swanson and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Position 5 vacant.

20.Resolution 19-06 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute a Janitorial Services
Agreement with Marie Mills Center for the TCTD Administrative Building

GM Doug Pilant discussed the Resolution with the Board.

Motion by Director Holm to approve Resolution 19-06 In the Matter of Authorizing the

GM to Execute a Janitorial Services Agreement with Marie Mills Center for the TCTD

Administrative Building. Motion Seconded by Director Huffman. Board Chair Judy Riggs
called for further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,

Carlson-Swanson and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Position 5 vacant.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.
3 b



Regular Meeting 5/16/2019
21.Resolution 19-07 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute a Janitorial Services
Agreement with Marie Mills Center for the Downtown Transit Visitor Center

GM Doug Pilant discussed the Resolution with the Board.

Motion by Director Carlson-Swanson to Resolution 19-07 In the Matter of Authorizing the

GM to Execute a Janitorial Services Agreement with Marie Mills Center for the Downtown

Transit Visitor Center. Motion Seconded by Director Holm. Board Chair Judy Riggs
called for further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,

Carlson-Swanson and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Position 5 vacant.

22.Resolution 19-08 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Enter into a Landscaping
Services Agreement with North Coast Lawns

GM Doug Pilant discussed the Resolution with the Board.

Motion by Director Huffman to Resolution 19-08 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to

Enter into a Landscaping Services Agreement with North Coast Lawns. Motion Seconded

by Director Carlson-Swanson. Board Chair Judy Riggs called for further discussion;
followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,

Carlson-Swanson and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Position 5 vacant.

23.Resolution 19-09 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Enter into a Personal Services
Agreement with Col-Pac Economic Development District for NWOTA Administrative Support
Services

GM Doug Pilant explained Resolution 19-09 with the Board. Director Holm asked why
TCTD is approving Col-Pac contract. GM Doug Pilant explained that TCTD is the fiscal
agent for NWOTA and has the authority to execute contracts. Director Holm asked if it
would be possible in the future for them to adopt their own contracts. GM Doug Pilant
explained the NWOTA partners do not support an independent NWOTA agency and will
only support an IGA where a local agency assumes fiscal agent responsibilities.

Motion by Director Huffman to Resolution 19-09 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to

Enter into a Personal Services Agreement with Col-Pac. Motion Seconded by Director

Edwards. Board Chair Judy Riggs called for further discussion; followed by none, she
called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,

Carlson-Swanson and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Position 5 vacant.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

% 4



Regular Meeting 5/16/2019

24 .Resolution 19-10 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to convert two (2) part-time dial-
a-ride driver positions to two (2) fulltime dial-a-ride driver positions

GM Doug Pilant reviewed the Memo to the Board explaining the purpose of the
Resolution. Resolution 19-10 implements the TCTD STIF action plan to provide full time
driver positions for North and South County. Director Hanenkrat noted an error in the
wherefores that needed to be corrected to 2 full time. Director Holm asked if the STIF
money calls all the expense of increased positions. GM Doug Pilant explained the District
already funds part-time positions where the drivers are actually working fulltime shifts.
He explained that STIF funds would be funding the benefits for these positions to be
fulltime positions. Director Huffman said the volunteer program should not be lost in this
process. GM Doug Pilant stated the District is always looking to recruit volunteers.

Motion by Director Holm to Resolution 19-10 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to

convert two (2) part-time dial-a-ride driver positions into two (2) fulltime dial-a-ride driver

positions, with noted correction. Motion Seconded by Director Edwards. Board Chair
Judy Riggs called for further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,

Carlson-Swanson and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Position 5 vacant.

25.Resolution 19-11 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Amend ODOT Section 5311(f)
Grant Agreement No. 31972 to support Intercity Services

Motion by Director Holm to Resolution 19-11 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to

Amend ODOT Section 5311(f) Grant Agreement No. 31972 to support Intercity Services.

Motion Seconded by Director Huffman. Board Chair Judy Riggs called for further
discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,

Carlson-Swanson and Board Chair Judy Riggs.

Position 5 vacant.

26.Resolution 19-12 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to Execute ODOT Section 5311
Grant Agreement No. 33435 to support rural public transit services

GM Doug Pilant discussed the Resolution with the Board. Director Huffman asked if we
are getting buses with this. GM Doug Pilant stated this grant only covers operations.

Motion by Director Huffman to Resolution 19-12 In the Matter of Authorizing the GM to
Execute ODOT Section 5311 Grant Agreement No. 33435 to support rural public transit

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

5 A



Regular Meeting 5/16/2019
services. Motion Seconded by Director Carlson-Swanson. Board Chair Judy Riggs
called for further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Edwards, Hanenkrat, Holm, Huffman,
Carlson-Swanson and Board Chair Judy Riggs.
Position 5 vacant.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

27.SDAO Board Assessment — Scheduled for July 18, 2019 for 4:30pm, followed by a
meal and board meeting. Director Huffman asked if the Directors could receive a copy
of the strategic plan for the meeting. GM Doug Pilant agreed to have the strategic plan
available.

28. Staff Comments/Concerns
GM Doug Pilant: Told a joke that he said Ronny would appreciate and share with the
Board.
Superintendent Brent Olson: None.
Accounting Specialist Tabatha Welch: None.
NWR Supervisor/Board Clerk Cathy Bond: None.

29.Board of Directors Comments/Concerns
Jim Huffman — He hoped to be back again someday.
Judy Riggs — None.
Marty Holm — Is budget meeting on May 30, 2019 at 6 or 6:30pm. GM Doug Pilant
confirmed 6:30pm
Jackie Edwards — None.
Gary Hanenkrat — None.
Melissa Carlson-Swanson — None.

UPCOMING EVENTS
Parade and Fair calendar attached to Agenda.

Adjournment: Board Chair Riggs adjourned the meeting at 7:14pm.

These minutes approved this 20" day of June, 2019.
ATTEST:

Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only texi enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

6 ;g\



Budget Meeting 5/30/2019

Tillamook County Transportation District L
FY 2019-2020 TCTD Budget Committee Meeting :
Thursday, May 30, 2019 — 6:00PM
Transportation Building

3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR

Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Judy Riggs called the meeting to order at 6:00pm
2. Roll Call:
Budget Committee Members Present:

Judy Riggs, Marty Holm, Gary Hanenkrat, Jim Huffman, Jackie Edwards, Melissa
Carlson-Swanson, Robin Taylor, Carol McAndrew, Pat Ryan and Ron Rush.

TCTD Staff Members Present:
Budget Officer/General Manager Doug Pilant, Accounting Specialist Tabatha Welch
and NW Rides Supervisor/Board Clerk Cathy Bond.

Committee Members Absent:
Anita Hanakahi, Karen Allenbrand and Bill Hatton.

Guest
Linda Adler, public

3. Election of TCTD Budget Committee Chair for FY 2019-2020

Motion by Carol McAndrew to appoint Marty Holm as Budget Committee Chair for FY
2019-2020. Motion Seconded by Director Edwards. Board Chair Judy Riggs called
for further discussion; followed by none, she called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY
4. Reading and acceptance of the Budget Officer’'s message

Committee Chair Marty Holm read the budget officer's message for FY2019-2020 into
the record.

Carol McAndrew congratulated GM Doug Pilant for being successful in obtaining the
grants. Carol McAndrew asked what services does the NWOTA Benton Rural
Services cover. GM Doug Pilant explained they provide Dial-A-Ride and Paratransit
services in Corvallis area and commuter bus service between Corvallis and Newport
and a route to Adair Village. Director Huffman asked if there is a Portland connection
from Adair Village to Portland. GM Doug Pilant stated there is not a connection to
Portland.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

1 ¢

Foa

| ]

(o



Budget Meeting 5/30/2019
5. Line-by-line discussion of the FY 2019-2020 budget by fund

Budget Officer Doug Pilant reviewed the Budget line-by-line with the Committee while
facilitating discussions and answered questions. By consensus, there were no noted
changes to the Budget.

6. Approval of the TCTD FY 2019-2020 budget as presented or amended

Ron Rush Abstained from voting. He did comment further that he was on the steering
committee in the 1980s and is amazed how much the District has prospered from start
to finish. GM Doug Pilant stated the District wouldn’t be what it is today without the
leadership of those original members and committees. Ron Rush also asked if
Director Huffman should abstain from voting since he sits on the Marie Mills board. It
was confirmed that he would not need to abstain.

Carol McAndrew complimented GM Doug Pilant for doing such a great job of
managing the District and is proud of how the reputation and quality sets examples
for other agencies.

MOTION by Judy Riggs to approve the FY 2019-2020 Tillamook County
Transportation District budget and send it to the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors for a public Budget Hearing. Motion seconded by Carol
McAndrew. Committee Chair Marty Holm called for further discussion, followed by
none, he then called for a vote.

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

MOTION by Ron Rush that the TCTD Budget Committee approve the 2019-2020
fiscal year budget in the amount of $11,067,102.00. Motion seconded by Jim Huffman.
Committee Chair Marty Holm called for further discussion, followed by none, he then
called for a vote.

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

MOTION by Carol McAndrew that the TCTD Budget Committee approves taxes for
the 2019-2020 fiscal year at the rate of $0.20 per $1,000 of assessed value for
operating purposes in the General Fund. Motion seconded by Judy Riggs. Committee
Chair Marty Holm called for further discussion, followed by none, he then called for a
vote.

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

7. Committee Member Comments/Concerns

Judy Riggs — Thanks for all the hard work.

Marty Holm — Thanked everyone for participating and appreciates the transparency.
He doesn’t want to underestimate the value of the NW Rides Brokerage. Valuable
and worthwhile.

Jim Huffman — Pointed out that retired Board Chair Bob Kenney was instrumental in
the original steering committee with Ron Rush and he appreciates his dedication to
the District as well.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2



Budget Meeting 5/30/2019

UPCOMING EVENTS
8. Adjournment: Committee Chair Marty Holm adjourned the meeting at 7:24pm.

These minutes approved this 20t day of June 2019.
ATTEST:

Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

3 -



Tillamook County Transportation District

VOLUNTEER HANDBOOK

RIDES

3600 Third Street, Suite B
Tillamook, Oregon 97141
Phone 888-793-0439

Fax 503-815-2384
nwrides@tillamookbus.com

55



Goal

This handbook is designed to provide NW Rides Volunteer
Drivers with a basic orientation to the policies and guidelines
of Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) and NW
Rides. Please refer to it as questions arise and contact the
Brokerage Supervisor by phone or email if you have
additional questions or comments. From time to time, NW
Rides offers advanced and supplemental training on a
variety of related topics.

ijPage

oL



Volunteer Position DesCHPONS. .........ocviiiieecr e 1
Hours of Service and HOlAAYS ...........ouviviiieeeeeiee e 2
Confidentiality s m s tatic s entossnsssomres 2
Harassment-Free ServiCe. ..o 2
Required for Pre-Employment .............oveiieiieiee oo, 2
Volunteer Driver Insurance Statement...........ccooevvieie v 2
Workers' Compensation INSUFANCE ..........ooveeeeoeoeeeeeoe oo 3
Hands-0n Training ..cuusssssmimasios i sisimmirmmmemmenrmmtmmramrgmesscessmsensosmmramee 3
Accident and Injury REPOMING......c.oveiiiiiieiceee oo 3
REPOItiNg YOUr HOUTS ...t es e, 4
REIMDUISEMENT . ussmsiusisissms o s ssr i sieies simmmmas someaenesseseseees 4
General GUIAEIINES .........coviiiiiiiii et e e 4
Personal Attendants, Children and Guest Riders Policy.........c.ooooveeveerevveeeorin 5
ANIMAL POCY ..ot 6

i|Page

TABLE OF CONTENTS

2

"/



Volunteer Position Descriptions

Job Title: NW Rides Volunteer Driver

Supervisor.  Brokerage Supervisor

General Description:

NW Rides volunteer drivers will provide eligible clients living in
Clatsop, Columbia and Tillamook counties non-emergency
medical transportation (NEMT) service to medical appointments.

Primary Duties:

Transport NW Rides clients to and from medically related appointments in
an efficient, safe, and reliable manner.

Maintain excellent working relationship with NW Rides dispatchers and
staff to ensure that the service is provided efficiently.

Maintain accurate pick-up, drop-off and mileage records.

Report all client incidents that may occur during service delivery.

Attend required training and coordination events.

Perform routine vehicle inspections.

Qualifications:

Must be 25 years of age or older and submit DMV driving record
demonstrating at least seven (7) year safe driving and meet the Special
District Association of Oregon (“SDAQ”) Motor Vehicle Report Guidelines.
Must have a privately-owned motor vehicle.

Must carry vehicle and liability of at least $100,000 Bodily, $300,000
Liability, $100,000 Property per person/each occurrence.

Must complete Passenger Assistance Safety and Sensitivity (PASS),
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPPA), and
National Safety Council or SMITH defensive driver training curriculums.
Must pass a pre-employment drug and alcohol screening.

Must pass criminal background check.

Must have a comprehensive knowledge of the Clatsop, Columbia and
Tillamook counties region.

Must carry a mobile device to maintain constant communication with NW
Rides staff and dispatchers.

Must provide three references of character from non-relatives.

Must show capacity and aptitude for providing driver services in a safe,
conscientious manner.

Must have genuine interest in serving people with special needs,
especially older adults and persons with disabilities.



Hours of Service and Holidays
NW Rides is closed on the following holidays:

New Year’s Day
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day
Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

NW Rides non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT) service is a shared
ride service that operates Monday through Saturday (except when closed on
designated holidays). NW Rides has flexible in hours of operation based on
clients’ needs.

Confidentiality

NEMT volunteer drivers are required to take all precautionary actions to protect
client personal information. Volunteers shall not share passenger information
with anyone outside of NW Rides. All volunteers are required to successfully
complete HIPPA training before performing services and annually.

Harassment-Free Service

NW Rides recognizes the need for a violence-free work environment for all
volunteers and the public. NW Rides will not tolerate violence in the workplace and
is committed to maintaining environments clear of all forms of violence, including
verbal or physical threats as well as forms of intimidation such as sexual
harassment or abusive language. Volunteer drivers are expected to report all
threats and violence, physical or verbal, to the NW Rides Brokerage Supervisor.

Required for Pre-Employment
e Submit a DMV driving record demonstrating at least seven (7) year safe
driving. Must meet the Special District Association of Oregon (“SDAQ")
Motor Vehicle Report Guidelines (Attachment A).

e Successfully pass criminal background check as required by TCTD
Criminal History Records Check Policy No. 5, dated June 19, 2008
(Attachment B).

¢ All volunteers are required to submit to testing and test negative for drugs
prior to employment. See TCTD Drug & Alcohol Policy (Attachment C).

Volunteer Driver Insurance Statement

Volunteer drivers must carry vehicle and liability of at least $100,000 Bodily,
$300,000 Liability, $100,000 Property per person/each occurrence. Volunteer
drivers must always carry proof of automobile insurance.

2|Page

7L

]



Workers’ Compensation Insurance

NW Rides volunteers work under the direction and supervision of NW Rides, which
is a subsidiary of Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD). Therefore, when
a volunteer driver is injured while performing their duties, the injured volunteer may
be entitled to benefits under the workers' compensation law. TCTD carries workers
compensation coverage and will assist volunteers in obtaining all benefits they are
legally entitled.

If there’s an incident that results in a volunteer being injured, regardless of how
serious, the Brokerage Supervisor should be notified immediately. Failure to report
accidents can result in a violation of conditions of insurance coverage and State
laws, leading to difficulties in processing insurance and benefit claims. Injured
volunteers must fill out a Worker's Compensation Report form (Form 801) and
submit it as soon as possible to the Brokerage Supervisor.

Hands-On Training

TCTD provides an extensive training program that benefits both the clients and
the volunteers. All required trainings must be completed within 90 days of initial
hire or re-certification dates.

Required Trainings:
1. HIPPA (Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996) Training.

2. Passenger Assistance Service and Safety Training (P.A.S.S.): Includes
training on the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Lift Operating
Procedures, Passenger Loading/Unloading and Securement, and Bloodborne
Pathogens.

3. Smith System Defensive Driver Training (for NEMT volunteer driver only). A
comprehensive driver training course.

4. First Aid/CPR Training.

Accident and Injury Reporting

NW Rides first priority is the safety of its volunteers and clients. Volunteers are
expected to use common sense and good judgment in work habits, to follow safe
work practices. Injuries or illnesses must be reported immediately to the
Brokerage Supervisor.

Accidents involving NW Rides clients must be reported as soon as possible. All
accident reports must be submitted to the NW Rides Brokerage Supervisor. If there
are injuries, call for emergency assistance immediately. The Brokerage Supervisor
will determine the need for further investigation.

3|Page



Reporting Your Hours

Volunteers are required to report their mileage and submit completed manifests
for each day of service. Manifests must be submitted weekly by Sunday of the
week completing the work.

Reimbursement
The following general guidelines apply to the reimbursement of Volunteer mileage,
hotel and meal expenses.

1. Mileage. Volunteers operating their personal vehicles will be paid
mileage for miles driven while performing duties as NEMT Volunteer driver.
Volunteers will be reimbursed at the current years’ IRS mileage rate.

2. Lodging. Hotel and motel accommodations should be appropriate to
the purpose of the trip. Expenses for lodging must be supported by actual receipts.
Reimbursement for lodging is generally limited to the expense of a single room,
except where employees are sharing a room. Reimbursement rate for lodging will
follow the GSA Meals & Incidental Expenses (M&IE) guidelines available at

WwWw.gsa.dov.

3 Meal Reimbursement. Partial and full day meal reimbursement may
be allowed when the employee is away from their residence on NW Rides business
during normal meal times. Reimbursement for meals will follow the GSA Meals &
Incidental Expenses (M&IE) guidelines available at www.gsa.qov.

Under certain circumstances, you may be reimbursed for additional expenses
incurred during the performance of your NW Rides volunteer service. Prior
authorization is required by the Brokerage Supervisor prior to incurring expenses.
If approved, you must provide a receipt and submit it with a Request for
Reimbursement form.

General Guidelines

Professional Appearance

Volunteers must wear proper clothing to provide a businesslike appearance at all
times. This includes wearing official ID at all times while acting on behalf of NW
Rides.

Personal Telephone Usage

Volunteer drivers must carry a mobile device to maintain constant communication
with NW Rides staff and dispatchers. Telephone calls of a personal nature should
be kept to a minimum and made during breaks or lunch periods whenever possible.

Smoking
Smoking is prohibited at all times while transporting NW Rides clients. State law

prohibits smoking in all public buildings except at designated smoking areas. Al
posted smoking laws, ordinances and facility rules must be followed.

4|Page

B



Gifts and Gratuities

The appearance of impropriety can be as damaging as actual impropriety and must
be avoided. Volunteers are not allowed to accept tips, gratuities, or cash gifts for
work performed for NW Rides. Non-monetary gifts of nominal value e.g., under $50
at holidays or special occasions, may be allowed.

Personal Interests Avoided

NW Rides volunteers may not use the NW Rides volunteer services for personal
interest or gain. When giving testimony unrelated to their assigned NW Rides
responsibilities, volunteers shall not use information or facts that have come to
them by virtue of their volunteer services for personal gain or benefit. In matters of
personal interest, volunteers should conduct themselves so as not to impair their
working relationship with other volunteers, officials, or the public.

Political Activities of District Volunteers
Official Position — Campaigning: Volunteers may not use their official
authority or position with NW Rides to further the cause of any political party
or candidate for nomination or election to any political office.

On-Duty Activity: Oregon law forbids any NW Rides volunteer, while on the
job, from soliciting money, influence, service, or other article of value or
otherwise aiding and/or promoting any political cause or the nomination or
election of any person for public office.

Internet Use

NW Rides staff will send route manifests by email to volunteers. As a public entity,
NW Rides’ employees using NW Rides’ equipment and internet access have no
right to privacy, which includes any items sent to NW Rides’ employees.

Observing Your Passenger’s Condition

Due to the nature of volunteering, you may be the first person aware of a change
in your client’s situation or condition. If you are aware of a situation that places a
client, volunteer or staff person at physical, financial or legal risk, please call the
Brokerage Supervisor or dispatchers as soon as possible so we may deal with it
appropriately.

Personal Attendants, Children and Guest Riders Policy

Clients unable to transport themselves from door-to-door must be accompanied
by a personal care attendant (PCA) to assist them and ensure their safe
transportation. Guests (friends, relatives, children or companions other than a
registered PCA) may not accompany client.

Oregon Health Authority (OHA) does not pay for transportation as a convenience
to clients. For example, if a child needs to go to the physician and the mother has
other children who cannot be left at home, OHA wili not provide transportation for
the other children to either accompany the parent to the physician or to be taken

5|Page

o



to a care provider. If the client needs assistance with other aspects of the
arrangements for transportation such as childcare, the client should be advised
to contact their case manager. The only exception to a child riding that does not
have an appointment is if the child is still breast feeding.

Children under the age of 12 must travel with an attendant. The attendant
must accompany the child from the pick-up location to the destination and on the
return trip. The attendant must also remain with the child during their
appointment. Another person shall not accompany the attendant unless the
parent or legal guardian authorizes it or unless the other person is an eligible
child traveling to the same location for a medical appointment. NW Rides does
not provide car or booster seats.

Animal Policy

The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) supersede state law
and use the term “service animal,” which is a broader definition than the definition
of “guide dogs” for blind or hearing-impaired persons described at ORS 346.620
and 346.650. In order to be compliant with the ADA laws, NW Rides uses the
term "service animal” when determining which animals may be permitted to ride
on transit vehicles.

There are three types of animal classifications NW Rides will transport on their
vehicles: Service Animals, Comfort Animals, and Pets.

In 28 CFR § 36.104 (http://www.ada.gov/reg3a.html) the following terms are
defined for the purposes of the ADA:

Service animal means any guide dog, signal dog, or other animal individually
trained to do work or perform tasks for the benefit of an individual with a
disability, including, but not limited to, guiding individuals with impaired vision,
alerting individuals with impaired hearing to intruders or sounds, providing
minimal protection or rescue work, pulling a wheelchair, or fetching dropped
items.

Disability means, with respect to an individual, a physical or mental
impairment that substantially limits one or more of the major life activities of
such individual; a record of such an impairment; or being regarded as having
such an impairment.

The phrase major life activities mean functions such as caring for one's self,
performing manual tasks, walking, seeing, hearing, speaking, breathing,
learning, and working.

To summarize, NW Rides always allows service animals on its vehicles that are
trained to perform tasks for people with disabilities as described above. Animals
that solely provide comfort or companionship to the owner are not considered
"service animals" for the purposes of the ADA exemption. The terms “companion

6|Page

b7



animal” or "common household pet" as these terms are used in the Federal Fair
Housing Act (42 USC §3601) do not apply to the exemption for service animals
under the ADA.

NW Rides will transport “comfort animals” if they have a carrier with them so they
can be placed in the carrier if they become unruly, or they can sit in the lap of the
passenger who needs the companion animal. If the animal is large and takes up
a seat, the owner will be charged an extra fare. The “comfort animal” owner is at
all times fully responsible for their animal and by boarding and agree to NW
Rides’ rules about service animals, comfort animals, and pets.

Pets will be transported only if they are in a carrier. The pet owner is at all times
fully responsible for their animal and by boarding they agree to NW Rides’ rules
about service animals, comfort animals, and pets.

7|Page .
| g bt

—



VOLUNTEER HANDBOOK
CERTIFICATE OF RECEIPT

I, , certify that | have
received a copy of Volunteer Handbook of the Tillamook County Transportation
District and NW Rides. | understand that it is my responsibility to read and ask
questions if necessary regarding personnel policies. | accept responsibility for
understanding and complying with the District's policies. | understand that my
volunteer participation can be terminated with or without cause, at any time, at the
option of either the District or myself. | understand that no one except the TCTD
Board of Directors has the authority to enter into any agreement in writing, contrary
to the Volunteer Handbook of the District.

Volunteer Signature Date

8|Page 1_'



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Adopting the
Budget, Making Appropriations,
Levying Taxes, and Categorizing
Taxes for FY 2019-2020

RESOLUTION NO. 19-13

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of ORS 294, the Board of Directors of the
Tillamook County Transportation District is required to adopt a budget and make
appropriations for the District for FY 2019-2020; and

WHEREAS, on May 30, 2019, following public notice and a public hearing, the TCTD
Budget Committee approved the FY 2019-2020 budget and recommended adoption by
the Board of Directors.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Tillamook County
Transportation District that:

MAKING APPROPRIATIONS

Section 1. The Board of Directors of the Tillamook County Transportation District hereby
adopts the budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020, in the total of $11,067,102.00. This budget
is now on file at the District office in Tillamook, Oregon.

Section 2: The amounts shown below on the following page are hereby appropriated for
the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2019 and for the following purposes:



TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS FOR FY 2019-20

General Fund Bus Wash Maint. Reserve Fund
Administration 662,300 Transfers 0
Operations 1,944,621 Total 0
Maintenance 733,700
Volunteers 0 Special Transportation Fund
Unallocated Special Paymenis 20,914
Materials & Services 0 Transfer 94,634
Capital QOutlay 1,416,500 Total $ 115,548
Transfers 22,000
Contingency 116,500 NW Oregon Transit Alliance
Total $ 4,895,621 Materials & Services 254,810
Special Payments 3,000
Property Management Fund Total $ 257,810
Materials & Services 43,500
Debt Service 99,591 NW Rides
Capital Outlay 30,000 Personnel Services 421,000
Total $ 173,091 Materials & Services 3,039,000
Capital Outlay 40,000
Capital Reserve Fund Total $ 3,500,000
Transfers 0
Total 0 Statewide Transit Improve. Fund
Special Payments 5,000
Vehicle Purchase Reserve Transfers 915,842
Transfers 11,835 Total $ 920,842
Total $ 11,835

Total Appropriations, All Funds:
Total Unappropriated and Reserve Amounts, All Funds:
Total Adopted Budget:

$ 9,874,747.00
$ 1.192,190.00
$11,067,102.00




IMPOSING THE TAX

Section 3: The following ad valorem property taxes are hereby imposed upon the
assessed value of all taxable property within the District for tax year 2019-2020 at the
rate of $0.200 per $1,000 of assessed value for permanent rate tax.

CATEGORIZING THE TAX

Section 4: The Board of Directors of Tillamook County Transportation District hereby
categorize the taxes as follows:

General Government Limitation Excluded from Limitation
Permanent Rate Tax: $0.20/$1,000 $0.00
Local Option Tax: none

Section 5: That the Budget Officer, in accordance with ORS 294.458(3), shall file with
the county assessor two copies each of the notice required under ORS 310.060; two
copies of a statement confirming the ad valorem property taxes approved by the budget
committee; and two copies each of this resolution to adopt the budget, make the
appropriations, and itemize, categorize, and certify the taxes.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of
Directors this 20" day of June 2019 by the following votes:

Aye Nay Abstain Absent
ATTEST:

By: By:

Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

Motion passed/failed by show of hands:

Gary Hanenkrat

Jim Huffman

Marty Holm

Jackie Edwards

Judy Riggs

Melissa Carlson-Swanson

el



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

In the Matter of Adopting
an Amendment to the
TCTD Fare Rate Policy for
Dial-a-Ride Services

RESOLUTION NO. 19-14

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) is an
Oregon transportation district organized under ORS Chapter 267, with the power
to fix and collect charges for the use of its system; and

WHEREAS, the District adopted Ordinance No. 2 with an effective date of
March 1, 2013, establishing District fare zones and fare categories; and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2 provides that the fares for each Fare
Category may be modified by Resolution of the District Board of Directors
(“Board”); and

WHEREAS, the District wishes to make the Dial-a-Ride service available
to as many people as possible on a basis that is economically sustainable for the
District; and

WHEREAS, the District conducted an evaluation of the current Dial-a-Ride
fare structure and on May 16, 2019, following a public notice and public hearing
the TCTD Board has determined it necessary to increase the Dial-a-Ride fares to
accomplish the District's goals for the Dial-a-Ride service and to better serve the
public:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

1. That the District adopts modifications to the Dial-a-Ride fares by
increasing the fares as follows:

Fare Category Current Fare Increased Fare
Full fare 1-zone $3.00 $4.00
Multi-zone Fare $12.50 $12.50
Discount Fare 1-zone $1.50 $2.00

2. Multi-zone Fare $12.50 $12.50

Page 1 — Resolution No. 19-14



That the new fares are reflected in Exhibit A hereto, which upon
adoption of this Resolution will Supersede Attachment A to Ordinance
No. 2, and that a copy of the superseding Attachment shall be filed
together with Ordinance No. 2.

EFFECTIVE DATE: July 1, 2019

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of June, 2019.

By:

-Judy Riggs, Board Chair

ATTEST:

District Recorder

Page 2 — Resolution No. 19-14



Amended by TCTD Board Resolution 19-14 on June 20, 2019 (Effective July 1, 2019)

EXHIBIT A

SUPERSEDING ATTACHMENT A TO ORDINANCE NO. 2

TCTD Fare Rates by Passenger Category

Category Service/Route Fare Type Current | Proposed
Full Fare Dial-A-Ride 1 Zone $4.00
Full Fare Dial-A-Ride Multi-zone $12.50
Full Fare Intercity Round Trip $20.00
Full Fare Intercity One Way $15.00
Full Fare Deviated Route 1 Zone $1.50
Full Fare Deviated Route 2 Zone $3.00
Full Fare Deviated Route 3 Zone $4.50
Full Fare Deviated Route Monthly Pass $40.00
Full Fare Deviated Route Day Pass $1.50
Child Fare # Intercity Round Trip $10.00
Child Fare Intercity One Way $7.50
Child Fare % Deviated Route 1 Zone $0.75
Child Fare % Deviated Route 2 Zone $1.50
Child Fare % Deviated Route 3 Zone $2.25
Discount Fare Dial-A-Ride 1 Zone $2.00
Discount Fare Dial-A-Ride Multi-zone $12.50
Discount Fare Intercity Round Trip $10.00
Discount Fare Intercity 1-Way $7.50
Discount Fare Deviated Route 1 Zone $0.75
Discount Fare Deviated Route 2 Zone $1.50
Discount Fare Deviated Route 3 Zone $2.25
Discount Fare Deviated Route Monthly Pass $30.00
Discount Fare Deviated Route Day Pass $0.75
Special Program | Dial-A-Ride NW Rides Contract
Special Program | Intercity Ride Connection Contract
Special Program | Deviated Route Seasonal Pass $30.00
Special Program | Deviated Route TBCC Group Pass | Contract
Special Program | Deviated Route Veterans Day | Vets Free
Special Program | NWOTA 3 Day Visitor Pass $25.00
Special Program | NWOTA 7 Day Visitor Pass $30.00
Special Program | Marie Mills Token Token $1.50

Page 3 — Resolution No. 19-14



Child Fare and Discount Fare Criteria

# Children 5-11 years of age are charged 1/2 price only when accompanied by Full
Fare Guardian. If unaccompanied, they are required to pay Full Fare.

% Children 5-11 years of age are charged 1/2 price fare. The 1st child under 5 years
of age may ride free. All additional children are 1/2 price.

Passengers who have a long or short term disability, 60 years of age or older, or
student less than 18 years of age are eligible for Discount Fare.

TCTD Employees, Board Members and State of Oregon Transit Employees

TCTD employees, spouses and dependents are eligible to ride free with District
authorized identification.

Current TCTD Board Members, spouses and dependents are eligible to ride free with
District authorized identification. TCTD Board Members who have served at least one
(1) year are eligible to ride for free. Board Members removed from office by recall or
convicted of a crime related to their service on the Board are not eligible for this
benefit. This benefit extends for the lifetime of the Board Member. The District will
maintain a roster of all living former Board Members.

Employees of public transit agencies in the State of Oregon are eligible to ride free
with valid identification.

Current TCTD Volunteers, spouses and dependents are eligible to ride free with
District authorized identification.

Special Program

Group Pass Programs will be negotiated on a case-by-case basis with public or
private entities.

1. Veterans may ride all deviated fixed routes free of charge on Veterans Day.
2. Marie Mills Center Inc. may purchase tokens at $1.25 each.

Amended by TCTD Board Resolution 14-26 on November 20, 2014
Amended by TCTD Board Resolution 19-14 on June 20, 2019

Page 4 — Resolution No. 19-14



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Execute and ODOT Special )
Transportation Fund Grant )

)

Agreement No. 33502 RESOLUTION NO. 19-15

WHEREAS, the ODOT Rail and Public Division Director is authorized to make
grants for public transportation projects; and

WHEREAS, ODOT allocated funding to the Tillamook County Transportation
District as part of the Elderly and Disabled Special Transportation Fund program; and

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors adopted the TCTD Coordinated
Human Services Public Transportation Plan on November 17, 2017 to ensure Section
5310 funding will benefit senior citizens and people with disabilities; and

WHEREAS, the District's Special Transportation Advisory Fund Committee
conducted a project application process and met on January 25, 2019 to prioritize
recommended projects to be funded; and

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District wishes to accept the
ODOT grant to support special transportation services benefitting seniors and
individuals and disabilities for the 2019-2021 biennium.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

the General Manager is authorized to execute and file ODOT Grant Agreement
No. 33502 in the amount of $135,400 on behalf of the Tillamook County Transportation
District to aid in the financing of District operations during the fiscal year July 1, 2019
through June 30, 2021
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of June 2019.
EFFECTIVE date of July 1, 2019.
ATTEST.:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager




Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 33502
Operating STATE

RAIL AND PUBLIC TRANSIT DIVISION
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, acting by and
through its Department of Transportation, Rail and Public Transit Division, hereinafter referred to as
"State," and Tillamook County Transportation District, hereinafter referred to as "Recipient,”
and collectively referred to as the "Parties.” Recipient is an "STF Agency" as that term is defined
in OAR 732-005-0010.

AGREEMENT

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2019 or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated, available funds under this Agreement shall be disbursed in accordance
with ORS 391 and OAR 732. State's obligation to disburse funds under this Agreement shall
end as provided in Section 6.a. of this Agreement.

2. Agreement Documents. This Agreement consists of this document and the following
documents, all of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit A: Project Description and Budget
Exhibit B: Financial Information
Exhibit C: Insurance Requirements

In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement,
the language in the document with the highest precedence shall control. The precedence of
each of the documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence
to lowest precedence: this Agreement without Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit B; Exhibit C.

3. Project Cost; Funds. State shall provide Recipient funds in an amount not to exceed
$135,400.00. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that State may change the amount of
funds available under this Agreement, based on availability of funds and other factors as
determined by State, upon notification to Recipient in accordance with Section 11.g of this
agreement. State and Recipient agree that in no event shall the amount State provides to
Recipient be less than the Minimum Allocation determined as provided in OAR 732-010-0010.

4. Project. Funds shall be used solely for the Project described in Exhibit A and shall not be
used for any other purpose. No funds will be disbursed for any changes to the Project unless
such changes are approved by State by amendment pursuant to Section 11.d hereof.

5. Progress Reports. Recipient shall submit quarterly progress reports to State no later
than 45 days after the close of each quarterly reporting period. Reporting periods are
July through September, October through December, January through March, and April
through June. Reports must be in a format acceptable to State and must be entered into
the Oregon Public Transit Information System (OPTIS), which may be accessed at http://
www.oregon.gov/odot/pt/. If Recipient is unable to access OPTIS, reports must be sent
to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Reports shall include a statement of revenues and
expenditures for each quarter, including documentation of local match contributions and
expenditures. State reserves the right to request such additional information as may be
necessary to comply with federal or state reporting requirements.

6. Disbursement and Recovery of Funds.

a. State shall make quarterly installment payments to Recipient within 30 days of the
beginning of each calendar quarter described in Section 5. State shall determine the
amount of each quarterly payment based on the funds stated in Section 3 divided by
the number of calendar quarters for which payments are scheduled to be made, with
any adjustments as may be determined by State if funds are adjusted as provided in
Section 3.

b. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. State's obligation to disburse funds to

Page 1 of 13 /\7’)



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33502

Recipient is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of each of the
following conditions precedent:

i. State has received funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments or other
expenditure authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable
administrative discretion, to make the disbursement.

ii. Recipientis in compliance with the terms of this Agreement.

iii. Recipient's representations and warranties set forth in Section 7 hereof are true
and correct on the date of disbursement with the same effect as though made on
the date of disbursement.

iv. Al funds previously disbursed have been used in accordance with OAR Chapter 732.

v. Any audit findings relating to Recipient's use of funds under this Agreement or any
other agreement with State have been resolved.

c. Recovery of Funds. Any funds disbursed to Recipient under this Agreement that are
expended in violation or contravention of one or more of the provisions of this Agreement
("Misexpended Funds") or that remain unexpended on the earlier of termination or
expiration of this Agreement must be returned to State. Recipient shall return all
Misexpended Funds to State promptly after State's written demand and no later than 15
days after State's written demand. Recipient shall return all Unexpended Funds to State
within 14 days after the earlier of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

7. Representations and Warranties of Recipient. Recipient represents and warrants to State
as follows:

a. Organization and Authority. Recipient is duly organized and validly existing under
the laws of the State of Oregon and is eligible to receive the funds. Recipient has full
power, authority, and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its
obligations hereunder, and the making and performance by Recipient of this Agreement
(1) have been duly authorized by all necessary action of Recipient and (2) do not and
will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, reqgulation, or order of any
court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision
of Recipient’'s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, if applicable, (3) do not and will not
result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other
agreement or instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which Recipient or any of
its properties may be bound or affected. No authorization, consent, license, approval
of, filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or
supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by Recipient
of this Agreement.

b. Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by
Recipient and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in
accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally.

c. No Solicitation. Recipient's officers, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor
accept gratuities, favors, or any item of monetary value from contractors, potential
contractors, or parties to subagreements, except as permitted by applicable law. No
member or delegate to the Congress of the United States or State of Oregon employee
shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit arising therefrom.

d. No Debarment. Neither Recipient nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, or
voluntarily excluded from any federally-assisted transaction, or proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participating in this Agreement by any
state or federal agency. Recipient agrees to notify State immediately if it is debarred,
suspended or otherwise excluded by any state or federal agency or if circumstances
change that may affect this status, including without limitation upon any relevant
indictments or convictions of crimes.

The warranties set in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other warranties

Page 2 of 13 q\/\



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33502

set forth in this Agreement or implied by law.
8. Records Maintenance and Access; Audit.

a.

d.

Records, Access to Records and Facilities. Recipient shall make and retain proper
and complete books of record and account and maintain all fiscal records related to
this Agreement and the Project in accordance with all applicable generally accepted
accounting principles, generally accepted governmental auditing standards and state
minimum standards for audits of municipal corporations. Recipient shall require that
each of its subrecipients and subcontractors complies with these requirements. State,
the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (Secretary), the United States Department
of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and their duly
authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, papers and
records of Recipient that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds provided
hereunder, or the Project for the purpose of making audits and examinations. In addition,
State, the Secretary, USDOT, FTA and their duly authorized representatives may make
and retain excerpts, copies, and transcriptions of the foregoing books, documents,
papers, and records. Recipient shall permit authorized representatives of State, the
Secretary, USDOT and FTA to perform site reviews of the Project, and to inspect all
vehicles, real property, facilities and equipment purchased by Recipient as part of the
Project, and any transportation services rendered by Recipient.

Retention of Records. Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents,
papers, and records that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds or the Project
for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as may be required by other
provisions of this Agreement or applicable law, following the Expiration Date. If there
are unresolved audit questions at the end of the six-year period, Recipient shall retain
the records until the questions are resolved.

Expenditure Records. Recipient shall document the expenditure of all funds disbursed
by State under this Agreement. Recipient shall create and maintain all expenditure
records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in sufficient
detail to permit State to verify how the funds were expended.

Audit Requirements.

i, Recipient shall, at Recipient's own expense, submit to State, Public Transit
Division, 555 13th Street NE, Suite 3, Salem, Oregon, 97301-4179 or to
ODOQTPTDreporting@odot.state.or.us, a copy of, or electronic link to, any annual
audit covering the funds expended under this Agreement by Recipient or a
party to any subagreement with Recipient, as well as the annual audit of any
subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s) of Recipient responsible for the
financial management of funds received under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall save, protect and hold harmless State from the cost of any audits
or special investigations performed by the Secretary with respect to the funds
expended under this Agreement. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that any audit
costs incurred by Recipient as a result of allegations of fraud, waste or abuse are
ineligible for reimbursement under this or any other agreement between Recipient
and State.

9. Recipient Subagreements and Procurements

a.

Subagreements. Recipient may enter into agreements with sub-recipients, contractors
or subcontractors (collectively, "subagreements") for performance of the Project.

i. All subagreements must be in writing executed by Recipient and must incorporate
and pass through all of the applicable requirements of this Agreement to the other
party or parties to the subagreement(s). Use of a subagreement does not relieve
Recipient of its responsibilities under this Agreement,

ii. Recipient agrees to provide State with a copy of any signed subagreement upon
request by State. Any substantial breach of a term or condition of a subagreement
relating to funds covered by this Agreement must be reported by Recipient to State
within ten (10) days of its being discovered.

Page 3 of 13 /\C B

..



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33502

b.
C.

Subagreement indemnity; insurance.

Recipient's subagreement(s) shall require the other party to such
subagreements(s) that is not a unit of local government as defined in ORS
190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless State and its
officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, actions,
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising from
a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260, caused, or alleged to be
caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of
the other party to Recipient's subagreement or any of such party's officers,
agents, employees or subcontractors ("Claims"). It is the specific intention of
the Parties that the State shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely
from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the State, be indemnified by
the other party to Recipient's subagreement(s) from and against any and all
Claims.

Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient's subrecipient(s),
contractor(s) nor subcontractor(s) (collectively "Subrecipients"), nor any attorney
engaged by Recipient's Subrecipient(s), shall defend any claim in the name of the State
or any agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative of the
State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written consent of the Oregon
Attorney General. The State may, at any time at its election, assume its own defense
and settlement in the event that it determines that Recipient's Subrecipient is prohibited
from defending State or that Recipient's Subrecipient is not adequately defending State's
interests, or that an important governmental principle is at issue or that it is in the best
interests of State to do so. State reserves all rights to pursue claims it may have against
Recipient's Subrecipient if State elects to assume its own defense.

Recipient shall require the other party, or parties, to each of its subagreements that
are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 to obtain and maintain
insurance of the types and in the amounts provided in Exhibit C to this Agreement.

Procurements. Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or
services for the Project under procedures that comply with Oregon law, as applicable,
including all applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code and rules,

10. Termination

a.

b.

Termination by State. State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of
written notice of termination to Recipient, or at such later date as may be established
by State in such written notice, if:

i. Recipient fails to perform the Project within the time specified herein or any
extension thereof or commencement, continuation or timely completion of the
Project by Recipient is, for any reason, rendered improbable, impossible, or illegal;
or

ii. State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement; or

iii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding
under this Agreement; or

iv. The Project would not produce results commensurate with the further expenditure
of funds; or

v. Recipient takes any action pertaining to this Agreement without the approval of
State and which under the provisions of this Agreement would have required the
approval of State.

Termination by Recipient. Recipient may terminate this Agreement effective upon
delivery of written notice of termination to State, or at such later date as may be
established by Recipient in such written notice,:

i. Upon notification to State of its desire to withdraw from eligibility to receive the

Page 4 of 13

’] '\p



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33502

funds and providing to State a reason acceptable to State for the withdrawal; or

ii. If federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted
in such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding
under this Agreement.

c. Termination by Either Party. Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon at
least ten days notice to the other Party and failure of the other Party to cure within the
period provided in the notice, if the other Party fails to comply with any of the terms
of this Agreement.

11. General Provisions

a. Contribution. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding
alleging a tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against
State or Recipient with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified
Party must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver
to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to
the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third Party
Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by a
Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and meaningful opportunity for
the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third Party
Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to that Party’s liability
with respect to the Third Party Claim.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which State is jointly liable with Recipient (or would
be if joined in the Third Party Claim ), State shall contribute to the amount of expenses
(including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is appropriate
to reflect the relative fault of the State on the one hand and of the Recipient on the other
hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or
settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative
fault of State on the one hand and of Recipient on the other hand shall be determined
by reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. State’s contribution amount in any
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law,
including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole liability
in the proceeding.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with State (or
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of
expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such proportion as is
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of State on the
other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments,
fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations.
The relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of State on the other hand shall be
determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge,
access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in
such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts, Recipient’s contribution amount
in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon
law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability
in the proceeding.

b. Dispute Resolution. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute
arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly
selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short
of litigation.

Cc. Reserved.
d. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or extended only by a written

Page 5 of 13 ”\/\



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33502

instrument signed by both Parties and approved as required by applicable law.

e. Duplicate Payment. Recipient is not entitled to compensation or any other form of
duplicate, overlapping or multiple payments for the same work performed under this
Agreement from any agency of the State of Oregon or the United States of America or
any other party, organization or individual.

f. No Third Party Beneficiaries. State and Recipient are the only Parties to this
Agreement and are the only Parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this
Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit
or right, whether directly or indirectly, to a third person unless such a third person is
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as an intended beneficiary
of the terms of this Agreement.

Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the Federal Government, absent express written
consent by the Federal Government, is not a party to this Agreement and shall not be
subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Recipient, contractor or any other party
(whether or not a party to the Agreement) pertaining to any matter resulting from this
Agreement.

g. Notices. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any
communications between the Parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be
given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, email, or mailing the same, postage
prepaid, to Recipient Contact or State Contact at the address or number set forth
on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as
either Party may hereafter indicate pursuant to this Section 11.g9. Any communication
or notice personalily delivered shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered.
Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed to be given when
receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine, and to be effective
against State, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to
State Contact. Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given when the
recipient of the email acknowledges receipt of the email. Any communication or notice
mailed shall be deemed to be given when received.

h. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles
of conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between
State (or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon) and Recipient that
arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon. In no event
shall this section be construed as a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense
or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on
the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any
Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court. EACH PARTY HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT, WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO VENUE, AND
WAIVES ANY CLAIM THAT SUCH FORUM IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.,

i. Compliance with Law. Recipient shall comply with all federal, state and local laws,
regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Agreement or to the
implementation of the Project, as applicable to Recipient. Without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, Recipient expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of Civil Rights
Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and
administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other
applicable requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules
and regulations.

j. Insurance; Workers' Compensation. All employers, including Recipient, that employ
subject workers who provide services in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS
656.017 and provide the required Workers' Compensation coverage, unless such
employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. Employer's liability insurance with coverage
limits of not less than $500,000 must be included. Recipient shall ensure that each of its
subrecipient(s), contractor(s), and subcontractor(s) complies with these requirements.

k. Independent Contractor. Recipient shall perform the Project as an independent

Page 6 of 13 /—\ u



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33502

contractor and not as an agent or employee of State. Recipient has no right or authority
to incur or create any obligation for or legally bind State in any way. State cannot and
will not control the means or manner by which Recipient performs the Project, except
as specifically set forth in this Agreement. Recipient is responsible for determining the
appropriate means and manner of performing the Project. Recipient acknowledges and
agrees that Recipient is not an "officer", "employee”, or "agent" of State, as those terms
are used in ORS 30.265, and shall not make representations to third parties to the
contrary.

I. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties
shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular term
or provision held to be invalid.

m. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts (by
facsimile or otherwise), each of which is an original and all of which together are deemed
one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories
to the same counterpart.

n. Integration and Waiver. This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the
entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein
regarding this Agreement. The delay or failure of either Party to enforce any provision of
this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that Party of that or any other provision.
Recipient, by the signature below of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges
that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

Page 7 of 13



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33502

The Parties, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that each Party has read this
Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.

The Oregon Transportation Commission on October 20, 2010, approved Delegation Order Number
OTC-01, which authorizes the Director of the Oregon Department of Transportation to administer
programs related to public transit.

On March 1, 2012, the Director approved Delegation Order Number DIR-04, which delegates the
authority to approve this Agreement to the Rail and Public Transit Division Administrator.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

Page 8 of 13

iy



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon

Agreement No. 33502

Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its

By

(Legally designated representative)

Name

(printed)

Date

By

Name

(printed)

Date

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

By

Recipient's Legal Counsel

Date

Recipient Contact:

Doug Pilant

3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 842-3115
dpilant@tillamookbus.com

State Contact:

Arla Miller

555 13th Street NE

Salem, OR 97301-4179

1 (503) 986-2836
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation

By
H. A. (Hal) Gard
Rail and Public Transit Division Administrator

Date

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Arla Miller

Date 05/17/2019

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $150,000)

N/A

Page 9 of 13 { )\)



Tilamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon

Agreement No. 33502

EXHIBIT A

Project Description and Budget

Project Description/Statement of Work

Operating

Project Title: STF Tillamook County Transportation District 33502

Item #1: Operating

Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$135,400.00 $135,400.00 ~ $0.00
Sub Total $135,400.00 $135,400.00 $0.00
Grand Total $135,400.00 $135,400.00 $0.00

e Operating
1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

This Agreement provides financial support for special transportation services benefitting seniors and
individuals with disabilities.

2. PROJECT DELIVERABLES

Funding may be used for project types that improve transportation for senior and disabled
populations including, but not limited to: maintenance and expansion of existing transportation
programs; creation of new programs and services; planning and development for improved access
to transportation; capital purchases; and as matching funds for state and federal programs also
providing transportation and services to seniors and individuals with disabilities.

Recipient may distribute STF funds to eligible subrecipients and projects as confirmed by the State.
Additional projects or sub recipients require an amended application that is confirmed by the State.
Additional funds require an amended Agreement.

3. PROJECT ACCOUNTING

Recipient retains authority over costs and allocations of STF dollars within the guidelines established

by Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 391.800 through 391.830 and Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR)
Chapter 732.

Recipient will receive and disburse STF moneys from a separate governmental fund. Any interest
accrued from the account must be added to the moneys and reported to State.

Page 10 of 13



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33502

EXHIBIT B
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

This Agreement is financed by the funding source indicated below:

State Program State Funding Agency
ORS 391.800 through Oregon Department of
ORS 391.830 and OAR Transportation

Chapter 732, Divisions 355 Capitol St. N.E.
5,10, and 30 Salem, OR 97301-3871

Total State Funding
$135,400.00

Administered By

Rail and Public Transit Division
555 13th Street NE

Salem, OR 97301-4179

Page 11 of 13

/],
<



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33502

EXHIBIT C

Insurance Requirements

GENERAL.

Recipient shall require in its first tier subagreements with entities that are not units of local
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES
AND AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE,
NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance
under the subagreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout
the duration of the subagreement. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or
entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State
of Oregon and that are acceptable to State. Recipient shall not authorize work to begin under
subagreements until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor continued
compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis. Recipient shall
incorporate appropriate provisions in the subagreement permitting it to enforce compliance with
the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance. In
no event shall Recipient permit work under a subagreement when Recipient is aware that the
contractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, "first tier"
means a subagreement in which the Recipient is a Party.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

i. WORKERS COMPENSATION. Insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires all
employers that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, to provide workers'
compensation coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption
under ORS 656.126(2). Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000
must be included.

ii. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury,
death, and property damage in a form and with coverages that are satisfactory to State. This
insurance shall include personal injury liability, products and completed operations. Coverage shall
be written on an occurrence form basis, with not less than the following amounts as determined
by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

iii. AUTOMOBILE Liability Insurance: Automobile Liability. Automobile Liability Insurance covering
alt owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in combination with the
Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for "Commercial General Liability"
and "Automobile Liability"). Automobile Liability Insurance must be in not less than the following
amounts as determined by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

ADDITIONAL INSURED. The Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability
insurance must include State, its officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds but only
with respect to the contractor's activities to be performed under the Subcontract. Coverage must
be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

"TAIL" COVERAGE. If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as

Page 12 of 13 CZ\/\



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33502

professional liability insurance, the contractor shall maintain either "tail" coverage or continuous
"claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous "claims made”
coverage is on or before the effective date of the Subcontract, for a minimum of 24 months following
the later of: (i) the contractor's completion and Recipient's acceptance of all Services required
under the Subcontract or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Subcontract.
Notwithstanding the foregoing 24-month requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain "tail"
coverage and if the maximum time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace
is less than the 24-month period described above, then the contractor may request and State may
grant approval of the maximum "tail" coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace.
If State approval is granted, the contractor shall maintain "tail” coverage for the maximum time
period that "tail" coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. The contractor or its insurer must provide 30 days' written
notice to Recipient before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate
limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. Recipient shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of
insurance for all required insurance before the contractor performs under the Subcontract. The
certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are
endorsed on the policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the
extended reporting period applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made" coverage.

¢
Page 13 of 13 1 =



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Execute an ODOT Section 5310 )
Grant Agreement No. 33600 ) RESOLUTION NO. 19-16

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) has received
a $113,236 grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation (“ODOT”) under
Section 5310 of the Federal Transit Act of 1964, as amended, which grant is
memorialized in ODOT Grant Agreement No. 33600; and

WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors adopted the TCTD Coordinated
Human Services Public Transportation Plan on November 17, 2017 to ensure Section
5310 funding will benefit senior citizens and people with disabilities; and

WHEREAS, the District's Special Transportation Advisory Fund Committee
conducted a project application process and met on January 25, 2019 to prioritize
recommended projects to be funded; and

WHEREAS, the District applied to ODOT for a Section 5310 grant to purchase a
replacement van, vehicle preventive maintenance, and shop equipment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors;

the General Manager is authorized to execute and file ODOT Grant Agreement
No. 33600 in the amount of $113,236 on behalf of the Tillamook County Transportation
District to aid in the financing of District operations during fiscal year July 1, 2019
through June 30, 2021;
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of June 2019.
EFFECTIVE date of July 1, 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

B



Misc. Contracts and Agreements
Agreement No. 33600
Capital 5310

RAIL AND PUBLIC TRANSIT DIVISION
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, acting by and
through its Department of Transportation, Rail and Public Transit Division, hereinafter referred to as
"State," and Tillamook County Transportation District, hereinafter referred to as "Recipient,”
and collectively referred to as the "Parties."”

AGREEMENT

1. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective on the later of July 1, 2019 or the
date when this Agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law. Unless
otherwise terminated or extended, Grant Funds under this Agreement shall be available for
Project Costs incurred on or before June 30, 2021 (Expiration Date). No Grant Funds are
available for any expenditures after the Expiration Date. State's obligation to disburse Grant
Funds under this Agreement shall end as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement.

2. Agreement Documents. This Agreement consists of this document and the following
documents, all of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit A: Project Description and Budget
Exhibit B: Financial Information
Exhibit C: Subcontractor Insurance

Exhibit D: Summary of Federal Requirements, incorporating by reference Annual
List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants
and Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances™) and Federal Transit
Administration Master Agreement

Exhibit E: Information required by 2 CFR 200.331(a), may be accessed at http://
www.oregon.gov/odot/pt/, Oregon Public Transit Information System (OPTIS), as
the information becomes available

In the event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement,
the language in the document with the highest precedence shall control. The precedence of
each of the documents comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence
to lowest precedence: Exhibit D; Exhibit E; this Agreement without Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit
B; Exhibit C.

3. Project Cost; Grant Funds; Match. The total project cost is estimated at $126,196.00. In
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, State shall provide Recipient an
amount not to exceed $113,236.00 in Grant Funds for eligible costs described in Section 6.a.
hereof. Recipient shall provide matching funds for all Project Costs as described in Exhibit A.

4. Project. The Grant Funds shall be used solely for the Project described in Exhibit A and shall
not be used for any other purpose. No Grant Funds will be disbursed for any changes to the
Project unless such changes are approved by State by amendment pursuant to Section 11.d
hereof.

5. Progress Reports. Recipient shall submit quarterly progress reports to State no later
than 45 days after the close of each quarterly reporting period. Reporting periods are
July through September, October through December, January through March, and April
through June. Reports must be in a format acceptable to State and must be entered into
the Oregon Public Transit Information System (OPTIS), which may be accessed at http://
www.oregon.gov/odot/pt/. If Recipient is unable to access OPTIS, reports must be delivered
to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Reports shall include a statement of revenues and
expenditures for each quarter, including documentation of local match contributions and
expenditures. State reserves the right to request such additional information as may be

a0
Page 1 of 21 Cg

!



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

necessary to comply with federal or state reporting requirements.
6. Disbursement and Recovery of Grant Funds.

a. Disbursement Generally. State shall reimburse eligible costs incurred in carrying out
the Project, up to the Grant Fund amount provided in Section 3. Reimbursements shall
be made by State within 30 days of State's approval of a request for reimbursement from
Recipient using a format that is acceptable to State. Requests for reimbursement must
be entered into OPTIS or sent to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us. Eligible costs are
the reasonable and necessary costs incurred by Recipient, or under a subagreement
described in Section 9.a. of this Agreement, in performance of the Project and that are
not excluded from reimbursement by State, either by this Agreement or by exclusion as
a result of financial review or audit.

b. Conditions Precedent to Disbursement. State's obligation to disburse Grant Funds
to Recipient is subject to satisfaction, with respect to each disbursement, of each of the
following conditions precedent:

i. State has received funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments or other
expenditure authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable
administrative discretion, to make the disbursement.

ii. Recipient is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement including, without
limitation, Exhibit D and the requirements incorporated by reference in Exhibit D.

iii. Recipient's representations and warranties set forth in Section 7 hereof are true
and correct on the date of disbursement with the same effect as though made on
the date of disbursement.

iv. Recipient has provided to State a request for reimbursement using a format that
is acceptable to and approved by State. Recipient must submit its final request for
reimbursement following completion of the Project and no later than 60 days after
the Expiration Date. Failure to submit the final request for reimbursement within
60 days after the Expiration Date could resuit in non-payment.

c. Recovery of Grant Funds. Any funds disbursed to Recipient under this Agreement
that are expended in violation or contravention of one or more of the provisions of
this Agreement ("Misexpended Funds") or that remain unexpended on the earlier of
termination or expiration of this Agreement must be returned to State. Recipient shall
return all Misexpended Funds to State promptly after State's written demand and no later
than 15 days after State's written demand. Recipient shall return all Unexpended Funds
to State within 14 days after the earlier of expiration or termination of this Agreement.

7. Representations and Warranties of Recipient. Recipient represents and warrants to State
as follows:

a. Organization and Authority. Recipient is duly organized and validly existing under
the laws of the State of Oregon and is eligible to receive the Grant Funds. Recipient has
full power, authority, and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its
obligations hereunder, and the making and performance by Recipient of this Agreement
(1) have been duly authorized by all necessary action of Recipient and (2) do not and
will not violate any provision of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any
court, regulatory commission, board, or other administrative agency or any provision
of Recipient's Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, if applicable, (3) do not and will not
result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any consent under any other
agreement or instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which Recipient or any of
its properties may be bound or affected. No authorization, consent, license, approval
of, filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or
supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by Recipient
of this Agreement.

b. Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by
Recipient and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in
accordance with its terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally.

c. No Solicitation. Recipient's officers, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor

Page 2 of 21 4’:’(\



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

accept gratuities, favors, or any item of monetary value from contractors, potential
contractors, or parties to subagreements, except as permitted by applicable law. No
member or delegate to the Congress of the United States or State of Oregon employee
shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit arising therefrom.

No Debarment. Neither Recipient nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, or
voluntarily excluded from this federally-assisted transaction, or proposed for debarment,
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participating in this Agreement by any
state or federal agency. Recipient agrees to notify State immediately if it is debarred,
suspended or otherwise excluded from this federally-assisted transaction for any reason
or if circumstances change that may affect this status, including without limitation upon
any relevant indictments or convictions of crimes.

The warranties set in this section are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other warranties
set forth in this Agreement or implied by law.

8. Records Maintenance and Access; Audit.

a.

d.

Records, Access to Records and Facilities. Recipient shall make and retain proper
and complete books of record and account and maintain all fiscal records related to
this Agreement and the Project in accordance with all applicable generally accepted
accounting principles, generally accepted governmental auditing standards and state
minimum standards for audits of municipal corporations. Recipient shall require that
each of its subrecipients and subcontractors complies with these requirements. State,
the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (Secretary), the United States Department
of Transportation (USDOT), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and their duly
authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, papers and
records of Recipient that are directly related to this Agreement, the funds provided
hereunder, or the Project for the purpose of making audits and examinations. In addition,
State, the Secretary, USDOT, FTA and their duly authorized representatives may make
and retain excerpts, copies, and transcriptions of the foregoing books, documents,
papers, and records. Recipient shall permit authorized representatives of State, the
Secretary, USDOT and FTA to perform site reviews of the Project, and to inspect all
vehicles, real property, facilities and equipment purchased by Recipient as part of the
Project, and any transportation services rendered by Recipient.

Retention of Records. Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents,
papers, and records that are directly related to this Agreement, the Grant Funds or the
Project for a minimum of six (6) years, or such longer period as may be required by
other provisions of this Agreement or applicable law, following the Expiration Date. If
there are unresolved audit questions at the end of the six-year period, Recipient shall
retain the records until the questions are resolved.

Expenditure Records. Recipient shall document the expenditure of all Grant Funds
disbursed by State under this Agreement. Recipient shall create and maintain all
expenditure records in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in
sufficient detail to permit State to verify how the Grant Funds were expended.

Audit Requirements.

i. Recipients receiving federal funds in excess of $750,000 are subject to audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F. Recipient,
if subject to this requirement, shall at Recipient's own expense submit to State,
Rail and Public Transit Division, 555 13th Street NE, Suite 3, Salem, Oregon,
97301-4179 or to ODOTPTDReporting@odot.state.or.us, a copy of, or electronic
link to, its annual audit subject to this requirement covering the funds expended
under this Agreement and shall submit or cause to be submitted, the annual audit
of any subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s) of Recipient responsible
for the financial management of funds received under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient shall save, protect and hold harmless State from the cost of any audits
or special investigations performed by the Secretary with respect to the funds
expended under this Agreement. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that any audit
costs incurred by Recipient as a result of allegations of fraud, waste or abuse are
ineligible for reimbursement under this or any other agreement between Recipient
and State.

Page 3 of 21



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

9. Recipient Subagreements and Procurements

a. Subagreements. Recipient may enter into agreements with sub-recipients, contractors
or subcontractors (collectively, "subagreements") for performance of the Project.

i. All subagreements must be in writing executed by Recipient and must incorporate
and pass through all of the applicable requirements of this Agreement to the other
party or parties to the subagreement(s). Use of a subagreement does not relieve
Recipient of its responsibilities under this Agreement.

ii. Recipient agrees to provide State with a copy of any signed subagreement upon
request by State. Any substantial breach of a term or condition of a subagreement
relating to funds covered by this Agreement must be reported by Recipient to State
within ten (10) days of its being discovered.

b. Recipient shall review the Best Practices Procurement Manual, a technical assistance
manual prepared by the FTA, available on the FTA website: www.fta.dot.gov/
grants/13054_6037.html

¢. Subagreement indemnity; insurance

Recipient’s subagreement(s) shall require the other party to such
subagreements(s) that is not a unit of local government as defined in ORS
190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless State and its
officers, employees and agents from and against any and all claims, actions,
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys' fees, arising from
a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260, caused, or alleged to be
caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of
the other party to Recipient's subagreement or any of such party's officers,
agents, employees or subcontractors ("Claims"). It is the specific intention of
the Parties that the State shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely
from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the State, be indemnified by
the other party to Recipient's subagreement(s) from and against any and all
Claims,

Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient's subrecipient(s),
contractor(s) nor subcontractor(s) (collectively "Subrecipients"), nor any attorney
engaged by Recipient's Subrecipient(s), shall defend any claim in the hame of the State
or any agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative of the
State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written consent of the Oregon
Attorney General. The State may, at any time at its election, assume its own defense
and settlement in the event that it determines that Recipient's Subrecipient is prohibited
from defending State or that Recipient's Subrecipient is not adequately defending State's
interests, or that an important governmental principle is at issue or that it is in the best
interests of State to do so. State reserves all rights to pursue claims it may have against
Recipient's Subrecipient if State elects to assume its own defense.

Recipient shall require the other party, or parties, to each of its subagreements that
are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003 to obtain and maintain
insurance of the types and in the amounts provided in Exhibit C to this Agreement. Any
insurance obtained by the other party to Recipient's subagreements, if any, shall not
relieve Recipient of the requirements of Section 11 of this Agreement. The other party to
any subagreement with Recipient, if the other party employs subject workers as defined
in ORS 657.027, must obtain Workers Compensation Coverage as described in Exhibit C,

d. Procurements. Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or services
for the Project under procedures that comply with Oregon law, as applicable, including
all applicable provisions of the Oregon Public Contracting Code and rules, and in
conformance to FTA Circular 4220.1F, Third Party Contracting Requirements including:

i. all applicable clauses required by federal statute, executive orders and their
implementing regulations are included in each competitive procurement;

ii. all procurement transactions are conducted in a manner providing full and open
competition;

Page 4 of 21 (\O



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

iv.

procurements exclude the use of statutorily or administratively imposed in-state
or geographic preference in the evaluation of bids or propasals (with exception of
locally controlled licensing requirements);

construction, architectural and engineering procurements are based on Brooks Act
procedures unless the procurement is subject to ORS 279C.100 to 279C,125.

e. Additional requirements

Vi,

vii.

Recipient shall comply with 49 CFR sections 37.77(c) and 37.105 regarding
"Certification of Equivalent Service" when purchasing vehicles under this
Agreement. If non-accessible vehicles, as defined by the Americans with
Disabilities Act, are being purchased for use by a public entity in demand responsive
service for the general public, Recipient will certify to State at the time of applying
for a project that, when viewed in its entirety, the demand responsive service
offered to persons with disabilities, including persons who use wheelchairs, meets
the standard of equivalent service.

Recipient shall comply with 49 CFR 663 regarding pre-award and post-delivery
reviews. Every Recipient purchasing rolling stock or facilities under this Agreement
must certify to State that a pre-award and post-delivery review has been conducted
in accordance with ODOT requirements. This review ensures compliance to bid
specifications including, but not limited to, FTA requirements, State requirements,
and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Standards, as applicable to the type of project.
Each Recipient's certification must include assurance that required documents
have been received from manufacturers or vendors of products, or from both,
and that Recipient possesses such documents. Acceptable certification forms are
available from State. Recipient must provide certification forms to State when
reimbursement is requested for vehicles. For facilities projects, Recipient must
provide pre-award certifications to State at time of first payment, and post-delivery
certifications upon completion of the post-delivery review, and in no event later
than with Recipient's request for final payment.

Recipient shall comply with 49 CFR 604 in the provision of any charter service
provided with vehicles, facilities, or equipment acquired with FTA assistance under
this Agreement.

Recipient shall submit an annual vehicle inspection report to State for any vehicle
purchased under this Agreement. Vehicle inspections shall be conducted by a
vehicle maintenance technician certified by a nationally recognized organization in
the field of vehicle service and maintenance. Reports covering required areas of
inspection shall be submitted on forms provided by State.

All drivers of vehicles purchased with FTA funds under this Agreement must
complete a standard defensive driving course before operating an FTA-funded
vehicle, and are advised to complete a standard defensive driving course before
operating a State-funded vehicle.

Recipient shall maintain all vehicles, equipment, and facilities purchased under this
Agreement in good condition per manufacturer’s recommendations. Recipients are
required to develop preventive maintenance plans for all rolling stock and facilities
and to provide the plans to State upon request.

Recipient shall be the owner of the property for facility construction projects and of
vehicles purchased under this Agreement. Such ownership shall be recorded on real
property deeds for facility construction projects and on vehicle titles. If Recipient
contracts the operation of vehicles to a third party, then the third party may be
shown as the owner or lessee with Recipient listed as the second security interest
holder or lessor. In all cases, Oregon Department of Transportation, Rail and Public
Transit Division shall be shown as the first security interest holder on vehicle titles.
If Recipient fails to show Oregon Department of Transportation, Rail and Public
Transit Division as the first security interest holder, Recipient shall pay any expenses
to re-submit the necessary documents to Oregon Department of Transportation,
Driver and Motor Vehicle Services (DMV). If a vehicle is damaged or destroyed at
any time when Recipient fails to show Oregon Department of Transportation, Rail
and Public Transit Division, as the first security interest holder, Recipient shall be

Page 5 of 21



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

viil.

liable to State for any damage in an amount in the same manner as if Oregon
Department of Transportation, Rail and Public Transit Division, were shown as the
first security interest holder.

Recipient shall bear the cost of insuring assets purchased under this Agreement
based on risk assessment. Recipient shall maintain, in amounts and form
satisfactory to State, such insurance or self-insurance as will be adequate to
protect Recipient, vehicle drivers and assistants, vehicle occupants, and property
throughout the period of use. The minimum that will be approved by State is
comprehensive and collision insurance adequate to repair or replace property
and equipment if damaged or destroyed; liability insurance of $50,000 for
property damage, $200,000 for bodily injury per person, $500,000 for bodily
injury per occasion for maintenance and shop vehicles, and $1,000,000 for bodily
injury per occasion for vehicles providing passenger transportation; uninsured
motorist protection; and personal injury protection as required by ORS Chapter
806. Recipient shall be responsible for all deductibles or self-insured retention.
Recipient's insurance policy covering assets purchased under this Agreement shall
include the Oregon Department of Transportation, Rail and Public Transit Division
as an "Additional Insured". In the event of any ambiguity or conflict between
this section 9.e.viii. and Exhibit C Insurance Requirements ii. Commercial General
Liability and iii. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE, this section 9.e.viii. shall
control.

Recipient shall file a restrictive covenant with the property deed for all construction
projects and purchases of real estate, with the exception of passenger shelters,
amenities, and right-of-way infrastructure improvements. The restrictive covenant
will limit the use of the building and property to the stated purpose specified in the
statement of work associated with this Agreement.

Recipient shall complete all purchases, including installation, and all construction
of capital assets funded under this Agreement prior to the Expiration Date of this
Agreement. If local circumstances prevent purchase, installation, or construction
by the specified date, Recipient will notify State in writing of the circumstances
regarding the delay. Such notification must be received at least forty-five (45) days
prior to the expiration of the Agreement. Agreement amendment for time will be
considered in extenuating circumstances.

10. Termination

a.

b.

Termination by State. State may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of
written notice of termination to Recipient, or at such later date as may be established
by State in such written notice, if:

iif.

Recipient fails to perform the Project within the time specified herein or any
extension thereof or commencement, continuation or timely completion of the
Project by Recipient is, for any reason, rendered improbable, impossible, or illegal;
or

State fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure
authority sufficient to allow State, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative
discretion, to continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement; or

Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding
under this Agreement; or

The Project would not produce results commensurate with the further expenditure
of funds; or

Recipient takes any action pertaining to this Agreement without the approval of
State and which under the provisions of this Agreement would have required the
approval of State.

Termination by Recipient. Recipient may terminate this Agreement effective upon
delivery of written notice of termination to State, or at such later date as may be

Page 6 of 21 =



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

C.

established by Recipient in such written notice, if:

The requisite local funding to continue the Project becomes unavailable to
Recipient; or

ii. Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in
such a way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding
under this Agreement.

Termination by Either Party. Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon at
least ten days notice to the other Party and failure of the other Party to cure within the
period provided in the notice, if the other Party fails to comply with any of the terms
of this Agreement.,

11. General Provisions

a.

Contribution. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding
alleging a tort as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 ("Third Party Claim") against
State or Recipient with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified
Party must promptly notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver
to the other Party a copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to
the Third Party Claim. Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third Party
Claim, and to defend a Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by a
Party of the notice and copies required in this paragraph and meaningful opportunity for
the Party to participate in the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third Party
Claim with counsel of its own choosing are conditions precedent to that Party’s liability
with respect to the Third Party Claim.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which State is jointly liable with Recipient (or would
be if joined in the Third Party Claim ), State shall contribute to the amount of expenses
(including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and
reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is appropriate
to reflect the relative fault of the State on the one hand and of the Recipient on the other
hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines or
settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative
fault of State on the one hand and of Recipient on the other hand shall be determined
by reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. State’s contribution amount in any
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law,
including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if State had sole liability
in the proceeding.

With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with State (or
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of
expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by State in such proportion as is
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of State on the
other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments,
fines or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations.
The relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of State on the other hand shall be
determined by reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge,
access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in
such expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Recipient’s contribution amount
in any instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon
law, including the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability
in the proceeding.

Dispute Resolution. The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute
arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly
selected mediator or arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short
of litigation.

Responsibility for Grant Funds. Any recipient of Grant Funds, pursuant to this
Agreement with State, shall assume sole liability for that recipient's breach of the

Page 7 of 21

O



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

conditions of this Agreement, and shall, upon recipient's breach of conditions that
requires State to return funds to the FTA, hold harmiess and indemnify State for an
amount equal to the funds received under this Agreement; or if legal limitations apply
to the indemnification ability of the recipient of Grant Funds, the indemnification amount
shall be the maximum amount of funds available for expenditure, including any available
contingency funds or other available non-appropriated funds, up to the amount received
under this Agreement.

d. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or extended only by a written
instrument signed by both Parties and approved as required by applicable law,

e. Duplicate Payment. Recipient is not entitled to compensation or any other form of
duplicate, overlapping or multiple payments for the same work performed under this
Agreement from any agency of the State of Oregon or the United States of America or
any other party, organization or individual.

f. No Third Party Beneficiaries. State and Recipient are the only Parties to this
Agreement and are the only Parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this
Agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit
or right, whether directly or indirectly, to a third person unless such a third person is
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as an intended beneficiary
of the terms of this Agreement.

Recipient acknowledges and agrees that the Federal Government, absent express written
consent by the Federal Government, is not a party to this Agreement and shall not be
subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Recipient, contractor or any other party
{(whether or not a party to the Agreement) pertaining to any matter resulting from the
this Agreement.

g. Notices. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any
communications between the Parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be
given in writing by personal delivery, facsimile, email, or mailing the same, postage
prepaid, to Recipient Contact or State Contact at the address or number set forth
on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other addresses or numbers as
either Party may hereafter indicate pursuant to this Section 11.g. Any communication
or notice personally delivered shall be deemed to be given when actually delivered.
Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed to be given when
receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine, and to be effective
against State, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to
State Contact. Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given when the
recipient of the email acknowledges receipt of the email. Any communication or notice
mailed shall be deemed to be given when received.

h. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles
of conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, "Claim") between
State (or any other agency or department of the State of Oregon) and Recipient that
arises from or relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and
exclusively within the Circuit Court of Marion County in the State of Oregon. In no event
shall this section be construed as a waiver by the State of Oregon of any form of defense
or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on
the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any
Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court. EACH PARTY HEREBY CONSENTS TO THE
EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT, WAIVES ANY OBJECTION TO VENUE, AND
WAIVES ANY CLAIM THAT SUCH FORUM IS AN INCONVENIENT FORUM.

i. Compliance with Law. Recipient shall comply with all federal, state and local laws,
regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Agreement or to the
implementation of the Project, as applicable to Recipient, including without limitation
as described in Exhibit D. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Recipient
expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) the Americans with Disabilities Act
of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and administrative rules established
pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other applicable requirements of federal and

Page 8 of 21
-



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.

j- Insurance; Workers' Compensation. All employers, including Recipient, that employ
subject workers who provide services in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS
656.017 and provide the required Workers' Compensation coverage, unless such
employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. Employer's liability insurance with coverage
limits of not less than $500,000 must be included. Recipient shall ensure that each of its
subrecipient(s), contractor(s), and subcontractor(s) complies with these requirements.

k. Independent Contractor. Recipient shall perform the Project as an independent
contractor and not as an agent or employee of State. Recipient has no right or authority
to incur or create any obligation for or legally bind State in any way. State cannot and
will not control the means or manner by which Recipient performs the Project, except
as specifically set forth in this Agreement. Recipient is responsible for determining the
appropriate means and manner of performing the Project. Recipient acknowledges and
agrees that Recipient is not an "officer", "employee", or "agent" of State, as those terms
are used in ORS 30.265, and shall not make representations to third parties to the
contrary.

I. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties
shall be construed and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular term
or provision held to be invalid.

m. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts (by
facsimile or otherwise), each of which is an original and all of which together are deemed
one agreement binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories
to the same counterpart.

n. Integration and Waiver. This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the
entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein
regarding this Agreement. The delay or failure of either Party to enforce any provision of
this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that Party of that or any other provision.
Recipient, by the signature below of its authorized representative, hereby acknowledges
that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms
and conditions.

Page 9 of 21



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

The Parties, by execution of this Agreement, hereby acknowledge that each Party has read this
Agreement, understands it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.

The Oregon Transportation Commission on October 20, 2010, approved Delegation Order Number
OTC-01, which authorizes the Director of the Oregon Department of Transportation to administer
programs related to public transit.

On March 1, 2012, the Director approved Delegation Order Number DIR-04, which delegates the
authority to approve this Agreement to the Rail and Public Transit Division Administrator.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

o\

Page 10 of 21



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon

Agreement No. 33600

Tillamook County Transportation District,
by and through its

By

(Legally designated representative)

Name

(printed)

Date

By

Name

(printed)

Date

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

(If required in local process)

By

Recipient's Legal Counsel

Date

Recipient Contact:

Doug Pilant

3600 Third Street, Suite A
Tillamook, OR 97141-0188
1 (503) 842-3115
dpilant@tillamookbus.com

State Contact:

Arla Miller

555 13th Street NE

Salem, OR 97301-4179

1 (503) 986-2836
Arla.MILLER@odot.state.or.us

Page 11 of 21

State of Oregon, by and through its
Department of Transportation

By
H. A. (Hal) Gard
Rail and Public Transit Division Administrator

Date

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED

By Arla Miller

Date 06/06/2019

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
(For funding over $150,000)

N/A



Tilamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

EXHIBIT A

Project Description and Budget

Project Description/Statement of Work

Project Title: 5310 Tillamook County Transportation District 33600
Vehicle Purchase, Preventive Maintenance, Equipment, Signs and
Amenities, Shelters
Item #1: Vans
Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$75,001.00 $67,298.00 $7,703.00 Local
Item #1: Preventative Maintenance
Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$45,625.00 $40,939.00 $4,686.00 Local
Item #1: Shop Equipment
Total Grant Amount Local Match Match Type(s)
$2,000.00 $1,795.00 $205.00 Local
Item #2: Shop Equipment
$2,000.00] $1,795.00 ] $205.00 | Local
Item #3: Shop Equipment
$1,570.00 $1,409.00 $161.00 Local
Sub Total $126,196.00 $113,236.00 $12,960.00
Grand Total $126,196.00 $113,236.00 $12,960.00

e 1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

I. Vehicle Replacement

Purchase 1 (one) transit vehicle as follows: useful life: 4 years and/or 100,000 miles;
approximate length: less than 20 feet; estimated number of seats: 3; estimated number of
ADA securement stations: 1; fuel type: gasoline.

Purchase includes all equipment and supplies necessary to put the vehicle into service.

The following vehicle has been approved for replacement in this Agreement:

OPTIS asset V001475; 2014/Dodge/Caravan; 2C7WDGBG9ER319561.

II. Preventive Maintenance

Preventive maintenance provides services for vehicles providing public transportation. Proper
maintenance ensures assets are kept in good condition per manufacturer's recommendations
and that safety standards are met.

Maintenance reimbursed in this Agreement is for assets used in the provision of public
transportation services for the general public, seniors, or individuals with disabilities. This
Agreement does not provide for maintenance on staff vehicles, vehicles used for business

of Recipient, or maintenance vehicles. Preventive maintenance under this Agreement does
not include repairs resulting from motor vehicle accidents covered by insurance, repairs on
vehicles or components under warranty, or repairs which are paid for in other agreements or

contracts.

III. Equipment Purchase

Purchase 1 (one) air conditioning repair equipment, 1 (one) brake repair equipment, 1 (one)
engine repair diagnostic equipment and software, including extended warranties purchased
as part of the initial procurement (not to exceed useful life of equipment), installation costs,
hardware, software, and supplies required to put the equipment into service.

ol

Page 12 of 21



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

2. PROJECT DELIVERABLES, SCHEDULE and USE
I. Vehicle Replacement

All purchases and installations must be completed prior to the expiration date of this
Agreement.

Expected order date: September 30, 20109.
Expected delivery date: June 30, 2020.

For vehicles procured using State Price Agreement contracts managed by the Oregon
Department of Administrative Services, all vehicle orders will be reviewed and approved by
State prior to submission to selected vendor. State is responsible for submitting vehicle orders
to selected vendor. If Recipient does not purchase from the State Price Agreement contracts
managed by the Oregon Department of Administrative Services, Requests for Proposals to
procure the vehicle must be reviewed by State prior to solicitation for bids. All vehicle orders
will be reviewed by State prior to submission to the selected vendor.

This Agreement provides funding to purchase a passenger transportation vehicle to be used to
provide public transportation service. Public transportation service is defined as service to the
general public or special populations such as seniors and individuals with disabilities. Recipient
may use the vehicle to coordinate public and human service transportation services with other
agencies. Recipient will not lease the vehicle to another agency without the permission of
State.

State will retain title to the vehicle as primary security interest holder as long as the vehicle
remains in public transportation service. Recipient must request permission from State to
release title for disposal when planning to sell or transfer a vehicle which has exceeded the
minimum useful standard for age and/or mileage, and must notify State when actual disposal
has been completed. Recipient must request permission from State in advance to transfer or
otherwise dispose of a vehicle prior to its meeting federal useful life standards. Recipient must
request permission from State to release title for changes.

Recipient will create and maintain a vehicle maintenance plan that utilizes the original
equipment manufacturer (OEM) maintenance requirements for each vehicle and meets FTA
transit asset management requirements in 49 CFR 625. Recipient will provide State a copy of
the maintenance plan upon request.

II. Preventive Maintenance

All preventive maintenance tasks must be completed prior to the expiration date of this
Agreement.

Preventive maintenance expenses include activities, supplies, materials, labor, services and
associated costs required to preserve or extend the functionality and serviceability of the
asset in a cost effective manner. Preventive maintenance includes, but is not limited to the
following: oil changes,; engine tune-ups; tire purchases; tire maintenance; annual vehicle
inspections; scheduled or routine maintenance; and associated parts, supplies and labor.

Recipient must provide to State a plan for proposed preventive maintenance, unless a plan
is already on file with State. Reimbursement requests must match the activities or purchases
described in Recipient's plan.

A major component replacement (such as an engine or transmission), or a major rebuild or
overhaul that keeps the asset within useful life or extends the useful life may be eligible for
reimbursement under this Agreement, pending verification of conformance to Recipient's
adopted maintenance plan and requirements detailed in Federal Transit Administration
Circular 5010.1E (Award Management Requirements), Chapter IV.

A vehicle must meet at least 40 percent of its useful life to be considered for an overhaul.
Recipient must obtain pre-approval from State prior to any vehicle overhaul. Vehicle rebuilds

Page 13 of 21 L\\



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

must extend the useful life of the vehicle by at least four years.

If local circumstances change, for example, vehicle type or asset disposition, Recipient's
maintenance plan must be updated to reflect that change and submitted to State within 90
days of the change.

III. Equipment Purchase

All purchases and installations must be completed prior to the expiration date of this
Agreement.

Expected order date: January 31, 2020.
Expected delivery date: April 30, 2020.

Recipient is required to create and maintain an equipment maintenance plan, created utilizing
the original manufacturer equipment maintenance intervals and requirements. Recipient shall
provide State a copy of the equipment maintenance plan upon reguest.

3. PROJECT ACCOUNTING and MATCHING FUNDING
I. Vehicle Replacement

Eligible expenses that may be charged to this Agreement include grant administration, the
cost of the procurement process, delivery charges and post-delivery inspections. Aftermarket
equipment, graphics and other items directly associated with this vehicle and required to put
the vehicle into service are eligible. Purchase of an extended warranty is an eligible expense;
however, the eligible warranty shall not exceed the defined useful life of the vehicle. Licensing
and other post-delivery expenses are not eligible for reimbursement.

Recipient will provide matching funding from non-federal source(s). Sources of funding that
may be used as matching funding for this Agreement include Special Transportation Formula
Funds, local funds, service contract revenue, advertisement income, other earned income,
cash donations, and other verifiable in-kind contributions that are integral to the project
budget. Recipient may not use passenger fares as matching funding.

Recipient will subtract income from fares, tickets, and passes whether pre-paid or post-paid,
from the gross operating expenses of the service. Under this Agreement, State will bear

the sum remaining after the amount of Recipient’s required share of local matching funds is
subtracted from the total project expenses. Recipient may not count the same costs twice if
they have multiple agreements for which these costs may be eligible.

II. Preventive Maintenance

Sources that may be used as Recipient's matching funds for this Agreement include Special
Transportation Fund, local funds, service contract revenue, advertisement income, other
earned income, cash donations, and other verifiable in-kind contributions that are integral

to the project budget. Recipient may not use passenger fares as matching funds. Under this
Agreement, State will bear the sum remaining after the amount of Recipient’s required share
of local matching funds is subtracted from the total project expenses.

III. Equipment Purchase

Associated costs incurred from the procurement process, delivery charges, and post-delivery
inspections are included in the reimbursable expenses associated with this Agreement.

Purchases or charges that are otherwise paid for in other agreements or contracts are
excluded. Annual renewals of extended warranties are not eligible as a capital expense after
equipment is delivered and accepted by the Recipient.

4. REPORTING and INVOICING REQUIREMENTS

I. Vehicle Replacement

Page 14 of 21 \U\)



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

Recipient will provide reporting information as prescribed by State on the vehicle
purchased under this Agreement as long as the vehicle remains in public transportation
service. Recipient will submit a request for reimbursement in a format provided by State.
Reimbursement requests must include the following: a cover letter; copies of all invoices
associated with expenses identified for reimbursement; and pre-award and post-delivery
certification forms documenting compliance to Altoona bus testing, Federal Motor Vehicle
Safety Standards, Buy America, and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise requirements.

II. Preventive Maintenance

Recipient will request reimbursement for covered expenses incurred during each period as
prescribed by State and described in Recipient's submitted preventive maintenance plan for
this Agreement. Recipient must maintain and provide supporting documents detailing the total
expenses for allowable maintenance activities incurred during the period. Recipient may list
costs on a form provided by State, or provide vendor invoices.

III. Equipment Purchase

If equipment purchased under this Agreement is valued at $5,000 or more (a "capital asset”),
Recipient will provide reporting information as prescribed by State on the equipment as long
as it remains in use for public transportation service. As a capital expense, all equipment
must be in an inventory and reported to State as a capital asset using a unique Recipient
identification number.

Recipient will request reimbursement for covered expenses incurred during each period as
prescribed by State. Copies of vendor invoices must be provided for all purchases. With
the final payment request, Recipient is required to submit a complete inventory of items
purchased under this Agreement.

Page 15 of 21



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

EXHIBIT B

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The information below will assist auditors to prepare a report in compliance with the requirements
of 2 CFR part 200, subpart F.

This Agreement is financed by the funding source indicated below:

Federal Program Federal Funding Agency CFDA Number Total Federal Funding
49 U.S.C. 5310 U.S. Department of Transportation | 20.513 (5310) $113,236.00
Federal Transit Administration
915 Second Avenue, Suite 3142
Seattle, WA 98174

Administered By

Rail and Public Transit Division
555 13th Street NE

Salem, OR 97301-4179

Page 16 of 21 \QJ



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

EXHIBIT C

Insurance Requirements

GENERAL - SUBRECIPIENT.

Recipient shall require in its first tier subagreements with entities that are not units of local
government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND
AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE
OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance

under the subagreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout
the duration of the subagreement. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or
entities that are authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State
of Oregon and that are acceptable to State. Recipient shall not authorize work to begin under
subagreements until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor continued
compliance with the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis. Recipient shall
incorporate appropriate provisions in the subagreement permitting it to enforce compliance with
the insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance. In
no event shall Recipient permit work under a subagreement when Recipient is aware that the
contractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, "first tier"
means a subagreement in which the Recipient is a Party.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

i. WORKERS COMPENSATION. Insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires all
employers that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, to provide workers'
compensation coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption
under ORS 656.126(2). Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000
must be included.

ii. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury,
death, and property damage in a form and with coverages that are satisfactory to State. This
insurance shall include personal injury liability, products and completed operations. Coverage shall
be written on an occurrence form basis, with not less than the following amounts as determined
by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

iii. AUTOMOBILE Liability Insurance: Automobile Liability. Automobile Liability Insurance covering
all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in combination with the
Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for "Commercial General Liability"
and "Automobile Liability"). Automobile Liability Insurance must be in not less than the following
amounts as determined by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

ADDITIONAL INSURED. The Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability
insurance must include State, its officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds but only
with respect to the contractor’s activities to be performed under the Subcontract. Coverage must
be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

"TAIL" COVERAGE. If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as
professional liability insurance, the contractor shall maintain either "tail" coverage or continuous

Page 17 of 21 \be



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

"claims made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous "claims made"
coverage is on or before the effective date of the Subcontract, for a minimum of 24 months following
the later of: (i) the contractor's completion and Recipient's acceptance of all Services required
under the Subcontract or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under the Subcontract.
Notwithstanding the foregoing 24-month requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain "tail"
coverage and if the maximum time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace
is less than the 24-month period described above, then the contractor may request and State may
grant approval of the maximum "tail" coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace.
If State approval is granted, the contractor shall maintain "tail" coverage for the maximum time
period that "tail" coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. The contractor or its insurer must provide 30 days' written
notice to Recipient before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate
limits of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. Recipient shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of
insurance for all required insurance before the contractor performs under the Subcontract. The
certificate(s) or an attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are
endorsed on the policy as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the
extended reporting period applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made" coverage.

GENERAL - RECIPIENT.

Recipient shall: i) obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND AMOUNTS (except TYPES AND
AMOUNTS paragraph I applies only to Recipient's subcontractors who employ subject workers)
and meeting the requirements under ADDITIONAL INSURED, "TAIL" COVERAGE, NOTICE OF
CANCELLATION OR CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance under this
Agreement commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout the duration of this
Agreement. The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or entities that are authorized
to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of Oregon and that are
acceptable to State.

TYPES AND AMOUNTS.

i. WORKERS COMPENSATION. Insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which requires all
employers that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, to provide Workers'
Compensation coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption
under ORS 656.126(2). Employers liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000
must be included.

ii. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering bodily injury,
death, and property damage in a form and with coverages that are satisfactory to State. This
insurance shall include personal injury liability, products and completed operations. Coverage shall
be written on an occurrence form basis, with not less than the following amounts as determined
by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

iii. AUTOMOBILE Liability Insurance: Automobile Liability. Automobile Liability Insurance covering
all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. This coverage may be written in combination with the
Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for "Commercial General Liability"
and "Automobile Liability"). Automobile Liability Insurance must be in not less than the following
amounts as determined by State:

Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage:

$1,000,000 per occurrence (for all claimants for claims arising out of a single accident or
occurrence).

Page 18 of 21 \Ol’\



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

ADDITIONAL INSURED. The Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability
insurance must include State, its officers, employees and agents as Additional Insureds but only
with respect to the Recipient's activities to be performed under this Agreement. Coverage must be
primary and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance.

"TAIL" COVERAGE. If any of the required insurance policies is on a "claims made" basis, such as
professional liability insurance, Recipient shall maintain either "tail" coverage or continuous "claims
made" liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous "claims made" coverage is
on or before the effective date of this Agreement, for a minimum of 24 months following the later
of: (i) Recipient's completion and State's acceptance of all Services required under this Agreement
or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty periods provided under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the
foregoing 24-manth requirement, if Recipient elects to maintain "tail" coverage and if the maximum
time period "tail" coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the 24-month period
described above, then Recipient may request and State may grant approval of the maximum "tail"
coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace. If State approval is granted, Recipient
shall maintain "tail” coverage for the maximum time period that "tail" coverage is reasonably
available in the marketplace.

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE. Recipient or its insurer must provide 30 days' written
notice to State before cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits
of, or non-renewal of the required insurance coverage(s).

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE. State shall obtain from Recipient a certificate(s) of insurance
for all required insurance before the effective date of this Agreement . The certificate(s) or an
attached endorsement must specify: i) all entities and individuals who are endorsed on the policy
as Additional Insured and ii) for insurance on a "claims made" basis, the extended reporting period
applicable to "tail" or continuous "claims made"” coverage.

Page 19 of 21



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

EXHIBIT D

Summary of Federal Requirements and Incorporating by Reference
Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for FTA Grants and
Cooperative Agreements ("Certifications and Assurances”) and Federal
Transit Administration Master Agreement ("Master Agreement")

Recipient and Recipient's subrecipient(s), contractor(s), or subcontractor(s), at any tier, if any,
must comply with all applicable federal requirements contained in the Certifications and Assurances
available at www.transit.dot.gov. The Certifications and Assurances, including as they may be
changed during the term of this Agreement, are by this reference incorporated herein.

Recipient further agrees to comply with all applicable requirements included in the Master
Agreement that is signed and attested to by State. This Master Agreement is incorporated by
reference and made part of this Agreement. Said Master Agreement is available upon request from
State by calling (503) 986-3300, or at www.transit.dot.gov. Without limiting the foregoing, the
following is a summary of some requirements applicable to transactions covered by this Agreement
and the funds described in Exhibit A:

1. Recipient shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 State 252, 42 U.S.C. §
2000d) and the regulations of the United States Department of Transportation (49 CFR 21,
Subtitle A). Recipient shall exclude no person on the grounds of race, religion, color, sex,
age, national origin, or disability from the benefits of aid received under this Agreement.
Recipient will report to State on at least an annual basis the following information: any active
lawsuits or complaints, including dates, summary of allegation, status of lawsuit or complaint
including whether the Parties entered into a consent decree.

2. Recipient shall comply with FTA regulations in Title 49 CFR 27 Nondiscrimination on the Basis
of Disability in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance which implements
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 49
CFR 37, and 49 CFR 38.

3. Recipient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the award
and performance of any USDOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE program
or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. Recipient shall take all necessary and reasonable steps
under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of USDOT-
assisted contracts. Recipient's DBE program, if applicable, as required by 49 CFR part 26
and as approved by USDQT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement. Implementation
of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a
violation of this agreement. Upon notification to State of its failure to carry out its approved
program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under part 26 and may,
in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.).

4. Recipient must include the following language in each subagreement Recipient signs with a
subcontractor or subrecipient:

The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color,
national origin, or sex in the performance of this Agreement. The contractor, subrecipient,
or subcontractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award
and administration of USDOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor, subrecipient, or
subcontractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which
may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as Recipient deems
appropriate.

5. By executing the Agreement, Recipient and contractors receiving in excess of $100,000 in
federal funds, other than Indian tribes, certify to State that they have not and will not use
federal funds to pay for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any federal department or Agency, a member of Congress, or an employee of a member of
Congress in connection with obtaining any federal grant, cooperative agreement or any other

Page 20 of 21 ) Dt—p



Tillamook County Transportation District/State of Oregon
Agreement No. 33600

federal award as well as the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification
of any federal contract, grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other federal award. This
certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
Agreement was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for
making or entering into this Agreement imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code.
Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of
not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. If non-federal
funds have been used to support lobbying activities in connection with the Project, Recipient
shall complete Standard Form LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying and submit the form
to State at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs an event that requires
disclosure. Restrictions on lobbying do not apply to influencing policy decisions. Examples of
prohibited activities include seeking support for a particular application or bid and seeking
a congressional earmark.

Page 21 of 21 l Or?



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Execute a STF Formula Agreement )
with Marie Mills Center to Provide )
Special Transportation Services ) RESOLUTION NO. 19-17

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) is the
designated STF Agency for Tillamook County and receives and distributes Special
Transportation Fund Program monies; and

WHEREAS, TCTD’s STF Advisory Committee reviewed eligible activities
listed in the District’s “Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan; and

WHEREAS, the STF Advisory Committee convened on January 25, 2019
to review proposed projects and determined the Marie Mills Center special transportation
services program an eligible activity in the District's “Coordinated Human Services Public
Transportation Plan”; and

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board accepted the STF Advisory Committee’s
recommendations by Resolution 19-01 on February 21, 2019; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to execute the attached agreement with the
Marie Mills Center regarding the use of Special Transportation Fund monies.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County
Transportation District Board of Directors:

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors
authorizes a total award of $34,628 to Marie Mills Center for special transportation
services for developmentally disabled adults; and

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the General Manager to execute the STF Formula Agreement with the Marie
Mills Center on behalf of the District.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of June 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

0%




MARIE MILLS CENTER
STF FORMULA AGREEMENT

This Agreement is entered into by and between Marie Mills Center, Inc., (MMCI)
an Oregon nonprofit, hereafter Contractor and Tillamook County Transportation District
a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereafter “TCTD”. TCTD and Contractor
intend to contract for Special Transportation Formula Funds pursuant to OAR 732-005-
0061. The mutual promises of each are given in exchange and as consideration for the
promises of the other.

TCTD and Contractor mutually covenant and agree as follows:

1. STATEMENT OF WORK: CONTRACTOR agrees to provide certain special
transportation services as more particularly described within Exhibit A attached
here to and by this reference made a part hereof. CONTRACTOR agrees to
comply with the provisions of Agreement No. 33502 between ODOT and TCTD,
authorizing TCTD to receive state STF funds as well as the reporting conditions
as shown on Exhibit B.

2. CONSIDERATION: The price for the services and/or goods provided by
CONTRACTOR shall be $34,628 during the 2019-2021 Biennium. Payment
shall be made in eight (8) quarterly installments of $4,329, upon receipt of, and
approval of, the quarterly report and documentation.

3. CONTRACT TERM: The term or period of this agreement shall be from July 1,
2019 through June 30, 2021.

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The following documents comprise the contract and
are incorporated here in reference in their entirety.
a. 2019-2021 Biennium STF Formula Program Application for this project
b. The Marie Mills Center Proposal attached as Exhibit A
c. The Marie Mills Center Reporting conditions attached as Exhibit B
d. Agreement No. 33502 insurance requirements between the State of
Oregon, ODOT and TCTD, Exhibit C

5. SUBCONTRACTS: CONTRACTOR shall not enter into any subcontracts for any
of the work scheduled under this contract unless they have been reviewed and
approved by the Special Transportation Fund Advisory Committee and received
approval from the TILLAMOOK COUNTY STF AGENCY ADMINISTRATOR.

6. DUAL PAYMENT: CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to compensation or any
other form of duplicate, overlapping, or multiple payments for the same work
performed under this contract from any other source.

7. AMENDMENTS: The terms of this agreement shall not be waived, altered,
modified, supplemented, or amended, in any manner whatsoever, except by
written instrument signed by the parties.

Page 1 — STF Formula Agreement



8.

10.

11.

12.

1:8:

14.

TERMINATION:

a. The contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties, or by
either party upon 30 days’ notice in writing and delivered by certified mail,
or in person. Any such termination of this contract shall be without
prejudice to any obligation or liabilities of either party already accrued
before such termination.

b. TCTD may terminate this Agreement upon 10 days' notice to
CONTRACTOR and failure of CONTRACTOR to cure within the period
provided in the notice if CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any of the
terms of this Agreement.

ACCESS TO RECORDS: The TCTD, the Secretary of State's Office of the State
of Oregon, the Public Transit Division of the Oregon Department of
Transportation, or their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the
books, documents, papers, and records of the CONTRACTOR, which are related
to the performance of this contract for the purpose of making audit, examination,
excerpts, and transcripts.

STATE WORKERS' COMPENSATION ACT: The CONTRACTOR, its
subcontractors, if any, and all employers working under this agreement are
subject employers under the Oregon Workers’ Compensation Law and shall
comply with ORS 656.017, which requires them to provide workers’
compensation coverage for all their subject workers. Contractor shall provide
proof of compliance with. Oregon Workers’ Compensation law by providing TCTD
with a copy of Notice of Compliance or similar document.

LIABILITY; INDEMNIFICATION: The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend,
save, and hold harmless the TCTD, the Public Transit Division of the Oregon
Department of Transportation, and their respective officers, agents, employees,
and members, from all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses,
including attorneys’ fees, arising from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS
30.260, caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or any of CONTRACTOR'S officers,
agents, employees, or subcontractors (“Claims”). It is the specific intention of the
parties that the State shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from
the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the State, be indemnified by
CONTRACTOR from and against all claims.

NONDISCRIMINATION: CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all applicable
requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statues, rules, and
regulations.

WAIVER: The failure of the TCTD to enforce any provision of this contract shall
not constitute a waiver by the TCTD of that or any other provision.

INSURANCE: CONTRACTOR covenants that it has, and will retain throughout
the term of this agreement, insurance coverage sufficient to protect project

Page 2 — STF Formula Agreement

\_\O



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

facilities and equipment and to fund the indemnity of paragraph 11.0 of this
agreement and Exhibit C to Grant Agreement No. 33502.

ASSIGNMENT: CONTRACTOR shall not assign or transfer its interest in this
contract without the express written consent of the TCTD.

INTEGRATION:  This AGREEMENT supersedes all prior oral or written
agreements between CONTRACTOR and TCTD regarding this project. It
represents the entire agreement between the parties. Time is of the essence in
all terms, provision, covenants, and conditions of this agreement.

SAVINGS: Should any clause or section of this AGREEMENT be declared by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be void; the remainder of the AGREEMENT
shall remain in full force and effect.

JURISDICTION; LAW: This AGREEMENT is executed in the State of Oregon,
and is subject to Oregon law and jurisdiction. Venue shall be in Tillamook
County, Oregon, unless otherwise agreed by the parties.

LEGAL REPRESENTATION: In entering into this agreement, each party has
relied solely upon the advice of their own attorney. Each party has had the
opportunity to consult with counsel or now waives that right. Each party
represents and warrants to the other that they are fully satisfied with the
representation received from their respective attorneys.

ATTORNEY FEES: Attorney fees, costs and disbursements necessary to enforce
this agreement through mediation, arbitration and/or litigation, including appeals,
shall be awarded to the prevailing party, unless otherwise specified herein or
agreed.

NOTICES: Any notice required or permitted under this AGREEMENT shall be in
writing and deemed given when actually delivered or three days after the deposit
in United States certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the other party at
their last known address.

LANGUAGE: The heading of the contract paragraphs are intended for
information only and shall not be used to interpret paragraph contents. All
masculine, feminine and neuter references are interchangeable. All singular and
plural nouns are interchangeable, unless the context requires otherwise.

MEDIATION; ARBITRATION;

a. DISPUTES FIRST MEDIATED, THEN ARBITRATED: All disputes on or
related to this contract shall be submitted first to mediation and then, if any
dispute remains, to binding arbitration. Mediation and arbitration shall be
in Tillamook County, Oregon, uniess otherwise agreed.

b. PROCEDURE FOR ARBITRATION; COSTS: The parties shall attempt in
good faith to resolve any dispute arising out of this Agreement. In

Page 3 — STF Formula Agreement



addition, the parties agree to utilize a jointly selected mediator or arbitrator
(for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of litigation. The
costs and expenses of any mediator or arbitrator shall be shared equally
by the parties.

NOTICE OF DEMAND: Notice of demand for mediation or arbitration
shall be filed in writing with the other party to this agreement. The
demand shall be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute or
other matter in question has arisen. In no event shall the demand for
mediation or arbitration be made after the date when institution of legal or
equitable proceedings based on such claims, dispute or other matter
would be barred by the applicable statute of limitation.

24, COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which is an original and all of which together are deemed
one agreement binding on all parties, notwithstanding that all parties are not
signatories to the same counterpart.

DATED THIS DAY OF , 2019.
Contractor:
Ron Rush, Executive Director Federal Tax I.D. No.

Marie Mills Center, Inc.

DATED this day of

Tillamook County Transportation District

STF Administrator
Doug Pilant, General Manager
Tillamook County Transportation District

DATED this

day of

Page 4 — STF Formula Agreement

\¢



EXHIBIT A
History of Marie Mills Center and Goals

Marie Mills Center has been in existence since 1969 serving developmentally
disabled adults within its residential and vocational programs. Marie Mills Center
is the lone provider of services to developmentally disabled adults in Tillamook
County. Marie Mills Center is a well-known and established non-profit agency.
The goals of our agency are simple in scope but are far reaching. Simply put,
they are to provide support and opportunities for program participants so that
they achieve their highest level of personal independence in a manner that is
normalized and integrated within their community.

Narrative Regarding Existing Transportation Services

Marie Mills Center transportation services can be classified as either scheduled
(for vocational programs) or unscheduled for (for residential programs). Within
its vocational program, Marie Mills Center, on a daily basis, transports individuals
to and from various work sites, banking, shopping, medical needs, and social or
recreational activities throughout Tillamook County. Quite literally, during
summer months with the various work schedules, the Marie Mills Center
vocational program will transport individuals up to seven (07) days per week with
transportation encompassing up to twenty (20) hours in a given day.

What We Hope to Accomplish with STF Funding

Marie Mills Center Transportation Services are vital to services offered by our
program. As with most transportation services, ours (even with STF support)
operates at a deficit. Fortunately, program surpluses in other agency programs
help cover this deficit. STF assistance is vital in enabling our program to meet
the many transportation needs of our program participants. STF funding assists
in many areas of transportation such as maintenance, fuel costs, and
transportation personnel. STF funding enables our program to avoid further
internal subsidies of our transportation program, which means funds are better
spent on client services and program needs.

Goals for 2019 to 2021

1. Utilize approved STF Discretionary funding to enhance transportation for the
disabled in MMCI residential and vocational programs as follows:

a) Utilize tokens to increase public transit ridership for MMCI Clients

b) Utilize Tokens to increase Public transit ridership for eligible CARE
clients.

c) Ultilize grant funds to cover vehicle preventative maintenance
expenses

2. Utilize approved STF formula funding to offset Marie Mills Center
transportation program operational costs (driver wages etc).

3. Strengthen South Tillamook County Transportation “runs” by increasing that
ridership to MMCI for services.

\



EXHIBIT B

Reporting Conditions in the Agreement between MARIE MILLS CENTER, INC.
and TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT for Special
Transportation Formula (STF) Funding will be as follows:

Marie Mills Center will make quarterly progress reports to TCTD, in accordance
with Agreement No. 33502 between the State of Oregon, ODOT and TCTD.

Reporting periods are July through September, October through December,
January through March, and April through June.

Reporting forms will be on the Quarterly Report Form issued by the Oregon
Public Transit Division of the Oregon Department of Transportation (RPTD-
ODOQOT) and sent to Tillamook County Transportation District within 30 days of the
end of the quarter being reported.

The District and Participant’s Quarterly Report will be sent to the Oregon

Department of Transportation within 45 days of the end of the quarter being
reported.



EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATION OF INSURANCE

\&



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Execute a STF Formula )
Agreement with CARE, Inc. for )
Discount Bus Pass Program ) RESOLUTION NO. 19-18

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) is the
designated STF Agency for Tillamook County and receives and distributes Special
Transportation Fund Program monies; and

WHEREAS, TCTD’s STF Advisory Committee reviewed eligible activities
listed in the District's “Coordinated Human Services Public Transportation Plan; and

WHEREAS, the STF Advisory Committee convened on January 25, 2019
to review proposed projects and determined the CARE Inc. Discount Pass Program to
be an eligible activity in the Districts “Coordinated Human Services Public
Transportation Plan”; and

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board accepted the STF Advisory Committee's
recommendations and approved by Resolution 19-01 on February 21, 2019; and,

WHEREAS, it is necessary to execute the attached agreement with
CARE, Inc. regarding the use of Special Transportation Fund monies; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County
Transportation District Board of Directors:

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors
authorizes a total award of $7,200 to CARE, Inc. for the provision of bus passes to
seniors and disabled individuals; and

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors
hereby authorizes the General Manager to execute the STF Fund Formula Agreement
for the CARE, Inc. Discount Bus Pass Program on behalf of the District.
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of June, 2019.
ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

I



COMMUNITY ACTION RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, INC.
SPECIAL TRANSPORTATION FUND (STF)
FORMULA AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Community Action Resources
Enterprise, Inc. (“CARE”), an Oregon non-profit corporation and the Tillamook County
Transportation District (“TCTD”), a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereinafter
collectively referred to as “the Parties.” CARE and TCTD intend to contract for Special
Transportation Fund (STF) Formula pursuant to OAR 732-005-0061.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, the Parties
agree as follows:

1. STATEMENT OF WORK. CARE will utilize the funds awarded from TCTD to
provide bus passes to low income senior citizens and persons with
disabilities. Specifically, CARE will provide transit tokens or a transit voucher to
clients for their use to purchase a reduced monthly bus pass. CARE anticipates
serving 120 clients per year through this award. CARE agrees to comply with all
reporting conditions described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made part of this
Agreement.

2. CONSIDERATION. TCTD will award to CARE $7,200 for the purchase of the
reduced fare bus passes described above in the statement of work. Use of funds
shall be consistent with the above Statement of Work. Payment shall be made in
eight (8) quarterly installments of $900, upon receipt and approval of the quarterly
report and documentation.

3. TERM. This Agreement is effective from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021.

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The following documents are incorporated into and
made part of this Agreement:

a. 2019/2021 Biennium Application
b. Reporting conditions attached as Exhibit A
c. Agreement No. 33502 between the State of Oregon, ODOT and TCTD

5. SUBCONTRACTS. CARE shall not enter into any subcontracts for the performance
of any part of this Agreement without the review and approval of the District's STIF
Advisory Committee and approval of the Tillamook County Transportation District
General Manager.

6. DUAL PAYMENT. CARE shall not be entitled to compensation or any other form of
duplicate, overlapping, or multiple payments for the same work performed under this
contract from any other source.

7. AMENDMENTS. The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered,
modified, supplemented, or amended unless the Parties jointly agree, in writing.

8. TERMINATION. The Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both
Parties, or by either Party upon 30-day notice, in writing, and delivered by certified
mail or in person. Any such termination of this Agreement shall be without prejudice

W]



2

to any obligation or liabilities of either party already accrued before such termination.
TCTD may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective upon delivery of
written notice to CARE, or at such later date as may be established by TCTD, under
any of the following conditions:

a. If CARE fails to provide services called for by this Agreement within the time
specified herein or any extension granted by TCTD.

b. If CARE fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement, or so
fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this Agreement in
accordance with its terms, and after receipt of written notice from TCTD fails
to correct such failures within ten (10) days or such longer period as TCTD
may authorize.

c. Ifany license or certification required by law or regulation to be held by CARE
to provide services required by this Agreement is for any reason denied,
revoked, or not renewed.

d. CARE is in default under any provision of this Agreement.

REMEDIES. The rights and remedies of TCTD provided in this Agreement related
to defaults by CARE shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights
and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.

10.ACCESS TO RECORDS. TCTD, the Secretary of State's Office of the State of

11.

Oregon, the Public Transit Division of the Oregon Department of Transportation, or
their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents,
papers, and records of CARE which are related to the performance of this contract
for the purpose of conducting an audit or examination, and obtaining excerpts and
transcripts.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION. CARE shall comply with ORS 656.017 which
requires them to provide workers’ compensation coverage for all their subject
workers. CARE shall provide proof of compliance with Oregon Workers’
Compensation law by providing TCTD with a copy of Notice of Compliance or similar
document.

12.INDEMNIFICATION. CARE shall indemnify, defend, save, and hold harmless the

TCTD, the Public Transit Division of the Oregon Department of Transportation, and
their respective officers, agents, employees, and members, from all claims, actions,
liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising from a
tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260, caused, or alleged to be caused,
in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of CARE or any of
CARE'S officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors (“Claims”). It is the specific
intention of the parties that the State shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising
solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the State, be indemnified by
CARE from and against all claims.

13.INSURANCE. CARE covenants that it has, and will retain throughout the term of

this Agreement, insurance coverage consistent with the requirements of ODOT

Grant Agreement No. 33502.
b



14.NONDISCRIMINATION. CARE agrees to comply with all applicable requirements
of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules, and regulations.

15.WAIVER. The failure of TCTD to enforce any provision of this contract shall not
constitute a waiver by TCTD of that or any other provision.

16.ASSIGNMENT. CARE shall not assign or transfer its interest in this Agreement
without the express written consent of TCTD.

17.ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement supersedes all prior oral or written
agreements between CARE and TCTD regarding this proposal. It represents the
entire agreement between the Parties. Time is of the essence in all terms, provision,
covenants, and conditions of this Agreement.

18.SEVERABILITY. Should any clause or section of this Agreement be declared by a
court to be void or voidable, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect.

19.JURISDICTION. This Agreement is executed in the State of Oregon, and is subject
to Oregon law and jurisdiction. Venue shall be in Tillamook County, Oregon, unless
otherwise agreed by the Parties.

20.LEGAL REPRESENTATION. In entering into this agreement, each Party has relied
solely upon the advice of their own attorney. Each Party has had the opportunity to
consult with counsel or now waives that right. Each Party represents and warrants
to the other that they are fully satisfied with the representation received from their
respective attorneys.

21.NOTICES. The Parties must send any notices, invoices, or other written
communications required by this Agreement through the United States Mail, first-
class postage paid, or personally delivered to the addresses below. Any notice
required or permitted under this Agreement shall be effective when actually
delivered or three days after the date postmarked if sent by United States Mail.

TCTD CARE, Inc.

Attn: Doug Pilant, General Manager Attn: Erin Skaar, Executive Director
3600 3rd St, Ste A 2310 First St, Ste 2

Tillamook, OR 97141 Tillamook, OR 97141

22 DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The parties agree to attempt to resolve any disputes
relating to this Agreement by taking the following steps:

a. In-person meeting between General Manager of TCTD and Executive
Director of CARE.

b. In-person meeting between two members of TCTD’s Board of Directors and
CARE's Board of Directors

The Parties may agree to mediate at any stage of the dispute resolution process.
The Parties may have legal assistance at any of the meetings in this process.

N



Each Party represents to the other by their signatures below that each has read,
understands, and agrees to all covenants, terms, and conditions of this Agreement; each
Party represents to the other to have the actual and/or apparent authority to bind their
respective legal persons, corporate or otherwise.

TCTD CARE, INC.
Doug Pilant, General Manager Erin Skaar, Executive Director
Date Date

150



Exhibit “A”

Reporting Conditions in the Agreement between CARE, INC. and TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT for Special Transportation Fund (STF) formula funding will
be as follows:

CARE, Inc. will make quarterly progress reports to TCTD, in accordance with Agreement
No. 33502 between the State of Oregon, ODOT and TCTD. Reporting periods are July
through September, October through December, January through March, and April through
June.

Reporting forms will be on the Quarterly Report Form issued by the Oregon Public Transit
Division of the Oregon Department of Transportation (RPTD-ODQOT), and sent to Tillamook
County Transportation District within 30 days of the end of the quarter being reported.

The District and Participant’s Quarterly Report will be sent to the Oregon Department of
Transportation within 45 days of the end of the quarter being reported.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Execute a STIF Formula )
Agreement with CARE, Inc. for a )
Low Income Bus Pass Program ) RESOLUTION NO. 19-19
WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) is the
designated Qualified Entity (QE) for Tillamook County and receives and distributes
Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) formula program monies; and

WHEREAS, the STIF Advisory Committee convened on October 3, 2019
to review proposed projects and determined the CARE Inc. Low Income Bus Pass
Program to be an eligible activity in the District's “FY 2019-21 STIF Plan”; and

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board accepted the STF Advisory Committee's
recommendations and approved by Resolution 18-24 on October 18, 2018; and,

WHEREAS, it is necessary to execute the attached agreement with
CARE, Inc. regarding the use of Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund monies;
and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County
Transportation District Board of Directors:

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors
authorizes a total award of up to $10,000 to CARE, Inc. for the provision of bus passes
to Tillamook County individuals residing in households at or below the federal 200%
poverty threshold; and

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors
hereby authorizes the General Manager to execute the STIF Formula Agreement for the
CARE, Inc. Low Income Bus Pass Program on behalf of the District.
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of June, 2019.
ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

|3



COMMUNITY ACTION RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, INC.
STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND (STIF)
FORMULA AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Community Action Resources
Enterprise, Inc. (“CARE"), an Oregon non-profit corporation and the Tillamook County
Transportation District (“TCTD”), a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereinafter
collectively referred to as “the Parties.” CARE and TCTD intend to contract for Statewide
Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) Formula Program pursuant to OAR 732-040-
0005.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, the Parties
agree as follows:

1. STATEMENT OF WORK. CARE will utilize STIF funds to provide bus passes to
Tillamook County residents living in households below federal 200% poverty
level. Specifically, CARE will provide transit voucher to clients for their use to
purchase a monthly bus pass. CARE anticipates serving 120 clients per year
through this award. CARE agrees to comply with all reporting conditions described
in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made part of this Agreement.

2. CONSIDERATION. TCTD will award CARE Inc. up to $10,000 for the purchase
of regular and reduced bus passes described above in the statement of work. Use
of funds shall be consistent with the above Statement of Work. Payment shall be
made in eight (8) quarterly instaliments of $1,250.

3. TERM. This Agreement is effective from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022.

4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The following documents are incorporated into and
made part of this Agreement:

a. 2019/2021 Biennium Application
b. Reporting conditions attached as Exhibit A

5. SUBCONTRACTS. CARE shall not enter into any subcontracts for the
performance of any part of this Agreement without the review and approval of the
District's STIF Advisory Committee and approval of the Tillamook County
Transportation District General Manager.

6. DUAL PAYMENT. CARE shall not be entitled to compensation or any other form

of duplicate, overlapping, or multiple payments for the same work performed under
this contract from any other source.

7. AMENDMENTS. The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered,
modified, supplemented, or amended unless the Parties jointly agree, in writing.

Y



8. TERMINATION. The Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both
Parties, or by either Party upon 30-day notice, in writing, and delivered by certified
mail or in person. Any such termination of this Agreement shall be without
prejudice to any obligation or liabilities of either party already accrued before such
termination. TCTD may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective
upon delivery of written notice to CARE, or at such later date as may be established
by TCTD, under any of the following conditions:

a. If CARE fails to provide services called for by this Agreement within the time
specified herein or any extension granted by TCTD.

b. If CARE fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement, or so
fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this Agreement in
accordance with its terms, and after receipt of written notice from TCTD fails
to correct such failures within ten (10) days or such longer period as TCTD
may authorize.

c. If any license or certification required by law or regulation to be held by
CARE to provide services required by this Agreement is for any reason
denied, revoked, or not renewed.

d. CARE is in default under any provision of this Agreement.

9. REMEDIES. The rights and remedies of TCTD provided in this Agreement related
to defaults by CARE shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights
and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.

10.ACCESS TO RECORDS. TCTD, the Secretary of State’s Office of the State of
Oregon, the Public Transit Division of the Oregon Department of Transportation,
or their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the books,
documents, papers, and records of CARE which are related to the performance of
this contract for the purpose of conducting an audit or examination, and obtaining
excerpts and transcripts.

11.WORKERS' COMPENSATION. CARE shall comply with ORS 656.017 which
requires them to provide workers’ compensation coverage for all their subject
workers. CARE shall provide proof of compliance with Oregon Workers'
Compensation law by providing TCTD with a copy of Notice of Compliance or
similar document.

12.INDEMNIFICATION. CARE shall indemnify, defend, save, and hold harmless the
TCTD, the Public Transit Division of the Oregon Department of Transportation, and
their respective officers, agents, employees, and members, from all claims,
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising
from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260, caused, or alleged to be
caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of CARE
or any of CARE'S officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors (“Claims”). It is
the specific intention of the parties that the State shall, in all instances, except for

M



Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the State, be
indemnified by CARE from and against all claims.

13.INSURANCE. CARE covenants that it has, and will retain throughout the term of
this Agreement, insurance coverage consistent with the requirements of ODOT.

14.NONDISCRIMINATION. CARE agrees to comply with all applicable requirements
of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules, and regulations.

15.WAIVER. The failure of TCTD to enforce any provision of this contract shall not
constitute a waiver by TCTD of that or any other provision.

16.ASSIGNMENT. CARE shall not assign or transfer its interest in this Agreement
without the express written consent of TCTD.

17.ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement supersedes all prior oral or written
agreements between CARE and TCTD regarding this proposal. It represents the
entire agreement between the Parties. Time is of the essence in all terms,
provision, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement.

18.SEVERABILITY. Should any clause or section of this Agreement be declared by
a court to be void or voidable, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

19.JURISDICTION. This Agreement is executed in the State of Oregon, and is
subject to Oregon law and jurisdiction. Venue shall be in Tillamook County,
Oregon, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties.

20.LEGAL REPRESENTATION. In entering into this agreement, each Party has
relied solely upon the advice of their own attorney. Each Party has had the
opportunity to consult with counsel or now waives that right. Each Party represents
and warrants to the other that they are fully satisfied with the representation
received from their respective attorneys.

21.NOTICES. The Parties must send any notices, invoices, or other written
communications required by this Agreement through the United States Mail, first-
class postage paid, or personally delivered to the addresses below. Any notice
required or permitted under this Agreement shall be effective when actually
delivered or three days after the date postmarked if sent by United States Mail.

TCTD CARE, Inc.

Attn: Doug Pilant, General Manager Attn: Erin Skaar, Executive Director
3600 3rd St, Ste A 2310 First St, Ste 2

Tillamook, OR 97141 Tillamook, OR 97141



22.DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The parties agree to attempt to resolve any disputes
relating to this Agreement by taking the following steps:

a. In-person meeting between General Manager of TCTD and Executive
Director of CARE.

b. In-person meeting between two members of TCTD's Board of Directors and
CARE’s Board of Directors

The Parties may agree to mediate at any stage of the dispute resolution process.
The Parties may have legal assistance at any of the meetings in this process.

Each Party represents to the other by their signatures below that each has read,
understands, and agrees to all covenants, terms, and conditions of this Agreement; each
Party represents to the other to have the actual and/or apparent authority to bind their
respective legal persons, corporate or otherwise.

TCTD CARE, INC.
Doug Pilant, General Manager Erin Skaar, Executive Director
Date Date



Exhibit “A”

Reporting Conditions in the Agreement between CARE, INC. and TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT for Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF)
formula funding will be as follows:

CARE, Inc. will distribute vouchers individuals to purchase regular or discount bus passes
to Tillamook County residents who CARE Inc. has determined is a member of low-income
households below the 200% federal poverty guidelines. TCTD conducted a low-income
household analysis and concluded that 40% of all Tillamook County households meet the
200% federal poverty threshold. This study also concluded that 48% of households in
south Tillamook County are below the 200% poverty level while most households meeting
the poverty guideline are within the greater Tillamook area.

Reporting forms will be on the Quarterly Report Form issued by the Oregon Public Transit
Division of the Oregon Department of Transportation (RPTD-ODOT).

\2 )



For Board Meeting of June 20, 2019
Agenda ltem # 27

MEMO TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER ‘W25
SUBJECT: LOW FLOOR BUS PURCHASE

Issue

Shall the Board authorize the General Manager to purchase three (3) Category C
medium sized medium-duty Chevrolet Arboc buses from Creative Bus Sales?

Background and Findings

1. The ODOT Rail and Public Transit Division (RPTD) awarded TCTD a Section 5311
and a Section 5339 Capital Grant to purchase three (3) Category C medium sized
medium-duty buses to be used for the District's deviated fixed route services.

2. Oregon'’s transit agencies who are awarded capital grant funds through the Rail
Public Transit Division (RPTD) are encouraged to purchase transit vehicles through
the Oregon Department of Administrative Services (DAS) State Price Agreement.

3. The District conducted RPTD’s request for quotation (RFQ) process requesting
quotes from Creative Bus Sales, Schetky NW Sales, and New Flyer Bus Sales for
vehicles they listed on the State Price Agreement.

4. The District received two quotes from Shetky NW and Creative Bus Sales. Shetky
NW provided a quote for a Champion Transport on a Ford chassis while Creative
Bus Sales provided a quote for an Arboc Spirit of Mobility on a Chevrolet chassis.
New Flyer Bus Sales did not submit a proposal.

5. Staff conducted an analysis of the proposals and determined purchasing the Arboc
Spirit of Mobility to be in the best interest of the District. The analysis has been
included as Attachment A.

6. A summary of the bid costs received are listed in the table below:

Creative Shetky NW | New Flyer
(Arboc) (Champion) | Bus Sales
Vehicle Base Price $115,392 $93,119
Required Specifications 5,264 24,297
Preferred Specifications 24,225 29,805
Total Price $144,881 $147,221

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board adopt Resolution #19-21 authorizing the General Manager
to purchase three (3) Category C Arboc medium size medium-duty deviated fixed route
buses from Creative Bus Sales for $434,663.

\ Qﬁé



Attachment A

Tillamook County Transit District — Cat C Buses

June 3, 2019

Background

Tillamook County Transportation District has received Capital 5311 grant funds from ODOT, Grant #
32855 and 32842 to purchase 3 Cat C, low floor cutaway buses. The grants became effective on July 1,
2018 and expires on June 30, 2020.

Grant 32855

Purchase 2 transit vehicles as follows: useful life: 7 years and 200,000 miles; approximate
length: 25-30 feet; estimated number of seats: 16-30; estimated number of ADA
securement

stations: 2; fuel type: gasoline

The new vehicles will replace the following Tillamook vehicles:

OPTIS V001486, 2014 Ford Champion LF; 1FDFE4FS1EDA48310
OPTIS v001487; 2014 Ford Champion LF; 1FDFE4FS1EDA48311

Funds Allocated:

Total S 310,000
Grant Amount $ 278,163
Local Match $31,837
Grant 32824

Purchase 1 transit vehicles as follows: useful life: 7 years and 200,000 miles; approximate
length: 25-30 feet; estimated number of seats: 16-30; estimated number of ADA
securement

stations: 2; fuel type: gasoline

Funds Allocated:

Total S 185,000

Grant Amount $ 157,250

Local Match $ 27,750

TOTAL GRANT AMOUNT $495,000
TOTAL Grant funds from ODOT $435,413
TOTAL Local Match $59,587

3



Attachment A

Bid process

Tillamook County Transit District chose to use the current State Price Agreement to purchase the buses
Bids specifications were written and approved by ODOT on 5/1/19. Bids were sent on 5/2/19 to 2 State

approved vendors in the C Category — Schetky NW and Creative Bus Sales. Bids were due back on
5/31/19.

Two bid responses were received on 5/31/19 in the time specified. The RFP’s were analyzed and
clarifying questions were sent to the vendors on 6/3/19.

Both vendors provided the required bid documents as stated in the RFP.
Bid pricing is as follows:

‘Extended Preferred  TOTAL with
ALL OPTIONS

| TranspecBumper |
Hanover LED signs and voice |
technology :




Attachment A

Both buses are 96” wide.

Floorplan for Schetky NW is as follows: Three folding seats behind the driver and one behind the ramp
Includes middle rear seat for 21 passengers

!

4 { i

\
|y T
PY TR L)
- VAV AV

:

: JRN S0 6

i

1

L

Creative Bus floorplan: Two folding seats behind the driver and ramp

| D\




Attachment A

s CREATIVE BUS SALES £
TILUAMOOK COUNTY TRAMSIT i

oae
FLOD® P, DB TvE=mne-toerr
e B3 Er—rr—ry = e
“r XTI | Il

References were called for both vendors:

Creative Bus -

Joseph @ The Breeze - Bus delivered late in 2018. Was not built correctly and did not work as expected.
Bus returned; lots of confusion; Finally in Service in Sept 2018.
1 year late. Nothappy. Creative did answer phones and sometimes called back.

Kathy @ Woodburn - Van delivered ok - took van back for warranty 1 week after delivery.
Creative was responsive to the fix.

Coos County Area Transit — Sergio - Vehicle was delivered late with no notice from vendor. Vehicle was not
specified as Coos wanted. Wanted 2 wc stations, got 1 — vendor says you can get two in the van, but in reality —
only one. Service owes him for work done in Coos Bay.

Schetky NW —
Cynthia @ Yamhill County - Buses on time and no problem with service or warranty depts. Happy customer.

Scott @ Wilsonville - No problems with them; have been a vendor for years; typically take buses to
them for service. No issues

\%



Attachment A

Cynda @ Lincoln County — Vehicles are months late and at Schekty now. Should be delivered before
6/30/19.

Andi @ Sandy Transit — Buses are not delivered / late. Expect delivery Sept 2019

Tillamook Fleet / Staff Interviews

Tillamook currently has both Champion and Arboc LF buses in their fleet. The staff was asked their
impressions of each bus:

Operations: Drivers overwhelmingly prefer the Arboc. It has better turning radius and L-R visibility is
better. They report the bus has a much smoother ride than the champion buses and the passengers
prefer the Arboc. The drivers also said the driver compartment in the Arboc is superior and more
comfortable that the Champions. The drivers said they prefer the ramp on the Champion because it has
a 90 degree angle and thus easier to setup to get people on and off the bus.

Maintenance: They are concerned about the Intellisync kneeling system. The system prevents the
Champion buses from being properly aligned. As a result there is a 40 to 50 percent more wear on the
champion’s steer tires. Maintenance staff also the Champion steer tires are replaced every 25K to 30K
miles while the Arboc steer tires are replaced every 50K to 60K. His analysis said the District would save
about $1,500 per bus over 200K miles. He also reported the Arboc has had very little maintenance in
comparison to the Champion buses. He also said getting parts from Champion is challenging and often
takes weeks. His preference is to purchase the Arboc.

Final Analysis / Recommendation

e Buses are very comparable in fit and finish.

e Both buses meet all required specifications

¢ Both RFP’s were complete and all required forms were submitted on-time.

e  With all options chosen (required and Preferred), Creative Bus is low bid and within budget.

¢ The Driver's and maintenance staff prefers the Arboc over the Champion and have experience
with both in the current fleet.

e Schetky had better reference checks for service but current buses on order are late.
e Creative Bus delivery time is 2 months earlier than Schetky’s (late Oct vs Dec 20, 2019)

Recommend award to Creative Bus Sales for (3) 2019 Arboc Spirit of Mobility buses.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Purchase Three Arboc Low Floor )
Buses from Creative Bus Sales ) RESOLUTION NO. 19-20

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District received an ODOT Rail
Public Transit Division (RPTD) Section 5311 and Section 5339 capital grant funds for the
purchase of three Category C Low Floor transit buses; and

WHEREAS, the District solicited quotes from three (3) retailers for the purchase of
three low floor buses based on the price agreement the retailers have with the State of
Oregon Department of Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, based on the quotes provided and District's preferred specifications,
the District recommends purchasing three (3) Arboc Spirit of Mobility buses from Creative
Bus Sales for $444,228; and

WHEREAS, purchasing a bus through the competitively bid contract between
Creative Bus Sales and the State would provide significant cost savings to the District,
would not reduce competition or give favoritism, and would be in the best interest of the
District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract not to
exceed $434,881 with Creative Bus Sales to purchase three (3) Arboc Spirit of Mobility
Category C, medium size medium-duty buses.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of June 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

M



For Board Meeting of June 20, 2019
Agenda Item # 28

MEMO TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER ~ DX
SUBJECT: INTERCITY BUS PURCHASE

Issue

Shall the Board authorize the General Manager to purchase two (2) Category B medium
sized heavy-duty Freightliner buses from Schetky NW Bus Sales?

Background and Findings

1. The ODOT Rail and Public Transit Division (RPTD) awarded TCTD a Section 5311
Capital Grant to purchase two (2) Category B medium sized heavy-duty buses to be
used for the District’s intercity services.

2. Oregon'’s transit agencies using the capital grant funds to purchase buses through
the Rail Public Transit Division (RPTD) are encouraged to purchase transit vehicles
through the Oregon Department of Administrative Services (DAS) State Price
Agreement.

3. The District conducted RPTD’s request for quotation (RFQ) process requesting
quotes from Creative Bus Sales, Schetky NW Sales, and New Flyer Bus Sales for
vehicles they listed on the State Price Agreement.

4. The District received two quotes from Creative Bus and Schetky NW. Creative
provided a quote for a Champion Defender on a Freightliner chassis while Schetky
NW provided a quote for a Glaval Legacy on a Ford chassis. New Flyer Bus Sales
did not submit a proposal.

5. Staff conducted an analysis of the proposals and determined purchasing the
Freightliner Champion buses to be in the best interest of the District. The analysis
has been included as Attachment A.

6. A summary of the bids received are listed in the table below:

Creative | Schetky NW | New Flyer
(Glaval) | (Freightliner) | Bus Sales
Vehicle Base Price $115,636 $106,623
Required Specifications 37,459 36,523
Preferred Specifications 24,695 29,525
Total Price $177,790 $172,671

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board adopt Resolution #19-21 authorizing the General Manager
to purchase two (2) Category B Freightliner medium size heavy-duty intercity buses
from Schetky NW Bus Sales for $345,342.



Attachment A

Tillamook County Transit District ~ Cat B Buses
June 12, 2019
Background

Tillamook County Transit District has received Capital 5311 grant funds from ODOT, Grant # 32855 to
purchase 2 Cat B, high floor, heavy-duty, mid-size buses. The grant became effective on July 1, 2018
and expires on June 30, 2020.

Grant 32855

Purchase 2 transit vehicles as follows: useful life: 10 years and 350,000 miles; approximate
length: 30-35 feet; estimated number of seats: 25-35,; estimated number of ADA
securement

stations: 2; fuel type: diesel.

The new vehicles will replace the following Tillamook vehicles:

OPTIS V000952, 2010 Ford Glaval;, 3FRNF6FC9AV235209
OPTIS V001033; 2010 Ford Glaval; 3FRNF6FC8AV275927

Funds Allocated:

Total $ 370,000
Grant Amount $ 332,001
Local Match $37,999
Bid process

Tillamook County Transit District chose to use the current State Price Agreement to purchase
the buses Bids specifications were written and approved by ODOT on 5/1/19. Bids were sent on 5/2/19
to 2 State approved vendors in the B Category — Schetky NW and Creative Bus Sales. Bids were due back
on 5/15/19. An extension was granted to 5/31/19 for clarification/approved equal process.

Two bid responses were received on 5/31/19 in the time specified. Bid pricing is as follows:

Extended Preferred

Options choser TOTAL with
Vendor Required Specs Extended x 2 buses below ALL OPTIONS
Schetky NW — 30 pass $143,146 $286,292 $59,050 $345,342
Creative Bus — 28 pass . $153,085 $306,150 $49,390 $355,580
Preferred Options Schetky NW Creative Bus
Merge Sign $925 $185
Additional Keys $250 200
Bike Rack $1620 53340
Angeltrax cameras $6550 $4700
Farebox $1300 $2300
Hanover LED signs and vaice
technology $15,552 $11,500




USB Ports $1050 $1050
(2) ICS Seats installed $2188 $1170
Interior ad Racks $90 $250
Shop rate $115 /hr $110/hr
TOTAL FOR ALL OPTIONS

chosen 529,525 $24,695

Both bids exceed the grant amount with all options chosen.

fit in their budget.

Both bus bodies are offered on the Freightliner S2C chassis.

Items in bold in different:

Spec Schekty NW Creative Bus
Chassis Freightliner S2C Freightliner S2C

; Engine Cummins ISB 6.7L 240hp Cummins ISB 6.7L 240hp
Body Champion Defender Glaval Legacy

- Overall Length of bus 38’ 36’
Alternator HD 320 amp 270 AMP

Suspension System

OEM 23,0004 airliner dual air

Liquid Springs

OEM Chassis warranty

3 yr/50K base vehicle
5 yr/ 100K engine

3 yr/ 36K Transmission

1 yr/unlimited towing

3 yr/50K base vehicle
5 yr/ 100K engine

3 yr/ 36K Transmission

1 yr/unlimited towing

Flooring Altro Altro
Total # of seats 30 28
Delivery 12/2019 12/2019

Reference checks:

Schekty NW

Attachment A

Tillamook narrowed down the options to

Mt. Hood Express — Theresa Christopherson - Original Defender buses purchased thru Western. New
buses are still on order thru Schetky and not delivered yet. Buses are late due to factory issues.

Defenders are holding up well in the Mt. Hood area. Has/will purchase(d) them again.

Kayak — Robert Johnson — Purchased M2 FTL’s with Defender bodies from Western Bus in 2015. Buses
have held up well. Have only used Schetky as vendor for past year. First buses arrived without heated

mirrors — still waiting for solution from Schetky.

John @ Salem Transit - Service reference only —does not have Defender in fleet.

Cutaway buses delivered late due to factory paint issues. Very responsive to warranty issues. No

problem with service/warranty shops.



Attachment A

Creative Bus Sales

Coos County Area Transit — Sergio — Service reference only — does not have Glaval buses in fleet.

Transit vehicle was delivered late with no notice from vendor. Vehicle was not specified as Coos
wanted. Wanted 2 wc stations, got 1 —vendor says you can get two in the van, but in reality — only one.
service owes him for work done in Coos Bay.

Woodburn Transit — Kathy — Van delivered ok —took van back for warranty 1 week after delivery.
Creative was responsive to fix.

Sweet Home Shuttle — Ken — Has two buses on order from Schetky. Received vans on time from
Creative last year. Has not used their service/warranty.

Tillamook Fleet / Staff Interviews

Tillamook currently has both Champion Defenders and Glaval Legacy buses in their fleet. The staff was
asked their impressions of each bus:

The maintenance person reports fewer emission system issues with the Glaval buses than with the
Freightliner buses. However, the Glaval’s in the fleet are much older and the newer emission systems
could become as problematic as the Freightliners.

The operations people vastly appreciate the Freightliner Champions because they are more comfortable
in the driver cabin and these buses have superior visibility for both the drivers and passengers. They
report the passengers also prefer the Champion buses.

Floorplans -

Schetky with Champion Defender 26 fixed seat — 2 double folds — 30 pass total




Attachment A

Creative with Glaval Legacy 24 fixed seats — 2 double folds — 28 pass total

&
g
N
3

Final Analysis / Recommendation:

e Buses are very comparable in fit and finish.

o Both buses meet all required specifications

e Both buses offer the same chassis {Freightliner $2C)

e C(Creative offered the Liquid Springs suspension

e Schetky offered the OEM Air Ride suspension

e Both RFP’s were complete, and all required form were submitted on-time.

e With all chosen options (required and Preferred), Schetky NW is low bid and within budget.

» The Driver’s and maintenance staff prefers the Champion over the Glaval and have experience
with both in the current fleet.

¢ The Schetky (Champion) bus has more passenger capacity (30 vs 28)

Recommendation: Purchase buses from Schetky NW with larger capacity, lower price and good
references. The bus is below budget leaving money for graphics and two way radio.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Purchase Two Champion Buses )
from Schetky NW Bus Sales ) RESOLUTION NO. 19-21

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District received an ODOT Rail
Public Transit Division (RPTD) Section 5311 capital grant funds for the purchase of two
Category B intercity transit buses; and

WHEREAS, the District solicited quotes from three retailers for the purchase of
two intercity buses based on the price agreement the retailers have with the State of
Oregon Department of Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, based on the quotes provided and District's preferred specifications,
the District recommends purchasing two (2) Freightliner Champion Defender buses from
Schetky NW Bus Sales for $345,342; and

WHEREAS, purchasing a bus through the competitively bid contract between
Schetky NW Bus Sales and the State would provide significant cost savings to the District,
would not reduce competition or give favoritism, and would be in the best interest of the
District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the General Manager to enter into a contract not to
exceed $345,342 with Schetky NW Bus Sales to purchase two (2) Freightliner Champion
Defender Category B, medium size heavy-duty buses.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of June 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

4 0



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Enter into MOU with the )
Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde )

)

Indians for Commuter Bus Service RESOLUTION NO. 19-22

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) operates
intercity bus service between Lincoln City and Grand Ronde and between Lincoln City
and Salem; and

WHEREAS, TCTD operates these routes in partnership with other local funding
entities, including the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Indians (CTGR); and

WHEREAS, TCTD and CTGR wish to enter into a MOU regarding the public transit
needs of the parties and the funding strategy for the provision commuter transit services
along the Route 70X: Grand Ronde Express, serving Highway 22 between Grand Ronde
and Salem.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the General Manager is authorized to execute a Memorandum of
Understanding with the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde Indians, effective through
June 30, 2022, by which TCTD will provide transit services and CTGR will provide up to
$334,560 for the Route 70X: Grand Ronde Express services. The MOU is attached as
Exhibit A and is incorporated into this resolution.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of June 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager




Purchased Transportation Agreement

between
Tillamook County Transportation District and
the Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde

regarding the
Grand Ronde Express

INTRODUCTION....u.couuerimensnsesmeseesssesssssesssssassssssssssssassasssssssssnsssasssssssssasssssssssssesssnsssssssassssas 2
PURPOSE ...coiruniisnessecsmsessssssassssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassssamssassessasssssnesssnssssassssssssnsssass 2
METHODS OF COOPERATION .....coooeeuremrrrnsrissesssssssssssssssssssssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssassssasessass 2
TERMucoucuiemerneeenssesssessssesseessssssmsssasssasissssssssssssssssnssssnsssssssssssssassssasssssasssssessssessssmsssssssssossenns 2
RIGHTS, ROLES, AND RESPONSIBILITIES .....coccessttemseemserresserssssesssnssssssssssssssssssnssenss 2
GENERAL TERMS......coucrmmituaermeessssesssessssssssssssssssssssssnssismsssssssssssssmsnssssnsssasssassssssssssssssnssses 5
EXHIBIT A: PROJECT DESCRIPTION .......coovvvrumermnrsmsessssssssssssssssassssssesssssssssessassssssssesss 9

COMMUTER BUS SERVICE: 9

MARKETING: 9

PLANNING: 9

PASSENGER AMENITIES: 9
EXHIBIT B: GRAND RONDE SALEM COMMUTER SERVICE .........oevvrenrveerernensnenes 10
EXHIBIT C: FUNDING SOURCES........ccoosermernrsssssrisnmsamssssssssssssssassssnssssessssssssasssssssssnssos 11
EXHIBIT D: FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2017 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES
FOR FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS .............. 12

01. REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR

EACH APPLICANT 12
02. LOBBYING 21
18. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ON INDIAN RESERVATIONS AND
“TRIBAL TRANSIT” PROGRAMS 23
Page 1 of 23

\4o-



Introduction

The Tillamook County Transportation District (hereafter “TCTD”) and the Confederated
Tribes of Grand Ronde (hereafter “CTGR”), through the leadership of the Tribal Council
are entering into a purchased transportation agreement. The transit project will provide
additional public transit services to CTGR members and the general public in Marion
County, Polk County, Yamhill County and others traveling through Grand Ronde.
(TCTD and CTGR are collectively referred to as the “Parties.”)

Purpose

The purpose of this purchased transportation agreement is to provide Grand Ronde
Express service addressing public transit needs between Grand Ronde and Salem and
helping link Tillamook, Lincoln, Yambhill, Polk, and Marion counties. Moreover, it will
set forth the roles and responsibilities of TCTD as the seller and provider of the specific
services and CTGR as the buyer. Hereafter referred to as the “Project,” the parties intend
to use the funds to provide public transit services between Yambhill, Marion and, Polk
counties by providing express bus route between Grand Ronde and Salem (hereafter the
“Services”), a corridor heavily travelled by CTGR members.

Responsible Entities

Each Party to this agreement is a separate entity responsible for establishing its own
policies and procedures, except where specifically discussed in this agreement.

Term

The term of this agreement will run through June 30, 2021. The term may be extended by
mutual agreement of the Parties, which must be executed in writing at least 90 days prior
to the expiration of the current term.

Rights, Roles, and Responsibilities
A. Tillamook County Transit District (TCTD) - Seller

1) TCTD will operate and manage the service or Project as described in
detail in Exhibit A and assist CTGR with the coordination with interlining
transit routes and providers.

2) TCTD will provide the Services (described in greater detail in Exhibit B to
this agreement) during the term of this agreement. Services will be
expanded or curtailed based on written agreement of the Parties. In
providing the Services, TCTD will operate and maintain its vehicles in
accordance with TCTD’s policies and procedures which are ODOT
compliant.

Page 2 of 23 \\,\/}-)



3) TCTD will provide information required for periodic financial reports on
the Services to CTGR at intervals as required by funding agencies.

4) TCTD will provide full cost information on the administrative cost,
maintenance cost, and operating expenses (including fuel, vehicle
maintenance cost, insurance, salaries and wages).

5) TCTD will develop periodic operational reports on the Services including
quarterly reports on the number of trips provided, number of passengers
served, and similar information necessary to show the utility and value of
the Project and meet federal requirements.

6) TCTD will provide any additional information needed for reports to
funding agencies as required by those agencies.

7) TCTD will ensure compliance with all applicable federal laws and
regulations, and that all federal directives affecting Project implementation
are followed. This agreement may be amended by mutual consent to
conform with federal, state or local governmental guidelines. If such
amendments result in a change in the funding, the scope of service or
schedule of the activities to be undertaken as part of this agreement, such
modification will be incorporated only by written amendment signed by
all the Parties.

8 TCTD will monitor program income, defined as income generated from
passengers on the Project route, and agrees that such income shall be used
as a source of revenue to reduce the monthly invoices.

9) In carrying out the Services, TCTD will act in accordance with the
applicable standards described in the certifications and assurances attached
as Exhibit D to this agreement. TCTD will comply with applicable federal
laws and regulations, including those listed at Exhibit D. Federal laws,
regulations, and directives may change; where applicable, such changed
requirements will apply to the Project.

Confederated Tribes of Grand Ronde (CTGR) - Buyer

1) CTRG agrees to pay TCTD up to $334,560in return for services as
described in Exhibit C and this includes 100% of the cost of service.
TCTD will retain fare revenue per Exhibit C.

2) CTGR will be invoiced by TCTD monthly for services provided.

3) CTGR agrees to obtain all necessary authorization or approvals to provide
a location to park-out buses, provide bus stop signage as necessary to
accommodate the Services. This may include the use of existing transit
facilities and signage.

Page 3 of 23 ‘ L[ (”



4) The buses employed will have Grand Ronde label and logo added to the
bus wrap. CTGR will provide TCTD with the proposed image for mutual
review and approval with both entities names shown on the
buses. Implementation of this change will occur within 90 to 120 days
after the design has been agreed upon.

General Terms

A. Termination. This agreement may be immediately terminated by mutual consent
of the Parties. If either Party wishes to terminate its participation in the Project, it
may do so upon 90 days” written notice to the other Party.

B. No Third Party Beneficiaries. TCTD and CTGR are the only parties to this
agreement and are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing in this
agreement gives, is intended to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any
benefit or right, whether directly or indirectly or otherwise, other third parties
unless such third parties are individually identified by name herein and expressly
described as intended beneficiaries of the terms of the agreement.

C. Indemnification.

CTGR shall indemnify TCTD to the extent of TCTD’s indemnity of CTGR,
which is limited by Article XI, Section 7 of the Oregon Constitution and the
Oregon Tort Claims Act, against liability for damage to life or property arising
from the CTGR’s activities under this Agreement, provided that CTGR shall
not be required to indemnify TCTD for any such liability arising out of the
wrongful or negligent acts of employees or agents of TCTD.

To the extent permitted by Article XI, Section 7 of the Oregon Constitution and
subject to the limits of the Oregon Tort Claims Act, TCTD shall indemnify CTGR
against liability for damage to life or property arising from TCTD’s activities
under this Agreement, provided that TCTD shall not be required to indemnify
CTGR for any such liability arising out of the wrongful or negligent acts of
employees or agents of CTGR.

D. Dispute Resolution: The undersigned representatives of each Party hereby affirm
that they have entered into this agreement in good faith. Each Party agrees that it
will discharge its obligations under this agreement in good faith. The Parties agree
that they will work together and will endeavor to accomplish the purposes and
goals of this agreement in a manner that serves the best interests of the Parties and
the members of their communities. In the event of any dispute or disagreement in
the implementation of this agreement, the Parties shall resolve the matter
amicably by consultation or negotiation in the spirit of cordiality and mutual
respect, beginning with the designated representatives of each entity involved in
the dispute. If a dispute is not resolved within five business days of an issue being
formally raised by one of the Parties, the dispute will be referred by the
representatives to executive staff for the entities, who will endeavor in good faith

Page 4 of 23 \b\/’)



to resolve the dispute. Final resolution of disputes may be referred for the joint
consideration and negotiation by the governing body of any parties involved in a
dispute. Nothing contained within this agreement shall be construed as a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the Confederated Tribes of the Grand Ronde
Community of Oregon.

Notices. When written notice is required under this agreement, it shall be given in
writing by personal delivery, facsimile, email, or mailing the same, postage
prepaid, to the other Party at the address or number set forth below. Any
communication or notice personally delivered shall be deemed to be given when
actually delivered. Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be
deemed to be given when receipt of the transmission is generated by the
transmitting machine. Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given
when the recipient of the email personally acknowledges receipt of the email. Any
notice mailed shall be deemed to be received three days after the date it is
deposited in the U.S. Mail.

TCTD: Seller’s Agent

c/o Doug Pilant, Manager

3600 Third St Ste A

Tillamook OR 97141

Fax: (503) 815-8005

Email: dpilant@tillamookbus.com

CTGR: Buyer’s Agent

¢/o Kim Rogers, Planning & Grants Manager
9615 Grand Ronde Road

Grand Ronde, OR 97347

Fax: (503) 879-2263

Email: kim.rogers@grandronde.org

Limitations. Except as otherwise expressly identified in this agreement, no Party
may act on the other’s behalf or obligate the other Party in contract, debt or
otherwise. The Parties are and shall remain separate entities, and no partnership,
joint venture, or agency relationship is created by this agreement.

Severability. If any term or provision of this agreement is declared by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the
remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and
obligations of the Parties shall be construed and enforced as if this agreement did
not contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid.

Integration and Waiver. This agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the
entire agreement between the Parties on the subject matter hereof. There are no
understandings, agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified

Page 5 of 23

\“\



herein regarding this agreement. The delay or failure of either Party to enforce
any provision of this agreement shall not constitute a waiver by that Party of that
or any other provision. Each Party, by the signature below of its authorized
representative, hereby acknowledges that it has read this agreement, understands
it, and agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions.

Counterparts. This agreement may be executed in counterparts (by facsimile or
otherwise), each of which is an original and all of which together are deemed one
agreement binding on both Parties, notwithstanding that both Parties are not
signatories to the same counterpart.

Effective Date. This agreement shall become effective on the date when this
agreement is fully executed and approved as required by applicable law.

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE]

Page 6 of 23



WE THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THIS PURCHASED
TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT.

TILLAMOOK COUNTY CONFEDERATED TRIBES OF THE

TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT GRAND RONDE COMMUNITY OF
OREGON

Signature: Signature:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Page 7 0f 23 \\,\Lé)



EXHIBIT A

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

BUS SERVICE BETWEEN GRAND RONDE AND SALEM:

TCTD will operate commuter service between Grand Ronde and the Cherriots Transit
Mall in Salem. The bus service will consist of up four (4) daily round trips five (5) days per week
except for the following holidays: New Years, Memorial, Independence, Labor, Thanksgiving,
and Christmas.

MARKETING:

CTGR will market the bus service, with the goal of increasing awareness and ridership of
the bus service. This includes information on the scheduled service on the Tribal website and
links to provide connection to other transit services.

CTGR may join with other regional transit agencies in marketing efforts including TCTD
as well as Yambhill County Transit Area, Salem Area Mass Transit District, and the Lincoln
County Transportation District.

Page 8 of 23 \\’\L\



EXHIBIT B
ROUTE 70X: GRAND RONDE EXPRESS
ROUTE SCHEDULE & FARE RATES

ROUTE SCHEDULE
To Grand Ronde To Salem
@ 3
T
= 3 3 5
s 2 = £ o s
- = £ =
"g 8 ® 2 s 0O 0O ® 2 ® ..g 8
R o 53 e g2 22 N LS . z S
88| sE| L2 3| &% 5% 3| 2| 8| 38
o> @ O = = X s s s © T Q (= R
EG s E @ o3 = o E o E - o o3 s E =%
= S @ - £ 5 E §E E X X S @ 85
3= 5 E& & 538 538 & Z& 5 e &=
7:00AM | 7:03 AM | 7:20 AM | 7:50 AM | 7:55 AM 8:15AM | 8:20 AM | 8:50 AM | 9:02 AM | 9:10 AM
1:30PM | 1:33PM | 1:50 PM | 2:20 PM | 2:25 PM 2:30PM | 2.35PM | 3:05PM | 3:17 PM | 3:25 PM
4:15PM | 4118 PM | 4:35 PM i 5:05PM | 5:10 PM 515PM | 5:20PM | 5:50 PM | 6:02 PM | 6:10 PM
6:20 PM | 6:23 PM | 6:40 PM ] 7:10 PM - - 715PM | 7:45PM | 7:57 PM | 8:05 PM
FARE RATES
REGULAR FARE
1 Zone $1.50
2 Zone $3.00
First Child (0-5) Free

Person with valid Grand Ronde Tribal
ID or other official documentation Free
showing status as tribal member

REDUCED FARE

Additional Child (0-5) Y2 Fare
Youth (6-18) % Fare
Senior Citizen (60+) Y, Fare
Person with Disability ¥ Fare

The parties agree that adjustments can be made to the schedule by mutual consent.

Grand Ronde Tribal members of the CTGR may use the Grand Ronde Express service free of
charge upon presentation of a valid Tribal Identification Card or other official documentation
showing proof of the person’s status as a Grand Ronde tribal member.

Page 9 of 23 \(’QO



EXHIBIT C

FARES & REVENUE

Grand Ronde to Salem:

Effective July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2021, CTGR will provide up to $334,560 in payments for
these twenty-four (24) months to fund 4,182 revenue service hours. The revenue service hours
will consist of weekday (M-F) commuter transit services between Grand Ronde and the

Cherriots Downtown Salem Transit Mall. In total 100% of the cost of service will be provided
by CTGR.

TCTD will collect fares consistent with the Route 70X fare rate schedule. TCTD will report

fare revenue collected to CTGR in their monthly invoices and credit the fares collected against
the balance of the costs.

Page 10 of 23

@)



EXHIBIT D

FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2013 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES FOR
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

GROUP 01. REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES
FOR EACH APPLICANT.

A. Assurance of Authority of the Applicant and Its Representative.

On behalf of your Applicant, you certify that both you and your Applicant’s attorney who sign
these Certifications, Assurances, and Agreements affirm that both your Applicant and you, as its
authorized representative, may undertake the following activities on behalf of your Applicant, in
compliance with applicable State, local, or Indian tribal laws and regulations, and your
Applicant’s by-laws or internal rules:

Execute and file its application for Federal funds,

Execute and file its Certifications, Assurances, and Agreements binding its compliance,
Execute Grant Agreements or Cooperative Agreements, or both, with FTA,

Comply with applicable Federal laws and regulations, and

Follow applicable Federal guidance.

N o T 9

B. Standard Assurances.

On behalf of your Applicant, you assure that your Applicant understands and agrees to the

following:
1. Your Applicant will comply with all applicable Federal statutes and regulations to carry out
any FTA funded Project,

2. Your Applicant is under a continuing obligation to comply with the terms and conditions of
the FTA Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for its Project, including the FTA
Master Agreement incorporated by reference and made part of the latest amendment to the
Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement,

3. Your Applicant recognizes that Federal laws and regulations may be modified from time to
time and those modifications may affect Project implementation,

4. Your Applicant understands that Presidential executive orders and Federal guidance,
including Federal policies and program guidance, may be issued concerning matters affecting
your Applicant or its Project,

5. Your Applicant agrees that the most recent Federal laws, regulations, and guidance will apply
to its Project, unless FTA determines otherwise in writing,

6. In light of recent FTA legislation applicable to FTA and except as FTA determines otherwise
in writing, your Applicant agrees that requirements for FTA programs may vary depending
on the fiscal year for which the funding for those programs was appropriated:

a. In some instances, FTA has determined that Federal statutory or regulatory program and
eligibility requirements for FY 2012 or a specific previous fiscal year will apply to:
(1) New grants and cooperative agreements, and
(2) New amendments to grants and cooperative agreements that:
(a) Have been awarded Federal funds made available or appropriated for FY
2012 or the previous fiscal year, or

Page 11 of 23 \r’f/}



C.

D.

(b) May be awarded Federal funds appropriated for FY 2012 or the previous
fiscal year, but
b. In other instances, FTA has determined that MAP-21 will apply to the Federal funds
made available or appropriated for FY 2012 or a previous fiscal year, and
c. For all FTA funded Projects, the following MAP-21 cross-cutting requirements supersede

conflicting provisions of previous Federal law and regulations:

(1) Metropolitan and Statewide Planning,

(2) Environmental Review Process,

(3) Agency Safety Plans,

(4) Transit Asset Management Provisions (and Asset Inventory and Condition
Reporting),

(5) Costs Incurred by Providers of Public Transportation by Vanpool,

(6) Revenue Bonds as Local Match,

(7) Debt Service Reserve,

(8) Government’s Share of Cost of Vehicles, Vehicle-Equipment, and Facilities for
ADA and Clean Air Act Compliance,

(9) Private Sector Participation,

(10) Bus Testing,

(11) Buy America,

(12) Corridor Preservation,

(13) Rail Car Procurements,

(14) Veterans Preference/Employment,

(15) Alcohol and Controlled Substance Testing, and

(16) Other provisions as FTA may determine.

(See the Federal Transit Administration, “Notice of FTA Transit Program Changes, Authorized
Funding Levels and Implementation of the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act
(MAP-21) and FTA FY 2013 Apportionments, Allocations, Program Information and Interim
Guidance,” 77 Fed. Reg. 663670, October 16, 2012.)

Intergovernmental Review Assurance.

(The assurance in Group 01.C does not apply to an Indian tribe, an Indian organization or a
tribal organization that applies for funding made available or appropriated for FTA’s Public
Transportation on Indian Reservations Program authorized by 49 U.S.C. 5311(c)(1), as amended
by MAP-21 or to FTA's Tribal Transit Program authorized by former 49 U.S.C. 5311(c)(1) in
effect in FY 2012 or a previous fiscal year.)

To facilitate compliance with U.S. Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT) regulations,
“Intergovernmental Review of Department of Transportation Programs and Activities,” 49 CFR
part 17, on behalf of your Applicant, you assure that it has submitted or will submit each
application for Federal funding to the appropriate State and local agencies for intergovernmental
review, as required by those regulations.

Nondiscrimination Assurance.
On behalf of your Applicant, you assure that:

1. Your Applicant will comply with the following laws and regulations so that no person in the
United States will be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination in

Page 12 of 23 \ (”j f)



any U.S. DOT or FTA funded program or activity (particularly in the level and quality of

transportation services and transportation-related benefits on the basis of race, color, national

origin, religion, sex, disability, or age:

a. Federal transit laws, specifically 49 U.S.C. 5332, as amended by MAP-21 (prohibiting

discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, disability, or age,

and in employment or business opportunity),

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 20004,

The Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. 794, et seq.,

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.,

U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the

Department of Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,

49 CFR part 21,

f.  U.S. DOT regulations, specifically 49 CFR parts 27, 37, 38, and 39, and

g. Any other applicable Federal statutes that may be signed into law or Federal regulations
that may be promulgated,

Your Applicant will comply with Federal guidance implementing Federal nondiscrimination

laws and regulations, except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing,

As required by 49 CFR 21.7:

a. Your Applicant will comply with 49 U.S.C. 5332, as amended by MAP-21, 42 U.S.C.
2000d, and 49 CFR part 21 in the manner:

(1) It conducts each Project,
(2) It undertakes property acquisitions, and
(3) It operates its Project facilities, including:
(a) Its entire facilities, and
(b) Its facilities operated in connection with its Project,

b. This assurance applies to your Applicant’s entire Project and to all parts of its facilities,
including the facilities it operates to implement its Project,

c. Your Applicant will promptly take the necessary actions to carry out this assurance,
including:

(1) Notifying the public that discrimination complaints about transportation-related
services or benefits may be filed with U.S. DOT or FTA, and

(2)  Submitting information about its compliance with these provisions to U.S. DOT or
FTA upon their request,

d. If your Applicant transfers FTA funded real property, structures, or improvements to
another party, any deeds and instruments recording that transfer will contain a covenant
running with the land assuring nondiscrimination:

(1) While the property is used for the purpose that the Federal funding is extended, and
(2) While the property is used for another purpose involving the provision of similar
services or benefits,

e. The United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement of any matter arising under:
(1) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 2000d,

(2) U.S. DOT regulations, 49 CFR part 21, and
(3) This assurance,

f. Your Applicant will make any changes in its Title VI implementing procedures as U.S.

DOT or FTA may request to comply with:

(1) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 2000d,

(2) U.S.DOT regulations, 49 CFR part 21, and

(3) Federal transit laws, 49 U.S.C. 5332, as amended by MAP-21,

oo o

Page 13 of 23 \ ﬁ\\



g. Your Applicant will comply with Federal guidance issued to implement Federal
nondiscrimination requirements, except as FTA determines otherwise in writing,

h. Your Applicant will extend the requirements of 49 U.S.C. 5332, as amended by MAP-21,
42 U.S.C. 2000d, and 49 CFR part 21 to each Third Party Participant, including:

(1) Any Subrecipient,

(2) Any Transferee,

(3) Any Third Party Contractor or Subcontractor at any tier,
(4) Any Successor in Interest,

(5) Any Lessee, or

(6) Any other Third Party Participant in its Project,

i.  Your Applicant will include adequate provisions to extend the requirements of 49 U.S.C.
5332, as amended by MAP-21, 42 U.S.C. 2000d, and 49 CFR part 21 to each third party
agreement, including:

(1) Each subagreement,

(2) Each property transfer agreement,

(3) Each third party contract or subcontract at any tier,
(4) Eachlease, or

(5) Each participation agreement, and

j.  The assurances you have made on behalf of your Applicant will remain in effect as long

as:

(1) Federal funding is extended to your Applicant’s Project,

(2) Your Applicant’s Project property is used for a purpose for which the Federal
funding is extended,

(3) Your Applicant’s Project property is used for a purpose involving the provision of
similar services or benefits, or

(4) Your Applicant retains ownership or possession of its Project property, and

4. Asrequired by U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in

Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance,” 49 CFR
part 27, specifically 49 CFR 27.9, and consistent with 49 U.S.C. 5307(c)(1)(D)(iii), as
amended by MAP-21, your assure that:

a. Your Applicant will comply with the following prohibitions against discrimination on the
basis of disability, which are a condition of approval or extension of any FTA funding
awarded to:

(1) Construct any facility,

(2) Obtain any rolling stock or other equipment,

(3) Undertake studies,

(4) Conduct research, or

(5) Participate in or obtain any benefit from any FTA administered program, and

b. In any program or activity receiving or benefiting from Federal funding that U.S. DOT
administers, no otherwise qualified people with a disability will, because of their
disability, be:

(1) Excluded from participation,
(2) Denied benefits, or
(3) Otherwise subjected to discrimination.

Page 14 of 23 l

O\



E. Suspension and Debarment Certification.

On behalf of your Applicant, you certify that:

l.

Your Applicant will comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations,

“Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” 2 CFR part 1200, which adopts and

supplements the provisions of U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. OMB)

“Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension

(Nonprocurement),” 2 CFR part 180,

To the best of your knowledge and belief, and your Applicant’s knowledge and belief, that

your Applicant’s Principals and Subrecipients at the first tier:

a. Are eligible to participate in covered transactions of any Federal department or agency
and are not presently:

(1) Debarred,

(2) Suspended,

(3) Proposed for debarment,

(4) Declared ineligible,

(5) Voluntarily excluded, or

(6) Disqualified,

b. Your Applicant’s management has not within a three-year period preceding its latest
application or proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against any of
them for:

(1) Commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting
to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction, or contract
under a public transaction,

(2) Violation of any Federal or State antitrust statute, or

(3) Commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making any false statement, or receiving stolen property,

c. Your Applicant is not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by
a governmental entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses
listed in the preceding Section 1.b of this Certification,

d. Your Applicant has not had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local)
terminated for cause or default within a three-year period preceding this Certification,

e. If, at a later time, your Applicant receives any information that contradicts the statements
of subparagraphs 2.a — 2.d above, your Applicant will promptly provide that information
to FTA,

f.  Your Applicant will treat each lower tier contract or lower tier subcontract under its
Project as a covered lower tier contract for purposes of 2 CFR part 1200 and 2 CFR part
180 if it:

(1) Equals or exceeds $25,000,

(2) Is for audit services, or

(3) Requires the consent of a Federal official, and

g. Your Applicant will require that each covered lower tier contractor and subcontractor:

(1) Comply and facilitate compliance with the Federal requirements of 2 CFR parts
180 and 1200, and

(2) Assure that each lower tier participant in its Project is not presently declared by any
Federal department or agency to be:

(a) Debarred from participation in your Applicant’s federally funded Project,
(b) Suspended from participation in your Applicant’s federally funded Project,

Page 15 of 23



(c) Proposed for debarment from participation in your Applicant’s federally
funded Project,
(d) Declared ineligible to participate in your Applicant’s federally funded
Project,
(¢) Voluntarily excluded from participation in your Applicant’s federally funded
Project, or
(f) Disqualified from participation in your Applicant’s federally funded Project,
and
3. Your Applicant will provide a written explanation as indicated on its Signature Page or a
page attached in FTA’s TEAM-Web if it or any of its principals, including any of its first tier
Subrecipients or any of its Third Party Participants at a lower tier, is unable to certify
compliance with to the preceding statements in this Certification 01.E.

F. U.S. OMB Assurances in SF-424B and SF-424D.

The assurances in Group 01.F are consistent with the U.S. OMB assurances required in the U.S.
OMB SF-424B and SF-424D, updated as necessary to reflect changes in Federal laws and
regulations.

1. Administrative Activities. On behalf of your Applicant, you assure that:
a. For every project described in any application your Applicant submits, your Applicant
has adequate resources to properly plan, manage, and complete its Project, including:

(1) The legal authority to apply for Federal funding,

(2) The institutional capability,

(3) The managerial capability, and

(4) The financial capability (including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of
Project cost),

b. Your Applicant will give limited access and the right to examine Project-related
materials, including, but not limited to:
(1) FTA,
(2) The Comptroller General of the United States, and
(3) [If appropriate, the State, through any authorized representative,
c. Your Applicant will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards or FTA guidance, and
d. Your Applicant will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions
for a purpose that results in:
(1) A personal or organizational conflict of interest, or personal gain, or
(2) The appearance of a personal or organizational conflict of interest or personal gain.
2. Project Specifics. On behalf of your Applicant, you assure that:
a. Following receipt of an FTA award, your Applicant will begin and complete Project work
within the time periods that apply,
b. For FTA funded construction Projects:

(1)  Your Applicant will comply with FTA provisions concerning the drafting, review,
and approval of construction plans and specifications,

(2) Your Applicant will, to the extent practicable, provide and maintain competent and
adequate engineering supervision at the construction site to assure that the
completed work conforms with the approved plans and specifications,

(3) Your Applicant will include a covenant to assure nondiscrimination during the
useful life of its Project in its title to federally funded real property,

Page 16 of 23 / /\
\(A



C.

a.

b.

4
&)

To the extent FTA requires, your Applicant will record the Federal interest in the

title to FTA funded real property or interests in real property, and

To the extent practicable, absent permission and instructions from FTA, your

Applicant will not alter the site of the FTA funded construction Project or facilities

by:

(a) Disposing of the underlying real property or other interest in the site and
facilities,

(b) Modifying the use of the underlying real property or other interest in the site
and facilities, or

(¢) Changing the terms of the underlying real property title or other interest in the
site and facilities, and

Your Applicant will furnish progress reports and other information as FTA or the State
may require.

3. Statutory and Regulatory requirements. On behalf of your Applicant, you assure that:
Your Applicant will comply with all Federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination that
apply, including, but not limited to:

(1)
2)

)

C

()
(6)
(7)

(8)

€)

(10)

The prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national

origin, as provided in Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 2000d,

The prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of sex, as provided in:

(a) Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 20 U.S.C. 1681
— 1683, and 1685 — 1687, and

(b) U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education
Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,” 49 CFR part
25,

The prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of age in federally funded

programs, as provided in the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42

U.S.C. 6101 - 6107,

The prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of disability in federally funded

programs, as provided in section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

amended, 29 U.S.C. 794,

The prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of disability, as provided in the

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 12101 ef seq.

The prohibitions against discrimination in the sale, rental, or financing of housing,

as provided in Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et segq.,

The prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of drug abuse, as provided in

the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as amended, 21 U.S.C. 1101 et

seq.,

The prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse, as provided

in the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention Act of 1970, as

amended, 42 U.S.C. 4541 et seq.,

The confidentiality requirements for the records of alcohol and drug abuse patients,

as provided in the Public Health Service Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 290dd —

290dd-2, and

The nondiscrimination provisions of any other statute(s) that may apply to its

Project,

As provided by the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition
Policies Act of 1970, as amended (Uniform Relocation Act), 42 U.S.C. 4601 et seq., and
the MAP-21 amendment to 49 U.S.C. 5323(b), regardless of whether Federal funding has
been provided for any of the real property acquired for Project purposes, your Applicant

Page 17 0f 23 l C//)%



will provide for fair and equitable treatment of displaced persons or persons whose

property is acquired as a result of federally funded programs, and:

(1)  Your Applicant has the necessary legal authority under State and local laws and
regulations to comply with:

(a) The Uniform Relocation Act. 42 U.S.C. 4601 ef seq., as specified by 42 U.S.C.
4630 and 4655, and

(b) U.S. DOT regulations, “Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition for Federal and Federally Assisted Programs,” 49 CFR part 24,
specifically 49 CFR 24.4, and

(2) Your Applicant has complied with or will comply with the Uniform Relocation Act
and implementing U.S. DOT regulations, because:

(a) Your Applicant will adequately inform each affected person of the benefits,
policies, and procedures provided for in 49 CFR part 24,

(b) Asrequired by 42 U.S.C. 4622, 4623, and 4624, and 49 CFR part 24, your
Applicant will provide fair and reasonable relocation payments and assistance
for displacement, resulting from any FTA funded Project, of:

1 Families and individuals, and
2 Partnerships, corporations, or associations,

(c) Asprovided by 42 U.S.C. 4625 and 49 CFR part 24, your Applicant will
provide relocation assistance programs offering the services described in the
U.S. DOT regulations to such displaced:

1 Families and individuals, and
2 Partnerships, corporations, or associations,

(d) Asrequired by 42 U.S.C. 4625(c)(3), within a reasonable time before
displacement, your Applicant will make available comparable replacement
dwellings to families and individuals,

(e) Your Applicant will:

1 Carry out the relocation process to provide displaced persons with uniform
and consistent services, and

2 Make available replacement housing in the same range of choices with
respect to such housing to all displaced persons regardless of race, color,
religion, or national origin,

(f) Your Applicant will be guided by the real property acquisition policies of 42
U.S.C. 4651 and 4652 to the greatest extent practicable under State law,

(g) Your Applicant will pay or reimburse property owners for their necessary
expenses as specified in 42 U.S.C. 4653 and 4654, understanding that FTA will
provide Federal funding for its eligible costs of providing payments for those
expenses, as required by 42 U.S.C. 4631,

(h) Your Applicant will execute the necessary implementing amendments to third
party contracts and subagreements financed with FTA funding,

(1) Your Applicant will execute, furnish, and be bound by such additional
documents as FTA may determine necessary to effectuate or implement these
assurances,

() Your Applicant will incorporate these assurances by reference into and make
them a part of any third party contract or subagreement, or any amendments
thereto, relating to any FTA funded Project involving relocation or land
acquisition, and

(k) Your Applicant will provide in any affected document that these relocation and
land acquisition provisions must supersede any conflicting provisions,

A

w

Page 18 of 23 ] - (?l



To the extent practicable, your Applicant will comply with the Lead-Based Paint
Poisoning Prevention Act, specifically 42 U.S.C. 4831(b), which prohibits the use of
lead-based paint in the construction or rehabilitation of residence structures,

Your Applicant will, to the extent practicable, comply with the protections for human

subjects involved in research, development, and related activities supported by Federal

funding of:

(1) The National Research Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 289 et seq., and

(2) U.S. DOT regulations, “Protection of Human Subjects,” 49 CFR part 11,

Your Applicant will, to the extent practicable, comply with the labor standards and

protections for federally funded Projects of:

(1) The Davis-Bacon Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. 3141 — 3144, 3146, and 3147,

(2) Sections 1 and 2 of the Copeland “Anti-Kickback™ Act, as amended, 18 U.S.C. 874,
and 40 U.S.C. 3145, respectively, and

(3) The Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. 3701
et seq.,

Your Applicant will, to the extent practicable, comply with any applicable environmental

standards that may be prescribed to implement Federal laws and executive orders,

including, but not limited to:

(1) Following the institution of environmental quality control measures under the
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 4321 — 4335
and Executive Order No. 11514, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 4321 note,

(2) Following the notification of violating facilities provisions of Executive Order No.
11738, 42 U.S.C. 7606 note,

(3) Following the protection of wetlands provisions of Executive Order No. 11990, 42
U.S.C. 4321 note,

(4) Following the evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains provisions of Executive
Order No. 11988, 42 U.S.C. 4321 note,

(5) Complying with the assurance of Project consistency with the approved State
management program developed pursuant to the Coastal Zone Management Act of
1972, as amended, 16 U.S.C. 1451 — 1465,

(6) Complying with the Conformity of Federal Actions to State (Clean Air)
Implementation Plans requirements under section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of
1955, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 7401 - 7671q,

(7) Complying with the protections for underground sources of drinking water under
the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 300f — 300j-6,

(8) Complying with the protections for endangered species under the Endangered
Species Act of 1973, as amended, 16 U.S.C. 1531 — 1544,

(9) Complying with the environmental protections for Federal transportation programs,
including, but not limited to, protections for parks, recreation areas, or wildlife or
waterfowl] refuges of national, State, or local significance or any land from a
historic site of national, State, or local significance to be used in a transportation
Project as required by 49 U.S.C. 303(b) and 303(c),

(10) Complying with the protection of the components of the national wild and scenic
rivers systems, as required under the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968, as
amended, 16 U.S.C. 1271 — 1287, and

(11) Complying with and facilitating compliance with:

(a) Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, 16
U.S.C. 470f,

Page 19 of 23

LD



(b) The Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974, as amended, 16
U.S.C. 469 — 469c, and

(c) Executive Order No. 11593 (identification and protection of historic
properties), 16 U.S.C. 470 note,

g. To the extent practicable, complying with the following Federal requirements for the
care, handling, and treatment of warm blooded animals held or used for research,
teaching, or other activities supported by Federal funding:

(I) The Animal Welfare Act, as amended, 7 U.S.C. 2131 et seq., and

(2) U.S. Department of Agriculture regulations, “Animal Welfare,” 9 CFR subchapter
A, parts 1,2, 3, and 4,

h. To the extent practicable, obtaining a certificate of compliance with the seismic design
and construction requirements of U.S. DOT regulations, “Seismic Safety,” 49 CFR part
41, specifically 49 CFR 41.117(d), before accepting delivery of any FTA funded
building,

i.  To the extent practicable, complying with, and assuring its Subrecipients located in
special flood hazard areas comply with, section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection
Act of 1973, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 4012a(a), by:

(1) Participating in the Federal flood insurance program, and

(2) Purchasing flood insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and acquisition
is $10,000 or more,

J.  To the extent practicable, complying with:

(1) The Hatch Act, 5 U.S.C. 1501 — 1508, 7324 — 7326, which limits the political
activities of State and local agencies and their officers and employees whose
primary employment activities are financed in whole or part with Federal funds,
including a Federal loan, grant agreement, or cooperative agreement, and

(2) 49 U.S.C.5323(1)(2), as amended by MAP-21, and 23 U.S.C. 142(g), which
provide an exception from Hatch Act restrictions for a nonsupervisory employee of
a public transportation system (or of any other agency or entity performing related
functions) receiving FTA funding made available or authorized for 49 U.S.C.
chapter 53 and 23 U.S.C. 142(a)(2) to whom the Hatch Act does not otherwise
apply,

k. Performing the financial and compliance audits as required by the:

(1) Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, 31 U.S.C. 7501 et seq.,

(2) U.S. OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations,” Revised, and

(3) Most recent applicable U.S. OMB A-133 Compliance Supplement provisions for
the U.S. DOT, and

1. To the extent practicable, complying with all the provisions of all other Federal laws or
regulations that apply, and follow Federal guidance governing your Applicant and its
Project, except to the extent that FTA has expressly approved otherwise in writing.

GROUP 02. LOBBYING.

On behalf of your Applicant, you certify that:
1. Asrequired by 31 U.S.C. 1352 and U.S. DOT regulations, “New Restrictions on Lobbying,”
specifically 49 CFR 20.110:
a. The lobbying restrictions of this Certification apply to your Applicant’s requests:
(1) For $100,000 or more in Federal funding for a grant or cooperative agreement, and

Page 20 of 23 ' \ﬂ [



(2) For $150,000 or more in Federal funding for a loan, line of credit, or loan
guarantee, and

b. Your Certification on behalf of your Applicant applies to the lobbying activities of:

(1)  Your Applicant,
(2) Your Applicant’s Principals, and
(3) Your Applicant’s Subrecipients at the first tier,

To the best of your knowledge and belief:

a. No Federal appropriated funds have been or will be paid by or on its behalf to any person
to influence or attempt to influence:

(1) An officer or employee of any Federal agency regarding the award of a:
(a) Federal grant or cooperative agreement, or
(b) Federal loan, line of credit, loan guarantee, or loan insurance, and
(2) A Member of Congress, an employee of a member of Congress, or an officer or
employee of Congress regarding the award of a:
(a) Federal grant or cooperative agreement, or
(b) Federal loan, line of credit, loan guarantee, or loan insurance,

b. Your Applicant will submit a complete OMB Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure of
Lobbying Activities (Rev. 7-97),” consistent with its instructions, if any funds other than
Federal appropriated funds have been or will be paid to any person to influence or
attempt to influence:

(1) An officer or employee of any Federal agency regarding the award of a:
(a) Federal grant or cooperative agreement, or
(b) Federal loan, line of credit, loan guarantee, or loan insurance, and
(2) A Member of Congress, an employee of a member of Congress, or an officer or
employee of Congress regarding the award of a:
(a) Federal grant or cooperative agreement, or
(b) Federal loan, line of credit, loan guarantee, or loan insurance, and
c. Your Applicant will include the language of this Certification in the award documents for
all subawards at all tiers, including, but not limited to:
(1)  Subcontracts,
(2) Subgrants,
(3) Subagreements, and
(4) Third party contracts under a:
(a) Federal grant or cooperative agreement, or
(b) Federal loan, line of credit, loan guarantee, or loan insurance,

Your Applicant understands that:

a. This Certification is a material representation of fact that the Federal government relies
on, and

b. Your Applicant must submit this Certification before the Federal government may award
funding for a transaction covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352, including a:

(1) Federal grant or cooperative agreement, or
(2) Federal loan, line of credit, loan guarantee, or loan insurance, and

Your Applicant also understands that any person who does not file a required Certification

will be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for

each such failure.

Page 21 of 23 \ L{/ <



GROUP 18. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION ON INDIAN RESERVATIONS
AND “TRIBAL TRANSIT” PROGRAMS.

A. Public Transportation on Indian Reservations Program.

FTA has established terms and conditions for direct Public Transportation on Indian Reservations
Program grants financed with funding made available or appropriated for 49 U.S.C. 5311(c)(1),
as amended by MAP-21. On behalf of your Applicant, you certify and assure that:

1. Your Applicant has or will have the necessary legal, financial, and managerial capability to:

a. Apply, receive and disburse 49 U.S.C. 5311(c)(1) funding, and

b. Carry out each Project, including the:

(1) Safety aspects of its proposed Projects, and
(2) Security aspects of its proposed Projects,
2. Your Applicant has or will have satisfactory continuing control over the use of Project
equipment and facilities,
Your Applicant’s Project equipment and facilities will be adequately maintained,
4. Your Applicant’s Project will achieve maximum feasible coordination with transportation
service funded by other Federal sources,
5. Your Applicant will:

a. Have a procurement system that complies with U.S. DOT regulations, “Uniform
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local
Governments,” 49 CFR part 18, specifically 49 CFR 18.36, or

b. Inform FTA promptly that its procurement system does not comply with those U.S. DOT
regulations, and

6. Your Applicant will comply with the Certifications, Assurances, and Agreements in:

a. Group 03.B and 03.C (Charter Service Agreement and School Bus Agreement),

(O8]

b. Group 05.B (Bus Testing),

c. Group 06 (Demand Responsive Service),

d. Group 07 (Intelligent Transportation Systems), and

e. Group 10 (Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing).

B. “Tribal Transit” Program.

FTA has established terms and conditions for direct “Tribal Transit” Program grants financed
with funding made available or appropriated for former 49 U.S.C. 5311(c)(1) in effect in FY
2012 or a previous fiscal year, except as superseded as MAP-21 cross-cutting requirements that
apply instead. On behalf of your Applicant you certify that:
1. Your Applicant has or will have the necessary legal, financial, and managerial capability to:
a. Apply, receive and disburse 49 U.S.C. 5311(c)(1) funding, and
b. Carry out each Project, including the:
(1) Safety aspects of its proposed Projects, and
(2) Security aspects of its proposed Projects,
2. Your Applicant has or will have satisfactory continuing control over the use of Project
equipment and facilities,
Your Applicant’s Project equipment and facilities will be adequately maintained,
4. Your Applicant’s Project will achieve maximum feasible coordination with transportation
service funded by other Federal sources,

(98]

Page 22 of 23 \ \U/}V)



Your Applicant will:

a. Have a procurement system that complies with U.S. DOT regulations, “Uniform
Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local
Governments,” 49 CFR part 18, specifically 49 CFR 18.36, or

b. Inform FTA promptly that its procurement system does not comply with those U.S. DOT
regulations, and

Your Applicant will comply with the Certifications, Assurances, and Agreements in:

Group 03.B and 03.C (Charter Service Agreement and School Bus Agreement),

Group 05.B (Bus Testing),

Group 06 (Demand Responsive Service),

Group 07 (Intelligent Transportation Systems), and

Group 10 (Alcohol and Controlled Substances Testing).

o0 o

Page 23 of 23 l ULl



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager to )
Amend the Columbia Pacific CCO )
Non-Emergent Medical Transportation )

)

Services Delegation Agreement RESOLUTION NO. 19-23

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) entered into a
Delegation Agreement to operate a non-emergency medical transportation services
brokerage on behalf of Columbia Pacific Coordinated Care Organization (CPCCQ); and

WHEREAS, the TCTD and CPCCO negotiated the terms of the Delegation
Agreement is scheduled to expire on June 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, TCTD and CPCCO desire to extend the Delegation Agreement
expiration date to December 31, 2019; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors that:

the General Manager is authorized to amend the TCTD and CPCCO Delegation
Agreement by extending the expiration thru December 31, 2019.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of June 2019.

ATTEST:

By: By:
Judy Riggs, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager




